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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag

June 30, 2013

December 31,

(Unaudited) 2012 (1)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivale $ 168,15 $ 621,15!
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu
Senior 73 88
Senior intere-only 264,72: 122,86¢
Subordinatel 470,58t 547,79:
Subordinated intere-only 14,047 16,25:
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 2,074,81. 1,806,69
Accrued interest receivab 17,39¢ 15,24¢
Other asset 9,45% 13,97(
Subtotal 3,019,24! 3,144,07.
Assets of Consolidated VIEs
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated variabterst entities ("VIES"), at fair valt 3,219,69 3,274,20:
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aloge for loan losses of $9.6 million and $11.6
million, respectively 924,56t 1,300,13,
Accrued interest receivab 20,13¢ 24,08
Subtotal 4,164,39. 4,598,41
Total asset $ 7,183,631 $ 7,742,48
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RMBS ($1.6 billi@h$dn6 billion pledged as collateral,
respectively’ $ 1,478,144 $ 1,528,02!
Accrued interest payab 1,297 2,441
Dividends payabl 92,43¢ 92,43:
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 2,29¢ 1,17¢
Investment management fees and expenses payadifditde 5,79¢ 7,67¢
Interest rate swaps, at fair val 35,35¢ 53,93¢
Subtotal 1,615,33 1,685,68.
Non-Recourse Liabilities of Consolidated VIEs
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMEE3.2 billion and $3.3 billion pledged as
collateral, respectively 1,128,75. 1,336,26.
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifiwestment ($908.0 million and $1.3 billion
pledged as collateral, respective 805,22¢ 1,169,71
Accrued interest payab 6,49¢ 8,35¢
Subtotal 1,940,47! 2,514,32!
Total liabilities $ 3,555,80! $ 4,200,01
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock: par value $0.01 per share; 100000Ghares authorized, O shares issued and
outstanding, respective $ - $ =
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,5000000hares authorized, 1,027,593,441 and
1,027,597,458 shares issued and outstanding, tesge: 10,27: 10,26¢
Additional paic-in-capital 3,604,71 3,604,55:
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 1,036,98: 989,93t
Retained earnings (accumulated defi (1,024,140 (1,062,279
Total stockholders' equit $ 3,627,83. $ 3,542,47!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 7,183,631 $ 7,742,48!

(1) Derived from the audited consolidated finanstatements
See accompanying notes to consolidated financissients




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag

(unaudited’

For the Quarter Ende

For the Six Months Ende

June 30,201  June 30,201  June 30,201 June 30, 201

Net Interest Income:
Interest incomt $ 33,62¢ $ 52,03. $ 62,69¢ $ 103,35(
Interest expens (1,629 (2,477 (3,462) (4,799
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 93,93¢ 109,49: 190,66 207,84:
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of consolidated VI (24,987) (19,480 (51,979 (53,529
Net interest income (expens 100,95« 139,57: 197,92( 252,86
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss - (12,479 - (44,55)
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss - (53,219 (6,169 (69,500
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss - (65,687 (6,169 (114,05)
Other gains (losses)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s 13,17¢ (20,997 18,58( (20,180
Net realized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (5,397 (5,199 (10,927 (9,597
Net gains (losses) on interest rate swaps 7,78 (16,186 7,65¢ (19,777)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS (12,979 (2,539 (13,987 15,41¢
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn 54,11% - 54,12 16,01(
Total other gains (losse 48,93( (18,719 47,79¢ 11,65:
Net investment income (los 149,88« 55,16¢ 239,55: 150,46t
Other expenses
Management fee 6,49¢ 12,90:¢ 12,94 25,81:
Expense recoveries from Manay (3,319 - (5,170 -
Net management fes 3,18: 12,90: 7,77 25,81:
Provision for loan losses, n (1,709 (1,059 (1,279 (892
General and administrative expen 5,197 2,541 10,04 4,53(
Total other expense 6,67 14,38¢ 16,54: 29,45(
Income (loss) before income taxe 143,20° 40,78: 223,01( 121,01¢
Income taxe: - - 2 2
Net income (loss $ 143,200 $ 40,78. $ 223,006 $ 121,01
Net income (loss) per share available to common stedolders:
Basic $ 014 $ 0.04 $ 02z $ 0.1Z
Diluted $ 0.14 $ 0.04 $ 02z $ 0.12
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin
Basic 1,027,066,04 1,026,809,70 1,027,052,34  1,026,785,89
Diluted 1,027,593,44  1,027,505,24  1,027,594,47  1,027,497,41
Dividends declared per share of common stock $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1 $ 0.2C
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income (loss $ 143,200 $ 40,78 $ 223,00¢ $ 121,01
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, n (22,587 (4,027 95,01 119,11¢
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includeatket income
(loss) for other-than-

temporary credit impairment loss - 65,687 6,16: 114,05:
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggains) included
in net income (loss (54,117 - (54,127 (16,010
Other comprehensive income (lo (76,699 61,66¢ 47,05 217,15:
Comprehensive income (los $ 66,50¢ $ 102,44 $ 270,06( $ 338,16¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financdstents






CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

(unaudited
Retained
Accumulated Earnings
Common Additional Other (Accumulate:
Stock Paid-in Comprehensiv
Par Value Capital Income (Loss Deficit) Total

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,267 $ 3,603,73' $ 433,45 $ (999,84) $ 3,047,61
Net income - - - 121,01« 121,01«
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-dafe securities
net - - 119,11: - 119,11:
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet

income (loss) for other-than-temporary credit
impairment

losses - - 114,05: - 114,05:
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggesns

included in net income (los - - (16,010 - (16,010
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinves 1 11€ - - 117
Proceeds from restricted stock gra - 16¢ - - 16¢
Common dividends declared, $0.20 per sl - - - (205,359 (205,359
Balance, June 30, 20: $ 10,26¢ $ 3,604,02. $ 650,60° $ (1,084,18) $ 3,180,71
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,26¢ $ 3,604,555 $ 989,93t $ (1,062,27) $ 3,542,47
Net income - - - 223,00 223,00t
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-dafe securities
net - - 95,01 - 95,01
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet

income (loss) for other-than-temporary credit
impairment

losses - - 6,16: - 6,16:
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggesns

included in net income (los - - (54,127 - (54,127
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 3 16C - - 162
Common dividends declared, $0.18 per sl (184,869 (184,869

Balance, June 30, 20: $

10,27 $ 3,604,71 $

1,036,980 $ (1,024,14) $ 3,627,83:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financissients




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(dollars in thousand:
(unaudited’

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net income (loss $ 223,00¢ $ 121,01
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigem by (used in) operating activitie
(Accretion) amortization of investment discountsfpiums, ne (40,607 (28,340
Amortization of deferred financing cos 3,85( 5,26¢
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt disetaipremiums, ne 4,75:% (889
Net unrealized losses (gains) on interest rate s (18,580 10,18(
Net unrealized losses (gains) on inte-only RMBS 13,981 (15,41Y
Net realized losses (gains) on sales of investr (54,127 (16,010
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 6,16: 114,05:
Provision for loan losses, n (1,279 (892)
Equity-based compensation expe! 162 16¢
Changes in operating asse - -

Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivaét 1,79t (72%)

Decrease (increase) in other as 67t 447
Changes in operating liabilitie -

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and ddbdities 1,12¢ (79

Increase (decrease) in investment management figesx@enses payable to affilic (1,877 7

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payahl (3,009 61C
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 136,05: 189,39¢
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
RMBS portfolio:

Purchase (1,109,34) (101,769

Sales 429,56. 79,05¢

Principal payment 303,51( 362,62!
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VI

Principal payment 230,94° 263,77
Securitized loans held for investme

Purchase - (1,185,669

Principal payment 367,76! 114,14
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 222,43t (467,824
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from repurchase agreem 3,633,24 3,918,31!

Payments on repurchase agreem (3,683,13) (4,229,21)

Payment of deferred financing co - (8,079

Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, colddited by loans held for investme - 1,101,52

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collatadlby loans held for investme (363,45) (110,49H

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collatazdlby Noi-Agency RMBS (213,29) (257,939

Net proceeds from direct purchase and dividendsesimen - 117

Common dividends pai (184,864 (225,88)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (811,49) 188,35:
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (453,000 (90,077)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 621,15: 206,29¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 168,15. $ 116,22
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Interest receive $ 21455. $ 283,01!

Interest paic $ 49,84¢ $ 58,60

Management fees and expenses paid to aff $ 14,82: $ 25,80¢
Non-cash investing activities:

Payable for investments purcha: $ - $ 14,86

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on avai-for sale securitie $ 47,05. $ 217,15
Non-cash financing activities:

Common dividends declared, not yet p $ 92,43t $ 92,411




See accompanying notes to consolidated financ@dstents




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Company”) weganized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Compgamymenced operations on
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial puibffering. The Company elected to be taxed esahestate investment tru“REIT”)
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendddegulations promulgated thereunder (the “Qodehe Company formed the
following wholly-owned qualified REIT subsidiarie€himera Securities Holdings, LLC in July 2008;iiGéra Asset Holding LLC and
Chimera Holding LLC in June 2009; and Chimera Sgddblding LLC in January 2010 which is a whobiyrned subsidiary of Chimera As
Holding LLC. In July 2010, the Company formed Clvading Company LLC, a wholly-owned taxable REIDsidiary (“TRS").

Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”) owns apximately 4.38% of the Company’s common shardse Company is managed by
Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company (“FIDAC™y) smvestment advisor registered with the Securiied Exchange Commission
(“SEC"). FIDAC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemamdisrelated notes of the Company have been prepaeetordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United St@t@®AP"). In the opinion of management, all adjustits considered necessary for a fair
presentation of the Company's financial positi@suits of operations and cash flows have beendeduThese statements should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial stataemseand notes thereto included in the Annual Repofform 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2012. Certain prior year amounts baea reclassified to conform to the current yearésentation.

The consolidated financial statements include, oaresolidated basis, the Company’s accounts, tbeuats of its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
and variable interest entities (“VIEST) which the Company is the primary beneficiaryl gignificant intercompany balances and transasi
have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company uses securitization trusts considerée tVIEs in its securitization and re-securitiaatiransactions. VIEs are defined as
entities in which equity investors (i) do not hakie characteristics of a controlling financial ietst, and/or (ii) do not have sufficient equity at
risk for the entity to finance its activities witlioadditional subordinated financial support frothes parties. The entity that consolidates a
VIE is known as its primary beneficiary, and is geily the entity with (i) the power to direct thetivities that most significantly impact the
VIESs' economic performance, and (ii) the right ézeive benefits from the VIE or the obligation bsarb losses of the VIE that could be
significant to the VIE. For VIEs that do not haugbstantial on going activities, the power to ditbe activities that most significantly imp:
the VIES’ economic performance may be determinedrbgntity’s involvement with the design and stouetof the VIE.

The trusts are structured as pass through entité#égeceive principal and interest on the undaeg\dollateral and distribute those payments to
the certificate holders. The assets held by tharg&ation entities are restricted in that theyonly be used to fulfill the obligations of the
securitization entity. The Company’s risks asseciavith its involvement with these VIEs are lintitio its risks and rights as a certificate
holder of the bonds it has retained. There haea Io® recent changes to the nature of risks asedaidgth the Company’s involvement with
VIEs.

Determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE reasrsignificant judgment. The Company determined fitr the securitizations it
consolidates, its ownership of substantially abladinate interests provided the Company with thiegation to absorb losses and/or the right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could be #igant to the VIE. In addition, the Company isnsidered to have the power to direct the
activities of the VIEs that most significantly ingtahe VIES’ economic performance (“power”) or tiempany was determined to have
power in connection with its involvement with therpose and design of the VIE.




The Company’s interest in the assets held by theseritization vehicles, which are consolidatedrenCompany’s Statements of Financial
Condition, is restricted by the structural provigmf these entities, and a recovery of the Comganyestment in the vehicles will be limit

by each entity’s distribution provisions. The ligies of the securitization vehicles, which are@mtonsolidated on the Company’s Statements
of Financial Condition, are non-recourse to the @any, and can generally only be satisfied from estturitization vehicla respective ass
pool.

The securitization entities are comprised of sediasses of residential mortgage backed secu(if®dBS”) and jumbo, prime, residential
mortgage loans. See Notes 3, 4 and 8 for furtiseudsion of the characteristics of the securdigs$ loans in the Company’s portfolio.

The Company is not obligated to provide, nor hasavided, any financial support to these constdéidaecuritization vehicles.
(b) Statements of Financial Condition Presentation

The Company’s Consolidated Statements of Fina@ualdition separately present: (i) the Company'sdiassets and liabilities, and (ii) the
assets and liabilities of consolidated securittratiehicles. Assets of each consolidated VIE cdy lo@ used to satisfy the obligations of that
VIE, and the liabilities of consolidated VIEs amnarecourse to the Company.

The Company has aggregated all the assets anlitigsbdf the consolidated securitization vehidles to the determination that these entities
are substantively similar and therefore a furthisagigregated presentation would not be more mefuifithe notes to the consolidated
financial statements describe the Company’s dasséts and liabilities and the assets and liaslibf consolidated securitization

vehicles. See Note 8 for additional informatiolated to the Company’s investments in consolidatazliritization vehicles.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handashddeposited overnight in money market fundschvare not bank deposits and are not
insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Inser€orporation. There were no restrictions on eashcash equivalents at June 30, 2013
and December 31, 2012.

(d) Agency and Non-Agency Residential Mortgage-Baeld Securities

The Company invests in RMBS representing interiesbbligations backed by pools of mortgage loafike Company delineates between
Agency RMBS and Non-Agency RMBS as follows: AgeiRiBS are mortgage padisrough certificates, collateralized mortgage cdttiigns
(“*CMOs"), and other RMBS representing interestsiirobligations backed by pools of mortgage loasséds or guaranteed by agencies of the
U.S. Government, such as Ginnie Mae, or federdifrtered corporations such as Freddie Mac or Faiagwhere principal and interest
repayments are guaranteed by the respective agétiog U.S. Government or federally chartered cafion. Non-Agency RMBS are not
issued or guaranteed by a U.S. Government Agenosher institution and are subject to credit riskepayment of principal and interest on
Non-Agency RMBS is subject to the performance of th@tgage loans or RMBS collateralizing the obligatio

The Company classifies its RMBS as availabledale, records investments at estimated fair vaduweacribed in Note 5 of these consolid
financial statements, and includes unrealized gaislosses considered to be temporary on all RMB8uding interest-only (“lO”¥trips, ir
Other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consa@iti&tatements of Operations and Comprehensive k€bass). 10 strips are recorded at
estimated fair value and all unrealized gains asdds are included in earnings in the Consolidatattments of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss). From time to timeas of the overall management of its portfoltee Company may sell any of its RMBS
investments and recognize a realized gain or less@mponent of earnings in the Consolidated i&ttés of Operations and Comprehen:
Income (Loss) utilizing the average cost method.




The Company’s accounting policy for interest incamne impairment related to its RMBS is as follows:

Interest Income Recognition

The recognition of interest income on RMBS seacesittaries depending on the characteristics ofeberity as follows:
Agency RMBS and Non-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBcAunting Standards Codification (“ASC") 310-2mnrefundable Fees and Other
Costs(*ASC 310-20") is applied to the recognition ofénest income for the following securities:

° Agency RMBS
° Non-Agency RMBS that meet all of the following condiis at the acquisition date (referred to hereafsetNonAgency
RMBS of High Credit Qualit”):

1. Rated AA or higher by a nationally recognized dcredliing agency. The Company uses the lowestgaiailable

2. The Company expects to collect all of the sec’s contractual cash flow

3. The security cannot be contractually prepaid suat the Company would not recover substantiallyodlits
recorded investmen

Under ASC 310-20, interest income, including premswand discounts associated with the acquisitidhexe securities, is recognized over
the life of such securities using the interest radthased on the contractual cash flows of the #gcuin applying the interest method, the
Company considers estimates of future principgb@yenents in the calculation of the constant eféecyield. Differences that arise between
previously anticipated prepayments and actual yrepats received, as well as changes in future grepat assumptions, result in a
recalculation of the effective yield on the segudh a quarterly basis. This recalculation reslthe recognition of an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the security based on the reMBsepayment assumptions and a corresponding se@adecrease in reported interest
income.

Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS that are purchased at a discount aatdhtie not of high credit quality at the time ofghase are accounted for under A
310-30,Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deterioda@¥edit Quality(*ASC 310-30") or ASC 325-4Beneficial Interests in
Securitized Financial AssefsASC 325-40") (referred to hereafter as “Non-AggmMBS Not of High Credit Quality”).

Non-Agency RMBS are accounted for under ASC 310-3beffollowing conditions are met as of the acqigsidate:

1. There is evidence of deterioration in credit qyadit the security from its inceptio
2. ltis probable that the Company will be unabledbiect all contractual cash flows of the secur

Non-Agency RMBS that are not within the scope of ASKD-30 are accounted for under ASC 325-40 if atttguisition date:

1. The security is not of high credit quality (defineslrated below AA or is unrated),
2. The security can contractually be prepaid or oti@xsgettled in such a way that the Company woutdrewver substantially all
its recorded investmer

Interest income on Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Gr&uality is recognized using the interest methaded on management’s estimates
of cash flows expected to be collected. The effedtiterest rate on these securities is based oagemens estimate for each security of 1
projected cash flows, which are estimated baseabggarvation of current market information and idel@ssumptions related to fluctuations
in prepayment speeds and the timing and amouneditdosses. Quarterly, the Company reviews drappropriate, makes adjustments to its
cash flow projections based on inputs and analyesesved from external sources, internal modeld,tha Company’s judgments about
prepayment rates, the timing and amount of credies, and other factors. Changes in the amoufdraimding of cash flows from those
originally projected, or from those estimated & ldist evaluation date, are considered to be gqithgtive changes or adverse changes. For
securities accounted for under ASC 325-40, anytipesir adverse change in cash flows that doeseasuflt in the recognition of an other-
than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) results in a pp&ctive increase or decrease in the effectivedsteate used to recognize interest
income. For securities accounted for under ASC 31,0anly significant positive changes are refleqieaspectively in the effective interest
rate used to recognize interest income. Adversegés in cash flows expected to be collected arergly treated consistently for RMBS
accounted for under ASC 325-40 and ASC 310-30,gametrally result in recognition of an OTTI with abange in the effective interest rate
used to recognize interest income.




Impairment
Considerations Applicable to all RMBS

When the fair value of an available-for-sale RMB3eiss than its amortized cost the security isidensd impaired. On at least a quarterly
basis the Company evaluates its securities for OTflthe Company intends to sell an impaired sig&guor it is more-likely-than-not that the
Company will be required to sell an impaired sagusefore its anticipated recovery, then the Comgpanst recognize an OTTI through a
charge to earnings equal to the entire differerte/den the investment’s amortized cost and itsvine at the measurement date. If the
Company does not intend to sell an impaired sgcarit it is not more-likely-than-not that it woude required to sell an impaired security
before recovery, the Company must further evaltieesecurity for impairment due to credit lossd® €redit component of OTTI is
recognized in earnings and the remaining or nodiccemponent is recorded as a component of Othpcehensive income (loss) (“OCI").
Following the recognition of an OTTI through eagsna new amortized cost basis is establishedhéosécurity and subsequent recoveries in
fair value may not be adjusted through earnings.

When evaluating whether the Company intends toageilinpaired security or will more-likely-tharet be required to sell an impaired sect
before recovery, the Company makes judgments threider among other things, its liquidity, leveragentractual obligations, and targeted
investment strategy to determine its intent anditglto hold the investments that are deemed ingghirThe determination as to whether an
OTTI exists is subjective as such determinatioesbhaised on factual information available at theetohassessment as well as the Company’s
estimates of future conditions. As a result, taiednination of OTTI and its timing and amount#@séd on estimates that may change
materially over time.

The Company’s estimate of the amount and timingash flows for its RMBS is based on its reviewtsf tinderlying securities or mortgage
loans securing the RMBS. The Company consideterigal information available and expected futuesfprmance of the underlying
securities or mortgage loans, including timing xjpected future cash flows, prepayment rates, defatds, loss severities, delinquency rates,
percentage of non-performing loans, extent of ¢r=afpport available, Fair Isaac Corporation (“FIG®&Cores at loan origination, year of
origination, loan-to-value ratios, geographic cartcations, as well as reports by credit rating &ges) such as Moody’s Investors Service,
Inc., Standard & Poor’s Rating Services or FitchifRgs, Inc., general market assessments and dialegth market participants. As a result,
substantial judgment is used in the Company’s @matp determine the expected cash flows for itsBSM

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

The impairment assessment for Non-Agency RMBS ghHGredit Quality involves comparing the presertigaf the remaining cash flows
expected to be collected to the amortized cost@Eecurity at the assessment date. The discatentised to calculate the present value ¢
expected future cash flows is based on the se@ugffective interest rate as calculated under 83GQ-20 (i.e., the discount rate implicit in
the security as of the last measurement datejhelpresent value of the remaining cash flows etgoketo be collected is less than the
amortized cost basis, an OTTI is recognized iniagaifor the difference. This amount is considdrede the credit loss component; the
remaining difference between amortized cost andaineralue of the security is considered to bepbgion of loss recognized in other
comprehensive income (l0ss).

Following the recognition of an OTTI through easrfor the credit loss component, a new amortizest lsasis is established for the security
and subsequent recoveries in fair value may netdjiested through earnings.




Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS within the scope of ASC 325-40 or ASID-30 are considered other-than-temporarily ingzhwhen the following two
conditions exist: (1) the fair value is less thlhe amortized cost basis, and (2) there has beadwarse change in cash flows expected to be
collected from the last measurement date (i.e es@vchanges in either the amount or timing of fas¥s from those previously expected).

The OTTI is separated into a credit loss compoti&ttis recognized in earnings and the portioros$ recognized in other comprehensive
income (loss). The credit component is comprisetth@fimpact of the fair value decline due to charnigeassumptions related to default
(collection) risk and prepayments. The portionasfs recognized in other comprehensive income (txsprises the change in fair value of
the security due to all other factors, includingeges in benchmark interest rates and market liguith determining the OTTI related to
credit losses for securities, the Company comphepresent value of the remaining cash flows ae§lfor prepayments expected to be
collected at the current financial reporting datéhie present value of the remaining cash flowsetqul to be collected at the original
purchase date (or the last date those estimatesregised for accounting purposes). The discaatetused to calculate the present value of
expected future cash flows is the effective interate used for income recognition purposes asm@ted under ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30.

Following the recognition of an OTTI through eamérfor the credit component, a new amortized casishis established for the security and
subsequent recoveries in fair value may not beséeljuthrough earnings. However, to the extentttieae are subsequent increases in cash
flows expected to be collected, the OTTI previousigorded through earnings may be accreted indwdast income following the guidance in
ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30.

The determination of whether an OTTI exists andpifthe extent of the credit component is suliestgnificant judgment and management’
estimates of both historical information availabtehe time of assessment, the current market@mwient, as well as the Company’s
estimates of the future performance and projeatesuat and timing of cash flows expected to be ctdlé on the security. As a result, the
timing and amount of OTTI constitutes an accounésgimate that may change materially over time.

(e) Interest-Only RMBS

The Company invests in IO Agency and Non-Agency Farips. 10 RMBS strips represent the Compariglistito receive a specified
proportion of the contractual interest flows of talateral. The Company has accounted for IO RMB®s at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in the Company’s ConsolidatedeStants of Operations and Comprehensive Income JLdds Company has elected the
fair value option to account for IO RMBS stripssimplify the reporting of changes in fair valudhe 10 RMBS strips are included in RME
at fair value, on the accompanying ConsolidateteStants of Financial Condition. Interest incomd®@rRMBS strips is accrued based on
the outstanding notional balance and the security'gractual terms, and amortization of any premaurdiscount is calculated in accordance
with ASC 325-40. Changes in fair value are pregsbmeNet unrealized gains (losses) on intemdy- RMBS on the Consolidated Statemer
Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss). Isttémeome reported on IO RMBS strips was $6.9 onilland $7.7 million for the quarters
ended June 30, 2013, and 2012, respectively. esitarcome reported on 10 securities was $10.2anikind $13.7 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

(f) Securitized Loans Held for Investment and Relagd Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company’s securitized residential mortgagedame comprised of fixed-rate and variable-ratedoaviortgage loans are designated as
held for investment, and are carried at their ppalcbalance outstanding, plus any premiums, lessdnts and allowances for loan

losses. Interest income on loans held for investriserecognized over the expected life of the $oasing the interest method. Nonrefund:
fees and costs related to acquiring the Compamgsrgtized residential mortgage loans are recoginé=eexpenses over the life of the
associated debt using the interest method of amadidin. Income recognition is suspended for loghsen, based on information from the
servicer, a full recovery of interest or princippgicomes doubtful. The Company estimates the &irevof securitized loans for disclosure
purposes only as described in Note 5 of these tidased financial statements.




(g) Allowance for Loan Losses — Securitized Loanseéfd for Investment

The securitized loan portfolio is comprised prirhadf non-conforming, single family, owner occupjgdmbo, prime loans that are not
guaranteed as to repayment of principal or inter8stcuritized loans are serviced and modified third-party servicer. The Company
generally has the ability to approve certain loardifications and determine the course of actiobedaken as it relates to certain loans in
technical default, including whether or not to pred with foreclosure.

The Company has established an allowance for lossek related to securitized loans that is compoEadyeneral and specific reserve.
general reserve relates to loans that have notindendually evaluated for impairment. The Comgangeneral reserve is based on histc
loss rates for pools of loans with similar crediicacteristics, adjusted for current trends andketazonditions, including current trends
delinquencies and severities.

The Company has established a specific reservergflatts consideration of loans more than 60 digisiquent, loans in foreclosure,
borrowers that have declared bankruptcy. The loas provision related to these loans is measusetha difference between the ung
principal balance and the estimated fair valuehef property securing the mortgage, less estimatsts ¢o sell. The specific reserve
reflects consideration of concessions granted tool@rs by the servicer in the form of modificasofi.e., reductions)Loan loss provisior
related to these modifications are based on th&adnal principal and interest payments, post-fircation, discounted at the loanbrigina
effective interest rate. Loans with specific r@ssrare individually evaluated for impairment. haaodifications made by the servicer
evaluated to determine if they constitute trouldedt restructurings (“TDRs")A restructuring of a loan constitutes a TDR if devicer, fo
economic or legal reasons related to the borrowsicial difficulties, grants a concession to tharrower that it would not otherwi
consider. Impairment of modified loans consideretid TDRs is measured based on the present vakipetted cash flows discounted ai
loan’s effective interest rate at inception. If the prasvalue of expected cash flows is less than ¢oerded investment in the loan,
allowance for loan losses is recognized with aegponding charge to the provision for loan lossapairment of all other loans individua
evaluated is measured as the difference betweemnibesd principal balance and the estimated fduevaf the collateral, less estimated ¢
to sell. The Company charges off the corresponttiag allowance and related principal balance wthenservicer reports a realized los:
complete discussion of securitized loans heldrdgestment is included in Note 4 to these consdidifihancial statements.

(h) Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of a signifigaortion of its Agency mortgage-backed securitiéb repurchase agreements. The
Company has evaluated each agreement and deterthatezhch of the repurchase agreements be acddontas secured borrowings. None
of the Companys repurchase agreements are accounted for as centparf linked transactions. As a result, the Camseparately accour
for the financial assets posted as collateral afated repurchase agreements in the accompanyirspladated financial statements.

(i) Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferreda Consolidated VIEs, and Securitized Debt, Loans He for Investment

The Company has issued securitized debt to finarmation of its residential mortgage loan and RMB&folios. Certain transactions
involving residential mortgage loans are accoumeds secured borrowings, and are recorded agiSeed loans held for investment and
corresponding debt as Securitized debt, collaterdlby loans held for investment in the Consolid&tatements of Financial

Condition. These securitizations are collateralibg residential adjustable or fixed rate mortglagas that have been placed in a trust and
pay interest and principal to the debt holderdat securitization. Re-securitization transactidiassified as Securitized debt, collateralized
by Non-Agency RMBS reflect the transfer to a trofstixed or adjustable rate RMBS which are classifas Non-Agency RMBS transferred
to consolidated VIEs that pay interest and prindipahe debt holders of that re-securitizatiore-decuritization transactions completed by
Company that did not qualify as sales are accouiotedls secured borrowings. The associated semditiebt is carried at amortized cost.
The Company estimates the fair value of its seizedtdebt for disclosure purposes as describedtr N to these consolidated financial
statements.
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(j) Fair Value Disclosure

A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdte Company to estimate the fair value of itaficial instruments is included in Note 5
to these consolidated financial statements.

(k) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company'’s investment policies permit it to eitéo derivative contracts, including interesteratvaps, interest rate caps, options, and
futures as a means of managing its interest rsiteas well as to enhance investment returns. Tinep@oy’s derivatives are recorded as either
assets or liabilities in the Consolidated Statesiehfinancial Condition and measured at fair valdiet payments on derivative instruments
are included in the Consolidated Statements of E&shis as a component of net income (loss). Uiredlgains (losses) on derivatives are
removed from net income (loss) to arrive at castvdl from operating activities. The Company estimabe fair value of its derivative
instruments as described in Note 5 of these careeld financial statements.

The Company elects to net by counterparty thevidine of its derivative contracts when appropriafbese contracts contain legally
enforceable provisions that allow for netting atting off of all individual swaps receivable andyphle with each counterparty and, therefi
the fair value of those swap contracts are repar&tdy counterparty. The credit support annexipions of the Company’s interest rate
swap contracts allow the parties to mitigate theadit risk by requiring the party which is in & payable position to post collateral. As the
Company elects to net by counterparty the fair ¥alfiinterest rate swap contracts, it also netsdunterparty any cash collateral exchanged
as part of the interest rate swap contracts.

() Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactionglich it sells financial assets, such as RMB#, mortgage loans. Gains and losses on
sales of assets are calculated using the averagenethod whereby the Company records a gain erdnghe difference between the average
amortized cost of the asset and the proceeds fieraale. In addition, the Company from time toetisecuritizes or re-securitizes assets and
sells tranches in the newly securitized asset®s& transactions may be recorded as either saldb@assets contributed to the securitization
are removed from the Consolidated Statements @frigial Condition and a gain or loss is recognipeds secured borrowings whereby the
assets contributed to the securitization are natgynized but rather the debt issued by the gexation entity are recorded to reflect the
term financing of the assets. In these securitimatand re-securitizations, the Company may retaimor or subordinated interests in the
securitized and/or re-securitized assets.

(m) Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REITnéedds to comply with the provision of the Codethwespect thereto. Accordingly, the
Company will not be subject to federal, state caloncome tax to the extent that qualifying distitions are made to stockholders and as

as certain asset, income, distribution and stoakesship tests are met. If the Company failed tdifyuas a REIT and did not qualify for
certain statutory relief provisions, the Companyitide subject to federal, state and local incaameg and may be precluded from qualify
as a REIT for the subsequent four taxable yealsviglg the year in which the REIT qualification wiast. The Company and CIM Trading
made a joint election to treat CIM Trading as a TRSsuch, CIM Trading is taxable as a domestiofparation and subject to federal, state,
and local income taxes based upon its taxable iecom

A tax position is recognized only when, based omagament’s judgment regarding the application obine tax laws, it is more likely than
not that the tax position will be sustained upoamination. The Company does not have any unrezedrax benefits that would affect its
financial position or require disclosure. No a@suor penalties and interest were necessary dsraf 30, 2013 or December 31, 2012.

(n) Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shyadé/liling net income for the period by the baskighted-average shares of its common

stock outstanding for that period. Diluted netome per share takes into account the effect ofiddunstruments such as unvested restricted
stock.

11




(o) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and FIDA&fdiates at the fair value of
the stock-based compensation provided. The Compezagures the fair value of the equity instrumeirigithe stock prices and other
measurement assumptions as of the earlier of dhieetate at which a performance commitment byédhiient is reached or the date at
which the recipient’s performance is complete. Btmampensation expense related to the grants ok &aecognized over the vesting period
of such grants based on the fair value of the stoc&ach quarterly vesting date, at which the fenifs performance is complete.

Compensation expense for equity based awards grémtee Company’s independent directors is reaaghpro-rata over the vesting period
of such awards, based upon the fair value of suchrds at the grant date.

(p) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisce of contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengplorting period. Although the Compasigstimates contemplate current conditions
how it expects them to change in the future, ie@sonably possible that actual conditions coulthbeerially different than anticipated in
those estimates, which could have a material agvierpact on the Company’s results of operationsi@nfihancial condition. Management
has made significant estimates in accounting foonme recognition and OTTI on Agency and Non-AgeR&BS and IO RMBS (Note 3),
valuation of Agency and Non-Agency RMBS (Notes 8 &i and interest rate swaps (Notes 5 and 9)uaheesults could differ materially
from those estimates.

(q) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Presentation

Balance Sheet (Topic 210)

On December 23, 2011, the FASB released Accoutagdards Update (“ASU”) 2011-1Ralance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about
Offsetting Assets and LiabilitiesUnder this update, the Company is required $oldse both gross information and net informatiooua

both instruments and transactions eligible foretffa the statement of financial position and teati®ns subject to an agreement similar to a
master netting arrangement. The scope includégatiees, sale and repurchase agreements and ees@esand repurchase agreements and
securities borrowing and securities lending arramg@s. This disclosure is intended to enablenfifed statement users to understand the
effect of such arrangements on the Company’s filmhposition. The Company adopted this guidamncené first quarter of 2013. As this
standard only requires additional disclosure, thapéion of ASU 2011-11 did not have any effect lo@ tonsolidated financial

statements. The additional disclosures relatedgdCompany’s repurchase agreements and derivaregsresented in Note 14.

Comprehensive Income (Topic 220)

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 20133@Mprehensive Income: Reporting of Amounts Refieg$ut of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive IncomeThis update requires the disclosure of informmatbout the amounts reclassified out of accumul@@dby
component. In addition, it requires presentatigimee on the face of the statement where net incerpeesented or in the Notes, significant
amounts reclassified out of accumulated OCI byréispective line items of net income, but only # mount reclassified is required under
GAAP to be reclassified to net income in its eniri@ the same reporting period. For other amothds are not required under GAAP to be
reclassified in their entirety to net income, assa@ference must be provided to other disclosuresimed| under GAAP that provide additio
detail about those amounts. The Company adoptsedjthilance in the first quarter of 2013. As thadfard only requires additional
disclosure, the adoption of ASU 2013-02 did notéhamy effect on the consolidated financial stateémefhe additional disclosures related to
accumulated OCI are presented in Note 11.

12




Broad Transactions

Receivables-Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (Subt&di6-40)

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014R®tlassification of Residential Real Estate Cotldteed Consumer Mortgage Loans
Upon Foreclosure This update clarifies when the Company is caergid to have obtained physical possession, from-anbstance
possession or foreclosure, of a residential rdateproperty collateralizing a mortgage loan. r€air guidance indicates that the Company
should reclassify a collateralized mortgage loachdhat the loan should be derecognized and thater! asset recognized when it
determines that there has been an in-substancesesgsion or foreclosure by the Company. This epdefines the ternm substance
repossession or foreclosute reduce diversity in interpretation of when sachevent occurs. The guidance in this updateféstafe for the
Company beginning January 1, 2015. The Compaayadhiating the impact of this update.

3. Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company classifies its Non-Agency RMBS as gesgnior 10, subordinated, subordinated 10, and-Ngency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs. The Company also invests innfsgeRMBS. Senior interests in Non-Agency RMBS @wasidered to be entitled to the
first principal repayments in their pro-rata owrpsinterests at the reporting date. The total\falue of the Non-Agency RMBS that are
held by consolidated re-securitization trusts wa ®illion and $3.3 billion at June 30, 2013 aretBmber 31, 2012, respectively. See Note
8 of these consolidated financial statements fhér discussion of consolidated VIEs.

The following tables present the principal or notibvalue, total premium, total discount, amortizedt, fair value, gross unrealized gains,
gross unrealized losses, and net unrealized gzse)(felated to the Company’s available-for-saleB®8\portfolio as of June 30, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, by asset class.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Net
Gross Gross Unrealizec
Principal or Unrealizec  Unrealizet
Notional Total Total Amortized Gain/
Value Premium Discount Cost Fair Value Gains Losses (Loss)
Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior $ A - % (68) $ 57 $ 73 % 16 $ - 8 1€
Senior intere-only 5,156,15! 287,60( - 287,60( 264,72: 14,20( (37,077 (22,87°)
Subordinatet 883,91¢ - (511,100 372,81¢ 470,58t 99,99¢ (2,237 97,76"
Subordinated intere-only 255,17t 14,60¢ - 14,60¢ 14,04° 392 (950) (55¢)
RMBS transferred to consolidate:
variable interest
entities ("VIES") 4,259,15. 8,25  (1,903,00) 2,278,18  3,219,69 941,50 - 941,50
Agency RMBS 2,201,16. 141,02 - 2,072,500 2,074,81 41,02( (38,719 2,30¢
Total $12,755,69 $ 451,48: $(2,414,17) $5,025,771 $6,043,93 $1,097,13 $ (78,979 $1,018,16
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands
Net
Gross Gross Unrealizec
Principal or Unrealizec Unrealize(
Notional Total Total Amortized Gain/
Value Premium Discount Cost Fair Value Gains Losses (Loss)
Nonr-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 12¢ $ - % (54) $ 72 % 88 $ 16 $ - $ 16
Senior intere-only 3,012,86: 135,86¢ - 135,86¢ 122,86¢ 7,97¢ (20,979 (12,999
Subordinater 1,057,82 - (584,777 473,04¢ 547,79: 81,49: (6,747 74,74¢
Subordinated intere-only 256,07: 16,18( - 16,18( 16,25: 1,46¢ (2,399 73
RMBS transferred to consolidate:
variable interest
entities ("VIES") 4,610,10! 8,95 (2,088,12) 2,437,041 3,274,20. 837,35: (197 837,15t
Agency RMBS 1,756,58! 51,50: - 1,720,59' 1,806,69 86,41¢ (317) 86,10:
Total $10,693,57 $ 212,50! $(2,672,95) $4,782,81. $5,767,900 $1,014,72. $ (29,629 $ 985,09:

The table below presents changes in AccretabledY@lthe excess of the security’s cash flows etgquieto be collected over the Company’s
investment, solely as it pertains to the Compahiga-Agency RMBS portfolio accounted for accordinghe provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarter Ende For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201 June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands (dollars in thousand:
Balance at beginning of peri $ 2,014,78 $ 2,300,871 $ 2,107,38 $ 2,342,46:

Purchase - - - 86,84



Accretion (82,999

(92,33)) (168,93 (187,441
Reclassification (to) from n«accretable differenc 18,297 26,24% 11,66¢ 14,58¢
Sales (28,409 - (28,439 (21,669
Balance at end of peric $ 1,921,68 $ 2,234,79. $ 192168 $ 2,234,79.
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The table below presents the outstanding prindipince and related amortized cost at June 30, &0d ®ecember 31, 2012 as it pertains to
the Company’s Non-Agency RMBS portfolio accounteddccording to the provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarter  For the Year

Ended Ended
December 31,
June 30, 201 2012

(dollars in thousand:

Outstanding principal balanc

Beginning of perioc  $ 4,346,04. $ 5,245,18

End of perioc $ 4,148,06' $ 4,508,47!
Amortized cost

Beginning of perioc  $ 2,209,141 $ 2,649,30:

End of perioc $ 2,127 14 $ 2,268,75

The following tables present the gross unrealipsdds and estimated fair value of the CommaRWIBS by length of time that such securi
have been in a continuous unrealized loss posiidiine 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012. All sgesiin an unrealized loss position have
been evaluated by the Company for OTTI as discuissBote 2(d).

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands

Unrealized Loss Position for Less thanUnrealized Loss Position for 12 Months

12 Months or More Total
Unrealize( Unrealize( Unrealizec
Estimated Number of Estimatec Number of Estimated Number o
Fair Value Losses Securities  Fair Value Losses Securities  Fair Value Losses Securities
Nonr-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ - - % - $ - - % - % = =
Senior intere-only 132,06! (16,427 36 51,79° (20,65%) 20 183,86: (37,077 56
Subordinates - - 2 17,60 (2,239 2 17,60¢ (2,239 4
Subordinated interest-
only 8,461 (950 1 - - - 8,461 (950 1
RMBS transferred to
consolidated
VIEs - - - - - - - - -
Agency RMBS 834,51( (38,719 23 - - - 834,51( (38,719 23
Total $ 975,03t $ (56,08¢) 62 $ 6940 $ (22,88) 22 $1,044,43 $ (78,977 84
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands
Unrealized Loss Position for Less thi  Unrealized Loss Position for 12 Mont
12 Months or More Total
Unrealize( Unrealize( Unrealizec
Estimatec Number of Estimatec Number of Estimated Number o
Fair Value Losses Securities  Fair Value Losses Securities  Fair Value Losses Securities
Nonr-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ - - % - $ - - % - % = =
Senior intere-only 17,76¢ (2,82%) 12 52,92( (18,14°) 26 70,68¢ (20,97%) 38
Subordinates - - - 54,77 (6,747 5 54,77 (6,747 5
Subordinated interest-
only - - - 9,65¢ (1,399 1 9,65¢ (1,399 1
RMBS transferred to
consolidated
VIEs - - - 22,49( (297) 1 22,49( (297 1
Agency RMBS 234 (76) 2 992 (247) 2 1,227 (317) 4
Total $ 17,99¢ $ (2,909 14 $ 140,83t $ (26,729 35 $ 158,83 $ (29,629 49

At June 30, 2013, the Company did not intend tbesef of its RMBS that were in an unrealized lossipon, and it was not more likely than
not that the Company would be required to sell¢iRSIBS before recovery of their amortized costfashich may be at their maturity. W
respect to RMBS held by consolidated VIEs, theighif any entity to cause the sale by the VIE ptthe maturity of these RMBS is either
expressly prohibited, not probable, or is limitedspecified events of default, none of which haseuored to date.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Agency 8MBre $38.7 million and $317 thousand at JunB3D3 and December 31, 2012,
respectively. Given the credit quality inherenfigency RMBS, the Company does not consider anii@ttirrent impairments on its Agency
RMBS to be credit related. In evaluating whettiés imore likely than not that it will be requiréalsell any impaired security before



anticipated recovery, which may be at their maguthhe Company considers the significance of eaghstment, the amount of impairment,
the projected future performance of such impaiesmigties, as well as the Company’s current anitigated leverage capacity and liquidity
position. Based on these analyses, the Companyntaetd that at June 30, 2013 and December 31, @0fealized losses on its Agency
RMBS were temporary.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Non-AgBMBS (excluding IO Agency and Non-Agency RMBS rivhich are accounted for
under the fair value option with changes in failuearecorded in earnings) were $2.2 million and®$6illion at June 30, 2013 and December
31, 2012, respectively. Based upon the most remaitiation, the Company does not consider thesmalired losses to be indicative of OTTI
and does not believe that these unrealized lossegedit related, but rather are due to othewofactThe Company has reviewed its Non-
Agency RMBS that are in an unrealized loss positoidentify those securities with losses that@tteer-than-temporary based on an
assessment of changes in cash flows expecteddolleeted for such RMBS, which considers recentdoparformance and expected future
performance of the underlying collateral.
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A summary of the OTTI included in earnings for thearters and six months ended June 30, 2013 arili@@tesented below.

For the Quarter Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: $ - % (12,474
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss - (53,219
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ - $ (65,687

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: $ - % (44,55))
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (6,167) (69,500
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (6,16 $  (114,05)

The following table presents a roll forward of tredit loss component of OTTI on the Company’s Maency RMBS for which a portion «
loss was previously recognized in OCI. The talelin@ates between those securities that are rexagr®TTI for the first time as opposed

those that have previously recognized OTTI.

For the Quarter Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands

Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 513,94t $ 493,90(
Additions:
Other-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni - 58,10:
Reductions for securities sold during the pe (10,760) -

Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsnen securities with previously
recognized other-than-

temporary impairment - 7,58¢
Reductions for increases in cash flows expectdxtoollected that are recognizec
over the remaining life of the secur (4,939 (18,929
Cumulative credit loss ending balar $ 49825, $ 540,65

For the Six Months Endec
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands

Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 510,08¢ $ 452,06(
Additions:
Other-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 712 89,92¢
Reductions for securities sold during the pe (11,119 (290

Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsnen securities with previously
recognized other-than-

temporary impairment 5,451 24,12:
Reductions for increases in cash flows expectdxtoollected over the remaining
life of the securitie: (6,887 (25,167)
Cumulative credit impairment loss ending bala $ 49825, $ 540,65

Cash flows generated to determine net other-thaapdeary credit impairment losses recognized iniegmare estimated using significant
unobservable inputs. The significant inputs useshéasure the component of OTTI recognized in egenfor the Company’s Non-Agency

RMBS are summarized as follows:
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For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201June 30, 201
Loss Severity

Weighted Averag: 45% 58%

Range 41%- 69% 45%- 86%
60+ days delinquet

Weighted Averag 16% 28%

Range 0%-34% 9%- 53%
Credit Enhancement (.

Weighted Averag: 10% 10%

Range 0%-48% 0%- 75%
3 Month CPR

Weighted Averag 18% 16%

Range 0%-25% 3%- 30%
12 Month CPF

Weighted Averag: 20% 16%

Range 9%-35% 8%- 25%

(1) Calculated as the combined credit enhanceroetht
ReREMIC and underlying from each of their respec
capital structures

The following tables present a summary of unredligains and losses at June 30, 2013 and Decemp20B2. 10 RMBS included in the
tables below represent the right to receive a fipdqgbroportion of the contractual interest casiwl of the underlying principal balance of
specific securities. At June 30, 2013, 10 RMBS hatkt unrealized loss of $18.8 million and hadueortized cost of $356.8 million. At
December 31, 2012, 10 RMBS had a net unrealizesldd$4.8 million and had an amortized cost of $Q66illion. The fair value of IOs at
June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was $338.i0midnd $161.2 million, respectively. All changedair value of 10s are reflected in
Net income (loss]

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Unrealize
Gross Unrealize

Gain Included ir  Gross Unrealize Loss Included in  Gross Unrealize
Accumulated Accumulated
Other Gain Included ir Other Loss Included in
Comprehensive Accumulated Total Gross Comprehensive Accumulated Total Gross
Income Deficit Unrealized Gait Income Deficit Unrealized Los:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 16 $ - $ 16 $ - $ - $ -
Senior intere-only - 14,20( 14,20( - (37,077 (37,07Y)
Subordinate( 99,99¢ - 99,99¢ (2,239 - (2,239
Subordinated intere-only 1 391 392 - (950 (950
RMBS transferred to consolidated V 936,25¢ 5,24¢ 941,50 - - -
Agency RMBS 40,58 437 41,02( (37,639 (1,076 (38,719
Total $ 1,076,85: $ 20,27¢ $ 1,097,13. $ (39,870 $ (39,10) $ (78,979
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Unrealize Gross Unrealize
Gain Included ir  Gross Unrealize Loss Included ir  Gross Unrealize
Accumulated Accumulated
Other Gain Included ir Other Loss Included ir
Comprehensive Accumulated Total Gross Comprehensive Accumulated Total Gross
Income Deficit Unrealized Gair Income Deficit Unrealized Los:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 16 $ - % 1€ $ - % - 8 =
Senior intere-only - 7,97¢ 7,97¢ - (20,97%) (20,97
Subordinate( 81,49: - 81,49: (6,747%) - (6,747%)
Subordinated intere-only - 1,46¢ 1,46¢ - (1,399 (1,399
RMBS transferred to consolidated V 829,30t 8,04t 837,35: (297) - (297)
Agency RMBS 86,06 357 86,41¢ - (317) (317)
Total $ 996,87( $ 17,84« $ 1,014,72. $ (6,949 $ (22,68) $ (29,629

Changes in prepayments, actual cash flows, andflcags expected to be collected, among other itaares affected by the collatel



characteristics of each asset class. The portf®lioost heavily weighted to contain Non-Agency RMWBith credit risk. The Company
chooses assets for the portfolio after carefullgleating each investment’s risk profile.

The following tables provide a summary of the Comps RMBS portfolio at June 30, 2013 and Decemlier2®12.
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June 30, 201 December 31, 201

Principal Weighted  Principal Weightec
or Notiona Average or Notiona Average
Value at Weightec Yield Value at Weightec Yield at
PeriodEnd  Average  Weightec  Weightec at PeriodEnd  Average Weightec  Weightec Period-
(dollarsin  Amortizec  Average Average Period-End (dollarsin ~ Amortizec  Average Average End
thousands Cost Basi Fair Value Coupon (1) thousands Cost Basi Fair Value Coupon (1)
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 128 $ 459: $ 58.7¢ 0.0(% 11.5% $ 12¢ $ 5702 $ 67.0C 0.0(% 11.9%
Senior, interest onl $5,156,15 $ 55¢ $ 5.12 2.0&% 16.51% $3,012,861 $ 451 $ 4.0¢ 1.7¢% 10.3¢%
Subordinatet $ 88391t $ 421¢ $ 532 3.01% 12.4(% $1,057,82. $ 447: $ 51.7¢ 3.1&% 11.0%
Subordinated, interest or $ 25517t % 572 $ 5.51 1.92% 8.2% $ 256,07. $ 6.3z $ 6.3 2.25% 8.9(%
RMBS transferred to
consolidated
variable interest entitie $4,259,15° $ 545¢ $ 77.1¢€ 4.7¢% 15.66% $4,610,100 $ 53.9¢ $ 72.5( 4.88% 15.4%%
Agency Mortgag-Backed
Securities $2,201,16. $ 107.3( $ 107.4: 4.22% 3.1%% $1,756,58 $ 103.0¢ $ 108.2¢ 4.65% 3.5¢%

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er

The following table presents the weighted averagditrating, based on the lowest rating availablehe Company’s Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

June 30, 201December 3:

2012
AAA 0.01% 0.01%
AA 0.30% 0.46%
BB 1.69% 1.41%
B 1.19% 1.19%
Below B or not rate! 96.81¥% 96.93¥%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortemiliae stated contractual maturities. Actual mérsiof the Compang’' RMBS are affecte
by the contractual lives of the underlying mortgageeriodic payments of principal and prepaymehtwiacipal. The following tables
provide a summary of the fair value and amortizest of the Company’s RMBS at June 30, 2013 and ibee 31, 2012 according to their
estimated weighted-average life classificationbe Weighted-average lives of the RMBS in the tabldsw are based on lifetime expected
prepayment rates using an industry prepayment nfodéte Agency RMBS portfolio and the Company’sgmayment assumptions for the
Non-Agency RMBS. The prepayment model considers ctigiefd, forward yield, steepness of the interest rcurve, current mortgage ra
mortgage rates of the outstanding loan, loan agegim and volatility.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi

Greater than on Greater than fiv

year and less than  years and less Greater thal
Less than one ye five years than ten year ten years Total
Fair value
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ - $ - $ 73 % - $ 73
Senior intere-only 98 68,98 162,07! 33,56: 264,72:
Subordinate 5,37: 70,84 284,70: 109,67( 470,58t
Subordinated intereonly - - 12,43: 1,61¢ 14,04°
RMBS transferred to consolidat
VIEs 4,85: 375,59t 2,024,48 814,76: 3,219,69
Agency RMBS 72 201,42 1,846,04 27,26¢ 2,074,81
Total fair value $ 10,39¢ $ 716,85( $ 4,329,800 $ 986,87¢ $ 6,043,93
Amortized cos
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ - 8 - $ 57 $ - $ 57
Senior intere-only 1,19¢ 73,83t 177,12¢ 35,437 287,60(
Subordinate 4,16 61,837 226,13: 80,68t 372,81
Subordinated intere-only - - 13,21 1,39/ 14,60¢
RMBS transferred to consolidated
VIEs 4,55: 296,19( 1,392,24. 585,19¢ 2,278,18.
Agency RMBS 83 192,17 1,853,16 27,07" 2,072,50!
Total amortized cos $ 9,997 $ 624,03¢ $ 3,661,994 $ 729,79: $ 5,025,77!

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Lifi

Greater than on Greater than fivi
year and less the years and les Greater thal



Less than one ye five years than ten year ten year: Total
Fair value
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ = - $ 88 - 88
Senior intere-only 35¢ 47,20¢ 66,92° 8,37¢ 122,86¢
Subordinate 4,092 23,94¢ 359,31( 160,44« 547,79:
Subordinated intere-only - - 9,65¢ 6,59t 16,25¢
RMBS transferred to consolidated
VIEs 12,11¢ 312,69( 2,055,56: 893,82¢ 3,274,20.
Agency RMBS 14¢€ 1,802,721 3,831 - 1,806,69
Total fair value $ 16,71« 2,186,56. $ 2,495,38; 1,069,241 5,767,90!
Amortized cos
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ = - $ 72 - 72
Senior intere-only 657 58,037 70,04« 7,13( 135,86¢
Subordinate 2,64¢ 20,59: 318,42: 131,38! 473,04¢
Subordinated intereonly - - 11,05: 5,12¢ 16,18(
RMBS transferred to consolidal
VIEs 11,18¢ 248,69¢ 1,493,64 683,51¢ 2,437,044
Agency RMBS 157 1,716,96 3,47¢ - 1,720,59!
Total amortized cos $ 14,64" 2,044,29. $ 1,896,71 827,16. 4,782,81.
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The Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to credk. The Company seeks to mitigate credit risktigh its asset selection process. The
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is primarily collateralizdny what the Company classifies as Alt-A first limortgages. The Company
categorizes collateral as Alt-A regardless of whethe loans were originally described as “prinfahé behavior of the collateral when the
Company purchased the security more typically rédesnAlt-A. The Company defines Alt-A collaterddaracteristics to be evidenced by the
60+ day delinquency bucket of the pool being grrethizn 5% and the weighted average FICO scordmdinhe of origination as greater than
650. At June 30, 2013, 99.2% of the Non-Agency FaviBllateral was Alt-A. At December 31, 2012, 98.6f the Non-Agency RMBS
collateral was Alt-A.

The Non-Agency RMBS in the Portfolio have the fellog collateral characteristics at June 30, 20lB8@acember 31, 2012.

June 30, December
2013 31,2012

Weighted average maturity (yea 25.01 24.¢
Weighted average amortized loan to
value (1) 70.€% 71.€%
Weighted average FICO ( 713 717
Weighted average loan balance (in
thousands $415.( $453.1
Weighted average percentage owner
occupied 84.1% 85.1%
Weighted average percentage single
family residence 65.7% 65.5%
Weighted average current credit
enhancemer 1.€% 3.1%
Weighted average geographic
concentration of top five stat CA 35.6% CA 36.%

FL 9.2% FL 8.7
NY 6.5% NY 6.4%
NJ 2.7% VA 2.4%
MD 2% NI 2.&%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the collhta the time of
loan origination
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The table below presents the origination year efuhderlying loans related to the Company’s paddfof Non-Agency RMBS at June 30,
2013 and December 31, 2012.

December 31,
Origination Yeal June 30, 201 2012

2000 0.8% 0.2%
2001 1.5% 0.2%
2002 0.7% 0.C%
2003 0.€% 0.4%
2004 1.€% 0.6%
2005 17.2% 14.2%
2006 33.5% 34.6%
2007 42.1% 46.1%
2008 1.8% 3.C%
Total 100.(% 100.(%

During the quarter ended June 30, 2013, the CompaldyRMBS with a carrying value of $375.3 millitor a gross realized gain of $54.1
million. During the quarter ended June 30, 20h2,Eompany had no sales of RMBS. During the sirthmended June 30, 2013, the
Company sold RMBS with a carrying value of $375i8iom for a gross realized gain of $54.1 millioRuring the six months ended June 30,
2012, the Company sold RMBS with a carrying valti#a8.0 million for a gross realized gains of $1fillion. There were no securities
sold for a gross realized loss for the three arndnginth periods ended June 30, 2013 or 2012.

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company is considered to be the primary beiagfiof VIEs formed for the purpose of securitizwhole mortgage loans. Refer to Note
8 for additional details regarding the Companyiginement with VIES.

The securitized loans held for investment are edrait their principal balance outstanding, plusnordized premiums, less unaccreted
discounts and an allowance for loan losses. There wo new securitizations during the quarter anchenths ended June 30, 2013.



The following table provides a summary of the chemin the carrying value of securitized loans Hietdnvestment at June 30, 2013 and
December 31, 2012:
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For the Six Months
Ended For the Year Ende
June 30, 201 December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands

Balance, beginning of peric $ 1,300,13 $ 256,63:
Purchase - 1,531,01.
Principal paydown (367,76 (477,55
Net periodic amortization (accretio (9,079 (9,597)
Change to loan loss provisit 1,27¢ (36¢€)
Balance, end of peric $ 924,56t $ 1,300,13.

The following table represents the Company’s séized residential mortgage loans classified as falthvestment at June 30, 2013 and
December 31, 2012:

December 31,

June 30, 201 2012

(dollars in thousand:
Securitized loans, at amortized ¢ $ 934,15. $ 1,311,75!
Less: allowance for loan loss 9,58¢ 11,624
Securitized loans held for investme $ 924,56t $ 1,300,13

The securitized loan portfolio is collateralizeddnyme, jumbo, first lien residential mortgagesadfich 36.4% were originated during 2012,
39.4% were originated during 2011, 8.1% during 2@l the remaining 16.1% of the loans were origih@rior to 2010. A summary of k
characteristics of these loans follows.

December 31,

June 30, 201 2012
Number of loan: 1,207 1,61¢
Weighted average maturity (yea 28.C 28.2
Weighted average loan to value 71.(% 71.2%
Weighted average FICO ( 76€ 76¢
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 784.¢ $ 794.1
Weighted average percentage owner occu 93.% 94.6%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 69.6% 70.6%
Weighted average geographic concentration of topdtate: CA 349% CA 38.1%

NY 6.7% VA 6.2%
VA 54% NY 6.2%

NJ 5% WA 5.2%
WA 4.% NJ 4.€%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the collhta the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The following table summarizes the changes in tlssvance for loan losses for the securitized may&gkan portfolio at June 30, 2013 and
December 31, 2012:

For the Six Months

Ended For the Year Ende
June 30, 201 December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands
Balance, beginning of peric $ 11,62¢ $ 13,93¢
Provision for loan losse (1,279 36¢
Chargeoffs (759) (2,682)
Balance, end of peric $ 9,58¢ $ 11,62

The Company has established an allowance for losseb related to securitized loans that is composadjeneral and specific reserve. The
balance in the allowance for loan losses relateétaageneral reserve at June 30, 2013 and Dece3tb2012 was $3.3 million and $5.0
million, respectively. The balance in the allowarfior loan losses related to the specific reserdeiiae 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was
$6.3 million and $6.6 million, respectively.

The Company’s accounting policy for the provisionban losses is described in Note 2(g).

The total unpaid principal balance of impaired & which the Company established a specificriesaas $27.0 million and $29.1 million
at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respsctiféle Compar’s recorded investment in impaired loans for whidré is a relate



allowance for credit losses at June 30, 2013 arcDéer 31, 2012 was $19.4 million and $21.8 milli@spectively. Interest income on
impaired loans is not significant.

The total unpaid principal balance of non-impail@ghs for which the Company established a genesarve was $889.4 million and $1.3

billion at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 201pemws/ely. The Company’s recorded investment ankthat are not impaired for which
there is a related general reserve for credit basdune 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was $80i¢h and $1.3 billion, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the outstandinggpal balance of loans 30 days delinquent and greet reported by the servicer at June
30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days
Delinquent Delinquent Delinquent Bankruptcy Foreclosure REO Total
(dollars in thousand:
June 30, 201 $ 397 $ 0 % 291¢ $ 0 % 5200 $ 0 % 12,09:
December 31, 20 $ 3,11 $ 1,18¢ $ 4,045 $ 0 % 4,247 $ 1,39C $ 13,97¢

With the exception of its ability to approve centédan modifications, the Company is not involveithvihe servicing or modification of loans
held for investment. The trustee and servicehefrespective securitization are responsible foricgieg and modifying these loans. The
Company is required to make certain assumptioas@ounting for loans held for investment due tolitléation of information available to
the Company. The following table presents the dahat were modified by the servicer during thensonths ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

Unpaid Principeé  Unpaid Principe Amortized Cost 0 Amortized Cost 0
Number of Balance of Balance of Modified Loans Fo  Modified Loans Fo
Loans Modified Modified Loans  Amortized Cos Which There is Which There is
Modified During Loans (Pre- (Post- of Modified an Allowance for No Allowance for
Period modification) modification) Loans Loan Losse: Loan Losse:

(dollars in thousand:

Six Months Ende:
June 30, 201
June 30, 201

2,34¢ % 2,35¢ % 2,24¢  $ 2,248 $ 0

3 3
6 3% 342. % 3,53t $ 3,51¢  $ 3,51¢  $ 0

Loans are modified by the servicer as a methods¥ mitigation. Based on the information availableing the quarter and six months er
June 30, 2013, the Company determined that alkloaodified by the servicer were considered TDRsledimed under GAAP. A TDR is
generally any modification of a loan to a borrowreat is experiencing financial difficulties, wheadender agrees to terms that are more
favorable to the borrower than are otherwise akl@lan the current market. All loan modificationgrohg the quarters and six months ended
June 30, 2013 and 2012 included a reduction ostidied interest ratesl.oans modified by the servicer have been indivijuadsessed for
impairment and measurement of impairment is basetti® excess of the recorded investment in the dean the present value of the
expected cash flows, post modification, discoursetthe loan’s effective interest rate at inceptitmthe absence of additional loan
modifications by the servicer in future periodstthge considered to be TDRs, the $4.9 million spereéserve related to TDRs as of June 30,
2013 will be recognized in net income in futureipes by way of a decrease in the provision for ltmases. If there are further modificatic
the reduction of the cashflow is reflected in thevsion for loan losses.

As of June 30, 2013, there were no loans that wardified in the past twelve months and delinquenscheduled payments.
5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows fair value guidance in accomawith GAAP to account for its financial instruntenThe Company categorizes its
financial instruments, based on the priority of ityguts to the valuation technique, into a thraesldair value hierarchy. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted @siin active markets for identical assets or liabd (Level 1) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs usecheasure the financial instruments fall withirfeliént levels of the hierarchy, the
categorization is based on the lowest level inpat is significant to the fair value measuremerthefinstrument. Financial assets and
liabilities recorded at fair value on the Consdi@hStatements of Financial Condition or disclasetthe related notes are categorized based
on the inputs to the valuation techniques as fadtow

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imiglquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukktm of the financial instrument.
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Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.

Fair value measurements categorized within Lewak3sensitive to changes in the assumptions oradelbgy used to determine fair value
and such changes could result in a significaneiase or decrease in the fair value. For the Compamyestments in Non-Agency RMBS
categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hiefay, the significant unobservable inputs include discount rates, assumptions relating to
prepayments, default rates and loss severitiegifitignt increases (decreases) in any of the disttaies, default rates or loss severities in
isolation would result in a significantly lower @fier) fair value measurement. The impact of chaimgpsepayment speeds would have
differing impacts on fair value, depending on tkaisrity of the investment. Generally, a changthedefault assumption is accompanied by
directionally similar changes in the assumptioresdu®r the loss severity and the prepayment speed.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtktsy management to ensure the changes are agteopts markets and products

evolve and the pricing for certain products becomese transparent, the Company will continue toeefts valuation methodologies. The
methodology utilized by the Company for the peripdssented is unchanged. The methods used toqe@dfair value calculation may not

be indicative of net realizable value or reflectdfduture fair values. Furthermore, while the C@nyp believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market ppgrts, the use of different methodologies, or aggions, to determine the fair value of
certain financial instruments could result in datiént estimate of fair value at the reporting datee Company uses inputs that are current as
of the measurement date, which may include perddsarket dislocation, during which price transpememay be reduced.

During times of market dislocation, as has beereegpced for some time and continues to existotfservability of prices and inputs can be
difficult for certain Non-Agency RMBS. If third ply pricing services are unable to provide a pfarean asset, or if the price provided by
them is deemed unreliable by the Company, theagket will be valued at its fair value as determhibg the Company without validation to
third-party pricing. In addition, validating thigghrty pricing for the Companyinvestments may be more subjective as fewerggaatits ma
be willing to provide this service to the Companl§iquid investments typically experience gregbeice volatility as an active market does
exist. Observability of prices and inputs can vsignificantly from period to period and may causgruments to change classifications
within the three level hierarchy.

A description of the methodologies utilized by tbempany to estimate the fair value of its finana@iatruments by instrument class follows:
Short-term Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuad interest receivable, dividends payable, acduad interest payable are considered to
be a reasonable estimate of fair value due tohbe term nature of these financial instruments.

Agency and Nc-Agency RMBS

Generally, the Company determines the fair valuigsahvestment securities utilizing an internatprg model that incorporates such factors
as coupon, prepayment speeds, weighted averagedlfateral composition, borrower characteristegyected interest rates, life caps,
periodic caps, reset dates, collateral seasonkpgoted losses, expected default severity, cratidecement, and other pertinent factors.
Management reviews the fair values generated byntbael to determine whether prices are reflectivihe current market. Management
indirectly corroborates its estimates of the failue using pricing models by comparing its restdtsidependent prices provided by dealers in
the securities and/or third party pricing servic€ertain very liquid asset classes, such as Agéxregl-rate pass-throughs may be priced
using independent sources such as quoted pric8ofBe-Announced (“TBA”) securities.

The Agency RMBS market is considered to be an actiarket such that participants transact with sigffit frequency and volume to provide
transparent pricing information on an ongoing hasie liquidity of the Agency RMBS market and thmiarity of the Company’s securities
to those actively traded enable the Company torebsguoted prices in the market and utilize thaseep as a basis for formulating fair value
measurements. Consequently, the Company hasfidds&gency RMBS as having Level 2 inputs in thie falue hierarchy.
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The Company'’s fair value estimation process for Maency RMBS utilizes inputs other than quoted @sithat are observed in the market.
The Company’s estimate of prepayment, default avérity curves all involve Management judgment assumptions that are deemed to be
significant to the fair value measurement processch renders the resulting Néxgency RMBS fair value estimates Level 3 inputshia fair
value hierarchy.

Interest Rate Sway

The Company utilizes dealer quotes to determindainealues of its interest rate swaps. The Camypaompares the dealer quotations
received to its own estimate of fair value to easdufor reasonableness. The dealer quotes in@goommon market pricing methods,
including a spread measurement to the Treasurg giglve or interest rate swap curve as well asnlyidg characteristics of the particular
contract. Interest rate swaps are modeled by tmep@ay by incorporating such factors as the termaturity, Treasury curve, overnight
index swap rates, and the payment rates on the figetion of the interest rate swaps. The Compasydtassified the characteristics used to
determine the fair value of interest rate swaplsea®l| 2 inputs in the fair value hierarchy.

The Company'’s financial assets and liabilitiesiedrat fair value on a recurring basis, includihg evel in the fair value hierarchy, at June
30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 is presented below.

June 30, 2013
(dollars in thousand:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ = | 6 -9 73
Senior intere-only - - 264,72.
Subordinater - - 470,58t
Subordinated intere-only - - 14,047
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 3,219,69
Agency RMBS - 2,074,81 -
Interest rate sway - - -
Liabilities:

Interest rate sway - 35,35¢ -
Total $ - $2,110,171 $ 3,969,12i
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ = | 68 -3 88
Senior intere-only - - 122,86
Subordinate! - - 547,79«
Subordinated intere-only - - 16,25
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 3,274,20.
Agency RMBS - 1,806,69 -
Liabilities:
Interest rate sway - 53,93¢ -
Total $ - $1,860,631 $ 3,961,20

The table below provides a summary of the changése fair value of securities classified as Le/ak June 30, 2013 and December 31,
2012,
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Fair Value Reconciliation, Level

For the Six Months
Ended For the Year Ende
June 30, 201 December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMBS
Beginning balance Level 3 as< $ 3,961,20! $ 4,088,94!
Transfers in to Level 3 asst¢ - -
Transfers out of Level 3 assi - =
Purchase 174,66: 122,50¢

Principal payment (234,23 (516,37()
Sales (143,869 (328,26
Accretion of purchase discour 59,43t 98,80:
Gains (losses) included in net
income
Other than temporary credit
impairment losse (6,169) (132,25()
Realized gains (losses) on se 41,25¢ 48,43

Net unrealized gains (losses)
interest-only
RMBS (23,309 804
Gains (losses) included in other
comprehensive

income
Total unrealized gains (losses
for the perioc 130,13( 578,59:
Ending balance Level 3ass _ $ 3,969,12( $ 3,961,20:

There were no transfers to or from Level 3 forghemonths ended June 30, 2013 and for the yeardeDecember 31, 2012.
Sensitivity of Significant Inputs

The significant unobservable inputs used in theviailue measurement of the Company’s Non-Agency BMB: the weighted average
discount rates, constant prepayment speed (“CRRiulative default rate, and the loss severity.

Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the CPR, vagyding to interest rates, the type of investmeomditions in financial markets, and other
factors, none of which can be predicted with anyaiety. In general, when interest rates risés relatively less attractive for borrowers to
refinance their mortgage loans, and as a res@pgyment speeds tend to decrease. When intetestfa#l, prepayment speeds tend to
increase. For RMBS investments purchased at a prepgs prepayment speeds increase, the amourdamhathe Company earns decreases
as the purchase premium on the bonds amortizes thstn expected. Conversely, decreases in pregayspeeds result in increased income
and can extend the period over which the Comparyrties the purchase premium. For RMBS investmeuatshased at a discount, as
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of incoen@dmpany earns increases from the acceleratitreaiccretion of the discount into
interest income. Conversely, decreases in prepayspeeds result in decreased income as the aatadtibe purchase discount into interest
income occurs over a longer period.

Cumulative default rates represent an annualiziedofadefault on a group of mortgages. The constefault rate (“CDR”) represents the
percentage of outstanding principal balances irptia that are in default, which typically equatethe home being past 60-day and 90-day
notices and in the foreclosure process. When ttefates increase, expected cash flows on the ydgrcollateral decreases. When default
rates decrease, expected cash flows on the unugdyilateral increases.

Loss severity rates reflect the amount of loss etqukfrom a foreclosure and liquidation of the uhdeg collateral in the mortgage loan

pool. When a mortgage loan is foreclosed the teolédiis sold and the resulting proceeds are useditle the outstanding obligation. In
many circumstances, the proceeds from the sal@tifully repay the outstanding obligation. In thesses a loss is incurred by the

lender. Loss severity is used to predict how gdsiiure losses are likely to be. An increaseosslseverity results in a decrease in expected
future cashflows. A decrease in loss severityltedu an increase in expected future cashflows.

The discount rate refers to the interest rate usdiscounted cash flow analysis to determine tlesgnt value of future cash flows. The
discount rate takes into account not just the tralae of money, but also the risk or uncertaintyudfire cash flows. An increased uncerta
of future cash flows results in a higher discoatiér The discount rate used to calculate the ptesdue of the expected future cash flows is
based on the discount rate implicit in the secwagyof the last measurement date. As discourd natee up, the discounted cash flows are
reduced.
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A summary of the significant inputs used to estarthe fair value of Nomgency RMBS as of June 30, 2013 and December 3D, flows:

June 30, 201 December 31, 201
Significant Inputs Significant Inputs
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Discount Loss Discount Loss
Rate CPR CDR Severity Rate CPR CDR Severity
Range Range
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior 7.C% 6% - 6% 0%-0% 50%- 5C% 75% 11%-11% 0%-3% 50%- 58%
Senior intere-only 11.6%  1%-28% 0%-22% 50%- 85% 13.9%  1%-25%  0%-25% 50%- 85%
Subordinate 27.8%  1%-2C% 0%-22% 50%- 8% 25.%%  1%-18%  0%-21% 50%- 8%
Subordinated interest-
only 15% 4%-13% 0%-2C% 50%- 64% 13.3%  4%-11% 0%-21% 50%- 68%

RMBS transferred to
consolidated
VIEs 52% 1%-2C% 0%-32% 50%- 85% 5806 1%-15%  0%-36% 50%-85%
All of the significant inputs listed have some degof market observability, based on the Compakysvledge of the market, information
available to market participants, and use of commarket data sources. Collateral default and legerity projections are in the form of
“curves” that are updated quarterly to reflect @mmpany’s collateral cash flow projections. Methoded to develop these projections
conform to industry conventions. The Company usssi@ptions it considers its best estimate of futash flows for each respective secu

The discount rates applied to the expected caslsfto determine fair value are derived from a raoiggbservable prices on securities bac
by similar collateral. As the market becomes nwrkess liquid, the availability of these obseneainiputs will change.

The prepayment speed specifies the percentage abthateral balance that is expected to pay offagh point in the future. The prepayment
speed is based on factors such as collateral Fi©f@ sloan-to-value ratio, debt-toeome ratio, and vintage on a loan level basisiaisdalec
up or down to reflect recent collateral-specifiegyment experience as obtained from remittancatsepnd market data services.

Default vectors are determined from the currenpépne” of loans that are more than 30 days dekmgiuin foreclosure, bankruptcy, or are
real estate owned (“REQ”). These delinquent loaterthine the first 30 months of the default cuBeyond month 30, the default curve
transitions to a value that is reflective of a portof the current delinquency pipeline.

The curve generated to reflect the Company’s expass severity is based on collatesjpécific experience with consideration given toec
mitigating collateral characteristics. Charact@&ssuch as seasoning are taken into considerbgicause severities tend to initially increase
on newly originated securities, before beginningdacline as the collateral ages and eventuallyilete® Collateral characteristics such as
loan size, loan-to-value, and geographic locatibcodateral also effect loss severity.

Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company carries securitized loans held forstrment at principal value, plus unamortized prensiuiess unaccreted discounts and an
allowance for loan losses. The Company estimateéair value of its securitized loans held foraatment by considering the loan
characteristics, including the credit charactessstif the borrower, purpose of the loan, use ottikateral securing the loan, and
management’s expectations of general economic tiongliin the sector and greater economy.

Repurchase Agreemet

Repurchase agreements are collateralized finati@ngactions utilized by the Company to acquiregtment securities. Due to the short
term nature of these financial instruments, the Gamy estimates the fair value of these repurchgeements using the contractual
obligation plus accrued interest payable at maturit

Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferred tesGlalated VIEs and Securitized Debt, Loans Heldrfeestment

The Company records securitized debt for certifisair notes financed without recourse to the Compagsecuritization or re-securitization
transactions treated as secured borrowings. Tihgp@oy carries securitized debt at the principadhed outstanding plus unamortized
premiums, less unaccreted discounts recorded inemtion with the financing of the loans or RMBShird parties. The premiums or
discounts associated with the financing of the siotecertificates are amortized over the contrddifieeof the instrument using the interest
method. The Company estimates the fair value airiiized debt by estimating the future cash flassociated with the underlying assets
collateralizing the secured debt outstanding. Thepany models the fair value of each underlyirggby considering, among other items,
the structure of the underlying security, coupamyiger, actual and expected defaults, actual apdaed default severities, reset indices, and
prepayment speeds in conjunction with market resefar similar collateral performance and managehsesxpectations of general econol
conditions in the sector and other economic factors
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The following table presents the carrying value &idvalue, as described above, of the Compangantial instruments not carried at fair
value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2013 andker 31, 2012.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Level in Fair
Value Carrying
Hierarchy Amount  Fair Value
Securitized loans held for investm 3 924,56t 908,01t
Repurchase agreeme; 2 (1,478,14) (1,480,52)
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 3 (1,128,75) (1,143,81)
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifieestmen 3 (805,229  (797,60.)
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Level in Fair
Value Carrying
Hierarchy Amount  Fair Value
Securitized loans held for investm 3 1,300,13: 1,320,69
Repurchase agreeme! 2 (1,528,02) (1,531,51)
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 3 (1,336,26) (1,334,55)
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifeestmen 3 (1,169,71) (1,194,74)

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $1.5 billion and $ill®b of repurchase agreements with weighted ayetaorrowing rates of 0.43% and
0.52% and weighted average remaining maturitic@alays and 56 days as of June 30, 2013 and Dec&hp2012, respectively. At June
30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, Agency RMBS pledgembllateral under these repurchase agreemeah@hastimated fair value of $1.6
billion, respectively. The average daily balanotthe Companys repurchase agreements for the six months enaed3ly 2013 and the ye
ended December 31, 2012 were $1.4 billion and B®i&n, respectively. The interest rates of themgurchase agreements are generally
indexed to the one-month or the three-month LIB@t and re-price accordingly.

At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the repsechgreements collateralized by Agency RMBS hadolfowing remaining maturities.
December 31

June 30, 201 2012
(dollars in thousand:

Overnight $ 6,65¢ $ -
1-29 days 771,16: 732,80¢
30 to 59 day: 514,87. 325,91!
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day - 211,13
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 185,45: 258,16¢
Total $ 1478,14 $ 1,528,02

At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Comgiainyot have an amount at risk under its repurela@seements greater than 10% of its
equity with any counterparty.

7. Securitized Debt
All of the Company’s securitized debt is collateratl by residential mortgage loans or Non-AgencyB8M For financial reporting purposes,
the Company’s securitized debt is accounted faeasred borrowings. Thus, the residential mortdeges or RMBS held as collateral are

recorded in the assets of the Company as secudritaas held for investment or Non-Agency RMBS s$farred to consolidated VIEs and the
securitized debt is recorded as a non-recourstitjaib the accompanying Consolidated StatemefitSimancial Condition.
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At June 30, 2013 the Company'’s securitized debatohlized by residential mortgage loans had ecgpal balance of $806.5 million. The
debt matures between the years 2023 and 2042unkt30, 2013 the debt carried a weighted averagfeo€dinancing equal to 3.35%. At
December 31, 2012 the Company’s securitized ddlatemlized by residential mortgage loans hadircfpal balance of $1.2 billion. The
debt matures between the years 2023 and 2042.eéé¢rber 31, 2012 the debt carried a weighted agarags of financing equal to 3.37%.

At June 30, 2013 the Company'’s securitized debatohlized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principal bakaof $1.2 billion. The debt
matures between the years 2035 and 2047. At Jur033 the debt carried a weighted average cdstaricing equal to 4.36%. At
December 31, 2012 the Company'’s securitized ddlztemlized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principaldvade of $1.4 billion. The debt
matures between the years 2035 and 2047. At DemreBih 2012 the debt carried a weighted averageofdisiancing equal to 4.41%.

The carrying value of securitized debt is base@tamortized cost, net of premiums or discounistee to sales of senior certificates to third
parties. The following table presents the estighaténcipal repayment schedule of the securitizelok édt June 30, 2013 and December 31,
2012, based on expected cash flows of the resalentirtgage loans or RMBS, as adjusted for progeldsses on the underlying collateral of
the debt. All of the securitized debt recordethims Company’s Consolidated Statements of Fina@maldition is non-recourse to the
Company.

December 31
June 30, 201 2012
(dollars in thousand:

Within One Yeal $ 511,81 $ 658,42:
One to Three Yeal 640,81: 793,15(
Three to Five Year 327,25t 430,99
Greater Than or Equal to Five Yei 380,78t 555,71
Total $ 186066 $ 2,438,28

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt arpeshelent upon cash flows received from the undeglioans. The estimate of their
repayment is based on scheduled principal paynoentise underlying loans. This estimate will diffesm actual amounts to the extent
prepayments and/or loan losses are experiencezeiN&es 3 and 4 for a more detailed discussiohe&ecurities and loans collateralizing
securitized debt.

8. Consolidated Securitization Vehicles and Othevariable Interest Entities

Since its inception, the Company has created VbE$Te purpose of securitizing whole mortgage laam®-securitizing RMBS and obtaini
permanent, non-recourse term financing. The Compaajuated its interest in each VIE to determirieid the primary beneficiary.

The Company’s accounting policy for accounting aadsolidation considerations of VIEs is describedlote 2(a).

As of June 30, 2013, the Company’s ConsolidateteBtants of Financial Condition includes ten comaikd VIEs with $4.2 billion of assets
and $1.9 billion of liabilities. As of December,32012, the Company’s Consolidated Statementsrarigial Condition includes ten
consolidated VIEs with $4.6 billion of assets ad5Hhillion of liabilities.

VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Beneficia

The retained beneficial interests in VIEs for whihle Company is the primary beneficiary are typyctide subordinated tranches of these re-
securitizations and in some cases the Company widyiriterests in additional tranches. The restuttomsolidation at June 30, 2013 is the
inclusion of $3.2 billion of Non-Agency RMBS at faialue representing the underlying securitieefttusts, the inclusion of $924.6 million
of securitized loans held for investment, the redton of $1.1 billion of securitized debt assoemiwvith Non-Agency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs and $805.2 million of securitizkgbt associated with loans held for investmenadadition, at June 30, 2013 the Company
recognized $20.1 million and $6.5 million of acalusterest receivable and accrued interest payedsegectively, of the securitizations.
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The table below reflects the assets and liabiltse®rded in the Consolidated Statements of Fimd@mndition related to the consolidated

VIEs as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

December 31,

June 30, 201

2012

(dollars in thousand:

Assets
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIE: $
Securitized loans held for investm
Accrued interest receivat
Liabilities
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-
Agency RMBS $
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans he
for investmen
Accrued interest payak

3,219,69. $
924,56t
20,13¢

1,128,75. $

805,22¢
6,49¢

3,274,20
1,300,13.
24,08:

1,336,26.

1,169,711
8,35¢

Income and expense and OTTI amounts related tmtidated VIES recorded in the Consolidated StatémehOperations and

Comprehensive Income (Loss) is presented in tHe tzddow.

For the Quarter Ende

June 30, 201

June 30, 201

(dollars in thousand:

Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 93,93t $ 109,49:
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE (24,987) (19,480
Net interest incom 68,95« $ 90,01
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: - $ (3,889
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensi

income (loss - (48,087)
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss -$ (51,964

For the Six Months Ende

June 30, 201

June 30, 201

(dollars in thousand:

Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 190,66 $ 207,84.
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE (51,979 (53,529
Net interest incom 138,68t $ 154,31:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss -$ (7,269
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensi\

income (loss (13%) (73,137
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (135 $ (80,407

The amounts recorded on the Consolidated Stateroé@tash Flows related to consolidated VIEs is @nésd in the table below for the

periods presented.

For the Quarter Ende

(Accretion) amortization of investment
discounts/premiums, n

Amortization of deferred financing cos
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt
discounts/premiums, n

Payment of deferred financing co

Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings,
collateralized by loans held for investm:
Principal payments, NoAgency RMBS transferred
consolidated VIE"

Principal payments, Securitized loans held for
investmen

Payments on securitized debt borrowir

June 30, 201  June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

(32,82) (32,539

1,73¢€ 2,04¢

2,94( (8,98¢6)

- (3,709

- 405,41

125,39° 131,14:
156,32¢ 93,081



collateralized by loans held for investm: (154,02) (90,765
Payments on securitized debt borrowings,

collateralized by Nc-Agency RMBS (115,83) (128,049
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest recei 2,142 1,557
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa (890) 162
Net cash provided by/(used in) consolidated $ (15,039 $ 369,36¢

For the Six Months Ende

June 30, 201

June 30, 201

(dollars in thousand:

(Accretion) amortization of investment

discounts/premiums, n (63,149 (64,667)
Amortization of deferred financing cos 3,85( $ 5,26t
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt

discounts/premiums, n 4,75 (889
Payment of deferred financing co - (8,079
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings,

collateralized by loans held for investm: - 1,101,52
Principal payments, NoAgency RMBS transferred

consolidated VIE" 230,94 263,77:
Principal payments, Securitized loans held for

investmen 367,76! 114,14¢
Payments on securitized debt borrowings,

collateralized by loans held for investm: (363,45) (110,49)
Payments on securitized debt borrowings,

collateralized by Nc-Agency RMBS (213,29) (257,939
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest recei 3,94¢ (474)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa (1,869 1,423
Net cash provided by/(used in) consolidated V $ (30,499 $ 1,043,61.
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VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Bieraafy
The Company has interests in the following VIEsddition to the RMBS described in Note 3.

The Company’s involvement with VIEs for which itrist considered the primary beneficiary generallinithe form of owning securities
issued by the trusts, similar to its investmentstirer RMBS that do not provide the Company witloatrolling financial interest. The
Company’s maximum exposure to loss does not inotiber-than-temporary impairments or other writevds that the Company previously
recognized through earnings.

The table below represents the carrying amountskssification of assets recorded on the Compamgrsolidated financial statements
related to its variable interests in non-consolda¥IEs, as well as its maximum exposure to loss @sult of its involvement with these
VIEs, which is represented by the fair value of @@mmpany’s investments in the trusts.

June 30, 201 December 31, 201
Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
(dollars in thousand:
Assets

Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 57 $ 73 % 72 $ 85
Senior intere-only - 78 - 12¢
Subordinate! 17¢€ 2,12¢ 581 2,26¢
Agency RMBE 81z 584 1,19¢ 1,001
Total $ 1,04¢ $ 2,86( $ 1,851 % 3,48(

9. Interest Rate Swaps

In connection with the Company’s interest rate nsknagement strategy, the Company economicallydsedgortion of its interest rate risk
by entering into derivative financial instrumennt@cts in the form of interest rate swaps. Then@any’s swaps are used to lock in a fixed
rate related to a portion of its current and aptitéd payments on its repurchase agreements. Thedly typically agrees to pay a fixed rate
of interest (“pay rate”) in exchange for the rightreceive a floating rate of interest (“receiveefpover a specified period of time. These
derivative financial instrument contracts are negignated as hedges for GAAP. The use of inteagstswaps creates exposure to credit risk
relating to potential losses that could be recagphif the counterparties to these instrumentddaierform their obligations under the
contracts. In the event of a default by the coynatety, the Company could have difficulty obtainitgRMBS pledged as collateral for
swaps. The Company periodically monitors the ¢refdits counterparties to determine if it is expdgo counterparty credit risk. See Note 14
for further discussion of counterparty credit risk.

The table below summarizes the location and fdirevaf interest rate swaps reported in the Conatdidl Statements of Financial Conditiol
of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

Net Estimated Fa

Value
Location on Consolidated Net Estimated Fa  of Agency RMBS
Statements of Value/Carrying Pledged as
Financial Conditior Notional Amouni Value Collateral
(dollars in thousands
June 30, 201 Liabilities $ 1,355,000 $ (35,359 $ 37,71¢
December 31, 201 Liabilities $ 1,355,000 $ (53,939 $ 60,38:

The effect of the Company’s interest rate swaptherConsolidated Statements of Operations and Gemepsive Income (Loss) is presented
below.

Location on Consolidated Statements of Operations
and
Comprehensive Income (Los
Net Unrealized Gains Net Realized Gains
(Losses) on (Losses)
Interest Rate Swayj on Interest Rate Swa|

(dollars in thousand:

For the Quarter

Ended:
June 30, 201 $ 13,17¢ $ (5,39))
June 30, 201 $ (10,999 $ (5,194

For the Six Months Ende:



June 30, 201 $ 18,58( $ (10,927
June 30, 201 $ (10,180 $ (9,592)
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The weighted average pay rate on the Company’seisiteate swaps at June 30, 2013 was 1.81% amvdeilghted average receive rate was
0.19%. The weighted average pay rate on the Coygarierest rate swaps at December 31, 2012 v&i9d and the weighted average
receive rate was 0.21%.

The following table summarizes the notional amoamd unrealized gains (losses) of interest ratgwatracts on a gross basis, amounts
offset in accordance with netting arrangementsragichmounts as presented in the Consolidated Stateraf Financial Condition as of June
30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

June 30, 2013
(dollars in thousand:
Interest Rate Swaj- Asset Interest Rate Sway- Liability

Unrealized Unrealized
Notional Gains Notional Losses
Gross Amountt $ - $ -$ 1,355,000 $ 35,35¢
Amounts Offset - - - -
Netted Amount:  $ - $ -$ 1,355,000 $ 35,35¢
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Interest Rate Swaj- Asset Interest Rate Sway- Liability
Unrealized Unrealized
Notional Gains Notional Losses
Gross Amount: $ - $ -$ 1,355,000 $ 53,93¢
Amounts Offset - - - -
Netted Amount:  $ - $ - $ 1,355,000 $ 53,93¢

All of the Company’s derivative contracts are sgbje International Swaps and Derivatives AssosiaiMaster Agreements (“ISDA”) which
contain provisions that grant counterparties centigihts with respect to the applicable ISDA uplea@ dccurrence of (i) negative performance
that results in a decline in net assets in excespeazified thresholds or dollar amounts over setools of time, (ii) the Company’s failure to
maintain its REIT status, (iii) the Company’s fadito comply with limits on the amount of leveragad (iv) the Company’s stock being
delisted from the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE)ob the occurrence of items (i) through (iv), teemterparty to the applicable ISDA
has a right to terminate the ISDA in accordancé s provisions. The aggregate fair value of allightive instruments with credit-risk-
related contingent features that are in a netlitglposition at June 30, 2013 is approximately #3%illion including accrued interest, which
represents the maximum amount the Company woutédugired to pay upon termination, which is fullylateralized.

10. Common Stock

On January 28, 2011 the Company entered into aityetjstribution agreement with FIDAC and UBS Setias LLC (“UBS”). Through this
agreement, the Company may sell through UBS, aslés agent, up to 125,000,000 shares of its constozk in ordinary brokers’
transactions at market prices or other transacasregreed between the Company and UBS. The Cgndidinot sell any shares of its
common stock under the equity distribution agredrdening the quarters and six months ended Jun2C8 and 2012.

On September 24, 2009, the Company implementedidddid Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan (‘DRSFRe DRSPP provides
holders of record of its common stock an opportutatautomatically reinvest all or a portion of theash distributions received on common
stock in additional shares of the Company’s comstook as well as to make optional cash paymergsitthase shares of its common stock.
Persons who are not already stockholders may alsthase the Company’s common stock under the plaagh optional cash

payments. The DRSPP is administered by the Adinéitg, Computershare. The DRSPP was suspendawydhe quarter ended March 31,
2012 when the Company was no longer current ffilitgs with the SEC. There were no shares isaaged part of the DRSPP during the
quarter and six months ended June 30, 2013 diretsuspension of the DRSPP. During the six masthed June 30, 2012 the Company
raised $117 thousand by issuing 39,000 sharesghrtine DRSPP. All 39,000 shares issued througiDBR®PP were issued in the first
quarter of 2012.

As a result of the Company’s delay in filing itsGEeports by the filing date required by the SE®I(iding the grace period permitted by

Rule 12b25 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, a=naied), the Company will not be able to issue shafeommon stock under t
equity distribution agreement or the DRSPP unftiidis with the SEC have been timely made for aya#r.
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During the quarter ended June 30, 2013 the Comg@edhared dividends to common shareholders tot&#®y4 million, or $0.09 per

share. During the quarter ended June 30, 2012 dnepany declared dividends to common shareholdéabrtg $92.4 million, or $0.09 per
share. During the six months ended June 30, 284 8bmpany declared dividends to common sharelstd&aling $184.9 million, or $0.18
per share. During the six months ended June 3@ #& Company declared dividends to common shhtetsototaling $205.4 million, or
$0.20 per share.

Earnings per share for the quarters and six maeritded June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, arputeah as follows:
For the Quarter Ende

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands

Numerator:

Net income $ 143,20 $ 40,78:
Effect of dilutive securities: - -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 143,20" $ 40,78:

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 1,027,066,04 1,026,809,70
Effect of dilutive securities 527,401 695,54
Weighted average diluted shares 1,027,593,44 1,027,505,24
Net income per average share attributab

common stockholders - Basic $ 0.14 % 0.0¢
Net income per average share attributab

common stockholders - Diluted $ 0.14 $ 0.0¢

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Numerator:
Net income $ 223,00¢ $ 121,01«
Effect of dilutive securities: -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 223,00¢ $ 121,01

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 1,027,052,34 1,026,785,89
Effect of dilutive securities 542,13: 711,52:
Weighted average dilutive shares 1,027,594,47 1,027,497,41
Net income per average share attributab

common stockholders - Basic $ 0.2: $ 0.1z
Net income per average share attributab

common stockholders - Diluted $ 0.2z $ 0.12

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents the changes in thegmrants of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incd®@ClI”) for the six months ended
June 30, 2013:

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized gains

(losses) on
available-
for-sale securities Total Accumulate
net OCI Balance
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 989,93¢ $ 989,93¢

OCI before reclassificatior 95,01: 95,01:



Amounts reclassified from AOCI (47,960 (47,960
Net current period OC 47,05 47,05
Balance as of June 30, 2013 $ 1,036,98: $ 1,036,98:
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The following table presents the details of thdagsifications from AOCI for the six months endedd 30, 2013:

June 30, 201
(dollars in
thousands
Amounts
Reclassified
from Affected Line on the Consolidated
Accumulated Statements Of Operations And
Details about Accumulated OCI Compone OClI Comprehensive Income (Los
Unrealized gains and losses on avail-for-sale securitie
$ 54,12¢ Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investrn
(6,162 Net othe-than-temporary credit impairment losses
$ 47,96( Income (loss) before income tax
- Income taxes
$ 47,96( Net of tax

12. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptareto provide incentives to its independentaes and employees of FIDAC and its
affiliates, to reward their efforts, to attractyad and retain personnel and other service prosj@dad to align their interest with the common
share investors. The incentive plan authorizeCibmpensation Committee of the board of directorgrant awards, including incentive st
options, nongualified stock options, restricted shares andraijyyges of incentive awards. The specific awahtgd to an individual is bas
upon, in part, the individual’s position within FAT, the individual’s position within the Companyistor her contribution to the Company’s
performance, as well as the recommendations of EIDAhe incentive plan authorizes the grantingmifams or other awards of 8.0% of the
outstanding shares of the Company’s common stodhk apceiling of 40,000,000 shares.

On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restritterk awards in the amount of 1,301,000 sharemfuiayees of FIDAC and its affiliates
and the Company’s independent directors. The asmarthe independent directors vested on the dagjeaat and the awards to FIDAC's
employees vest quarterly over a period of 10 yeassof June 30, 2013 there was $1.6 million o&ktoinrecognized compensation costs
related to non-vested share-based compensatiamgameents granted under the long term incentive, jplased on the closing price of the
shares at quarter end. That cost is expected tedognized over a period of 4.5 years. The tataMalue of shares vested, less those
forfeited, during the quarters ended June 30, 20182012 was $87 thousand and $88 thousand, rasghecbased on the closing price of -
stock on the vesting date. The total fair valustwdres vested, less those forfeited, during thexenths ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was
$160 thousand and $170 thousand, respectively theajuarters ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, coatfmmexpense associated with the
amortization of the fair value of the restrictedckt was approximately $94 thousand and $88 thoysasgectively. For the six months en
June 30, 2013 and 2012, compensation expense atesbuiith the amortization of the fair value of tketricted stock was approximately
$172 thousand and $169 thousand, respectively.

The Company’s independent directors receive a fdathr amount of the Company’s common stock innmefor services provided to the
Company. Equity based awards granted to the inkp# directors vest during the year of servicer the quarters ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, the Company recognized $75 thousand perejuzrstock based compensation to independenttdigecFor the six months ended June
30, 2013 and 2012, the Company recognized $15Gémuliper period of stock based compensation t@erdient directors.
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The following table presents information with resjpi the Company restricted stock awards during the quarters anohenths ended Ju
30, 2013 and 2012:

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
Weighted
Weighted Average
Number of Average Grant Number of Grant Date Fai
Shares Date Fair Value Shares Value
Unvested shares outstanding -
beginning of periot 556,70( 17.72 726,80( 17.72
Grantec - - - -
Vested (27,249 17.72 (31,399 17.72
Forfeited (2,052 17.7: (202) 17.7:
Unvested shares outstanding - e
of period 527,40( 17.72 695,20( 17.72
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
Weighted
Weighted Average
Number of Average Grani Number of Grant Date Fai
Shares Date Fair Value Shares Value
Unvested shares outstand-
beginning of periot 586,00( 17.72 758,40( 17.72
Grantec - - - -
Vested (54,587 17.7% (62,819 17.72
Forfeited (4,019 17.72 (387 17.72
Unvested shares outstanding - €
of period 527,40( 17.72 695,20! 17.72

13. Income Taxes

For the six months ended June 30, 2013, the Compagryqualified to be taxed as a REIT under Codéi@ex856 through 860. As a REIT,
the Company is not subject to federal income takéoextent that it makes qualifying distributiarfgaxable income to its stockholders. To
maintain qualification as a REIT, the Company ndistribute at least 90% of its annual REIT taxabt®me to its shareholders and meet
certain other requirements such as assets it nldyihoome it may generate and its shareholder asitipn. It is generally the Company’s
policy to distribute to its shareholders all of thempany’s taxable income.

The state and local tax jurisdictions for which @@mpany is subject to tax-filing obligations renxg the Company’s status as a REIT, and
therefore, the Company generally does not pay igctax in such jurisdictions. The Company may, havebe subject to certain minimum
state and local tax filing fees and its TRS is sabjo federal, state, and local taxes.

The Company did not recognize any income tax expérseach of the quarters ended June 30, 2012@H2l For each of the six months
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorcehe tax expense of $2 thousand, respectively.

In general, common stock cash dividends declaretid¥ompany will be considered ordinary incomsttazkholders for income tax
purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capitasgai return of capital.

The Company'’s effective tax rate differs from ignbined federal, state and city corporate statusxyate primarily due to the deduction of
dividend distributions required to be paid unded€&ection 857(a).

The Company’s 2012, 2011 and 2010 federal, statdcmal tax returns remain open for examination.
14. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeelit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to interest rate risk in
connection with its investments in Agency and NageAcy RMBS, residential mortgage loans, and bomgw/under repurchase
agreements. When the Company assumes interesistgti attempts to minimize interest rate riekaugh asset selection, hedging and
matching the income earned on mortgage assetghweitbost of related liabilities. The Company atsrto minimize credit risk through due
diligence and asset selection by purchasing loadsmwritten to agreed-upon specifications of seleariginators. The Company has
established a whole loan target market includingi@hborrowers with FICO scores generally greatanté50, Alt-A documentation,
geographic diversification, owner-occupied propeatyd moderate loan-to-value ratios. These faei@sonsidered to be important
indicators of credit risk.

By using derivative hedging instruments and repasetagreements, the Company is exposed to courtjecpadit risk if counterparties to t
contracts do not perform as expected. If a countgyrgails to perform on a derivative hedging instient, the Compar's counterparty cred



risk is equal to the amount reported as a derigaset on its balance sheet to the extent thairgregceeds collateral obtained from the
counterparty or, if in a net liability position,afextent to which collateral posted exceeds thulilia to the counterparty. The amounts repo

as a derivative asset/(liability) are derivativenracts in a gain/(loss) position, and to the eixéeject to master netting arrangements, net of
derivatives in a loss/(gain) position with the satbanterparty and collateral received/(pledgedhéf counterparty fails to perform on a
repurchase agreement, the Company is exposeass &0 the extent that the fair value of collatptatiged exceeds the liability to the
counterparty. The Company attempts to minimizentenparty credit risk by evaluating and monitorthg counterparty’s credit, executing
master netting arrangements and obtaining collatend executing contracts and agreements withiphelitounterparties to reduce exposure
to a single counterparty, where appropriate.
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Our repurchase agreements and derivative transadci®@ governed by underlying agreements that geedair a right of setoff under master
netting arrangements, including in the event oadkfor in the event of bankruptcy of either pddyhe transactions. We present our assets
and liabilities subject to such arrangements oataasis in our consolidated statements of findicoiadition. The following table presents
information about our liabilities that are subjezsuch arrangements and can potentially be affsetur consolidated statements of financial
condition as of June 30, 2013 and December 31,.20h2 Company has no financial instruments suligeotaster netting arrangements, or
similar arrangements, in an asset position on asgasis.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Amounts Not Offset with Financ
Assets (Liabilities) in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Positi
Gross Amounts Net Amounts Offse

Offset in
in the Consolidated  the Consolidated
Gross Amounts ¢ Statements of Statements of Cash Collatere
Recognized Asse Financial Financial Financial (Received)
(Liabilities) Position Position Instruments Pledgec Net Amount
Repurchas:
agreement $ (1,478,14) $ - % (1,478,14) $ 1,553,07 $ - % 74,93¢
Derivatives $ (35,359 - (35,359 $ 37,71¢ - 2,36(
Total Liabilities $ (1,513,50) $ - 3 (1,513,50) $ 1,590,79 $ - 3 77,29¢
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Amounts Not Offset with Financ
Assets (Liabilities) in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Positi
Gross Amounts Net Amounts Offse
Offset in
in the Consolidate: the Consolidated
Gross Amounts ¢ Statements of Statements of Cash Collatere
Recognized Asse Financial Financial Financial (Received)
(Liabilities) Position Position Instruments Pledgec Net Amount
Repurchas
agreement $ (1,528,02) $ -8 (1,528,02) $ 1,604,560 $ - $ 76,53t
Derivatives $ (53,939 - (53,939 $ 60,38: - 6,440
Total Liabilities $ (1,581,96) $ - $ (1,581,96) $ 1,664,94 $ - $ 82,97¢

15. Management Agreement and Related Party Transtions

The Company entered into a management agreemdnEWAC, which provided for an initial term througrecember 31, 2010 with an
automatic one-year extension option and subjecettain termination rights. The Compensation Cotteaiof the Board of Directors
renewed the management agreement through Decerhp20B3. In 2011 and 2010, the Company paid FI2Aquarterly management fee
equal to 1.50% per annum of the gross Stockholdageity (as defined in the management agreemerijeo€ompany. Effective November
28, 2012, the management fee was reduced to 0.85%npum of gross Stockholders’ Equity, which reiduncwill remain in effect until the
Company is current on all of its filings requiredder applicable securities laws.

Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for tleatgrs ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $6i6malhd $12.9 million
respectively. Management fees accrued and pdtixAC for the six months ended June 30, 2013 ari®2@ere $12.9 million and $25.8
million respectively.

Under the management agreement, the Company gatdxdi to reimburse FIDAC for its costs incurrederritie management agreement. In
addition, the management agreement permits FIDA@daire the Company to pay for its pro rata portdrent, telephone, utilities, office
furniture, equipment, machinery and other officéeinal and overhead expenses that FIDAC incunredmnnection with the Company’s
operations. These expenses are allocated betWwB&CFand the Company based on the ratio of the Gomis proportion of gross assets
compared to the gross assets managed by FIDAJ@datad at each quarter end. FIDAC and the Comppalh modify this allocation
methodology, subject to the approval of the Comjsbgard of directors if the allocation becomegjinitable (i.e., if the Company becomes
very highly leveraged compared to FIDAC’s otherdsimnd accounts). During the quarter and six nsoatided June 30, 2013, the Company
reimbursed FIDAC approximately $129 thousand arB&Bousand for such expenses, respectively. Duhie quarter and six months en
June 30, 2012, the Company reimbursed FIDAC apprataly $125 thousand and $240 thousand for suckresegs, respectively.
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The Company and FIDAC amended the management agre@m March 8, 2013. In the amendment, the résluat the management fee
was memorialized. In addition, FIDAC agreed tg pH past and future expenses that the Companipatite Audit Committee of the
Company incur to: (1) evaluate the Company’s actingrpolicy related to the application of GAAP te Non-Agency RMBS portfolio (the
“Evaluation”); (2) restate the Company’s finangtdtements for the period covering 2008 throughl2dxla result of the Evaluation (the
“Restatement Filing”)and (3) investigate and evaluate any shareholderadi’e demands arising from the Evaluation andtierRestateme
Filing (the “Investigation”); provided, however,ahFIDAC'’s obligation to pay expenses applies dolgxpenses not paid by the Company’s
insurers under its insurance policies. Expensal isiclude, without limitation, fees and costsuned with respect to auditors, outside
counsel, and consultants engaged by the Compargrahd Audit Committee of the Company for the Enaion, Restatement Filing and the
Investigation. The amount paid by FIDAC relatedhese expenses for the quarter and six monthglehde 30, 2013 is $3.3 million and
$5.2 million, respectively, and is presented in@momsolidated Statements of Operations and Compsaleincome (Loss) as Expense
recoveries from Manager. There were no amountsipaFIDAC related to these expenses for the quartd six months ended June 30,
2012.

The amendment also provides that the independesttdis or the holders of a majority of the outdtag shares of common stock (other than
those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elextérminate the management agreement upon 30 déige it any time in their sole discreti
without the payment of a termination fee. The admeant also provides that the Company may termitetenanagement agreement effec
immediately if (i) FIDAC engages in any act of fcaumisappropriation of funds, or embezzlement aggahe Company, (ii) there is an event
of any gross negligence on the part of FIDAC inglkeformance of its duties under the managemeeeawent, (iii) there is a commencement
of any proceeding relating to FIDAC’s bankruptcyirsolvency, (iv) there is a dissolution of FIDA@, (v) FIDAC is convicted of (including

a plea of nolo contendere) a felony.

On March 1, 2011, the Company entered into an aidirétive services agreement with RCap Securities ["RCap”). RCap is a SEC-
registered broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsjddf Annaly that clears the Company’s securitiedes in return for normal and
customary fees that RCap charges for such servR€map may also provide brokerage services to tmapgany from time to time. During tl
quarter and six months ended June 30, 2013, fedspRCAP were $35 thousand and $69 thousandecéisply. During the quarter and six
months ended June 30, 2012, fees paid to RCAP $&&¢housand and $73 thousand, respectively.

During the quarters ended June 30, 2013 and 2®1.20Q shares and 31,600 shares of restricted &tsg&d by the Company to FIDAC's
employees vested, respectively. During the sixttmoended June 30, 2013 and 2012, 58,600 shareg3a2@D shares of restricted stock
issued by the Company to FIDAC’s employees vestspectively.

16. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become invoinedhrious claims and legal actions arising indhdinary course of business. In
connection with certain re-securitization transatsi engaged in by the Company, the Company hasbtfgation under certain circumstances
to repurchase assets from the VIE upon breachrtdingepresentations and warranties. Managersenttiaware of any contingencies that
require accrual or disclosure as of June 30, 20T3cember 31, 2012.

17. Subsequent Events
The Board of Directors declared and paid commockstash dividends of $0.09 per common share fotttind and fourth quarters of 2013.
The Board of Directors has also determined thaethéll be a regular quarterly dividend of $0.09 pbare for each of the first two quarter

2014. The Board of Directors also declared a spdoiaend of $0.20 per share paid on January 81420 shareholders of record on Jant
8, 2014. The special dividend may be characterdzea return of capital for federal income tax psgs.
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ltem 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financi&ondition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the Company’s (“we”“our”) financial condition and results of operations skdug read in conjunction with t
consolidated financial statements and notes teetbtaements included in Item 1 of this quartegfyart on Form 10-Q.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this reploat are subject to risks and uncertainties. Thexseafrd-looking statements include
information about possible or assumed future resaflbur business, financial condition, liquiditgsults of operations, plans and objectives.
When we use the words “believe,” “expect,” “dicipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “continue,” * ‘intend,” “should,” “may,” “would,”

“will” or similar expressions, we intend to ideft forward-looking statements. Statements regagdhe following subjects, among others,
are forward-looking by their nature:

e our business and investment strategy;

e our ability to maintain existing financing arramgents, obtain future financing arrangements aadettms of such arrangements,
particularly in light of the delay of this filingna other matters discussed in this Form 10-Q;

e our ability to timely file our periodic reportsitiv the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC;
e our expectations regarding materiality or sigmaifice;

o the effectiveness of our disclosure controls pratedures;

e material weaknesses in our internal controls @imancial reporting;

e additional information that may arise from thegaration of our financial statements;

e inadequacy of or weakness in our internal costovker financial reporting of which we are not emtty aware or which have not been
detected;

e general volatility of the securities markets ihigh we invest;

e the impact of and changes to various governmeagrams;

e our expected investments;

e changes in the value of our investments;

e interest rate mismatches between our investnagmdour borrowings used to finance such purchases;
e changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayras;

e effects of interest rate caps on our adjustadie-investments;

e rates of default, delinquencies or decreasedvezgaates on our investments;

e prepayments of the mortgage and other loans lyinigiour mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS, theo asset-backed securities, or
ABS;

e the degree to which our hedging strategies mawyay not protect us from interest rate volatility;

e the potential delisting of our common stock frtea New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE:
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e impact of and changes in governmental regulatitanslaw and rates, accounting guidance, and aimikatters;

e availability of investment opportunities in resgtate-related and other securities;

e availability of qualified personnel;

e estimates relating to our ability to make digitibns to our stockholders in the future;

e our understanding of our competition;

e market trends in our industry, interest rates,dbbt securities markets or the general economy;

e our ability to maintain our classification asealrestate investment trust, or REIT, for fedarabme tax purposes; and

e our ability to maintain our exemption from regdgion under the Investment Company Act of 194Graended, or 1940 Act.

The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futureopmance, taking into account all
information currently available to us. You shoultt place undue reliance on these forwkmaking statements. These beliefs, assumption:
expectations can change as a result of many pessieints or factors, not all of which are knownigoSome of these factors are described
under the caption “Risk Factors” in our most raté&nnual Report on Form 10-K and any subsequemirt@rly Reports on Form 10-Q. If a
change occurs, our business, financial conditigmjdity and results of operations may vary matiriom those expressed in our forward-
looking statements. Any forward-looking statemeyeaks only as of the date on which it is made. Nsks and uncertainties arise from time
to time, and it is impossible for us to predictsb@vents or how they may affect us. Except adnegtjby law, we are not obligated to, and do
not intend to, update or revise any forward-lookstatements, whether as a result of new informafigare events or otherwise.

Unless otherwise indicated herein or as may beiredjby law, the disclosure included in this ForeRQ is presented as of June 30, 2013.
Accordingly, this Form 10-Q does not reflect aleats occurring after June 30, 2013 (except as redjby law, or as required by ASC 855,
Subsequent Events), and we have not undertakepdetelany item included in this Form 10-Q to rdflaech events. Therefore, this Form
10-Q should be read in conjunction with our filings have previously made with the SEC subsequehirie 30, 2013.

Executive Summary

We are a Maryland corporation that commenced ojpeiabn November 21, 2007. We acquire, eitherctirer indirectly through our
subsidiaries, residential mortgage-backed secsritieRMBS, residential mortgage loans, commero@ltgage loans, real estate related
securities and various other asset classes. Wextamally managed by Fixed Income Discount Adwigsoompany, which we refer to as
FIDAC or our Manager. FIDAC is a fixed-income istenent management company that is registered eswastment adviser with the

SEC. FIDAC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ann&@gpital Management, Inc., or Annaly. FIDAC hagaadld range of experience in
managing investments in Agency RMBS, which are gage pass-through certificates, collateralized gaagr¢ obligations, or CMOs, and
other RMBS representing interests in or obligatibasked by pools of mortgage loans issued or gieedrby Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and
Ginnie Mae, Non-Agency RMBS, collateralized debligdtions, or CDOs, and other real estate relatgdstments.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, prity through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achig objective by investing in a diversified inttleent portfolio of RMBS, residential
mortgage loans, real estate-related securitievaridus other asset classes, subject to maintacundrREIT status and exemption from
registration under the 1940 Act. The RMBS, ABS, B3/ and CDOs we purchase may include investmermtegaad non-investment grade
classes, including the BB-rated, B-rated and noedralasses.
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We rely on our Manager’s expertise in identifyirgg@ts within our target asset classes. Our Mamagkes investment decisions based on
various factors, including expected cash yieldatre¢ value, risk-adjusted returns, current anggeted credit fundamentals, current and
projected macroeconomic considerations, currentpaogcted supply and demand, credit and markietcosicentration limits, liquidity, cost
of financing and financing availability, as well asintaining our REIT qualification and our exeroptifrom registration under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investment allocatistrategy as market conditions change to seek sonmiee the returns from our investment
portfolio. We believe this strategy, combined wothr Manager’s experience, will enable us to paydéinds and achieve capital appreciation
through various changing interest rate and credites and provide attractive long-term returnateestors.

Our targeted asset classes and the principal imezgs we have made and in which we may in the dunwrest are:

Asset Class Principal Investments

RMBS ° Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade aon-investment grade classes, including the BB-
rated, B-rated and non-rated classes

° Agency RMBS
° Interest-only (“IO”) RMBS

Residential Mortgage ° Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loansctiveform to the underwriting guidelines of Fan
Loans Mae and Freddie Mac, which we refer to as Agencid@ines; and jumbo prime mortgage loans, which
are mortgage loans that conform to the Agency Giniele except as to loan size

° Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage lota may have been originated using documentation
standards that are less stringent than the docatmemstandards applied by certain other first lien
mortgage loan purchase programs, such as the Agenickelines, but have one or more compensating
factors such as a borrower with a strong credihortgage history or significant assets

° FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage lodret comply with the underwriting guidelines oéth
Federal Housing Administration (FHA) or Departmeh¥eteran Affairs (VA) and which are guarante
by the FHA or VA, respectively

° Mortgage servicing rights associated withdestial mortgage loans, which reflect the valuéhef

future stream of expected cash flows from the emttral rights to service a given pool of residdntia
mortgage loans.
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Commercial Mortgage ° First or second lien loans secured by multifaproperties, which are residential rental prajesr

Loans consisting of five or more dwelling units; and milkeesidential or other commercial properties; tetai
properties; office properties; or industrial praps, which may or may not conform to the Agency
Guidelines

Other Asset-Backed ° CMBS

Securities

° Debt and equity tranches of CDOs

° Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including imaest-grade and non-investment grade classes,
including the BB-rated, B-rated and non-rated @ass

Hedging Instruments ° Swaps
° Swaptions
° Futures
° Index options

° Mortgage option:

Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquiNieg-Agency and Agency RMBS
and on purchasing residential mortgage loans tat been originated by select originators, inclgdhre retail lending operations of leading
commercial banks. Our investment portfolio at J88e2013 was weighted toward Non-Agency RMBS. Jéte 30, 2013, based on the
outstanding principal balance of our interest eggrassets, approximately 77.2% of our investmertfgm was Non-Agency RMBS, 16.1%
of our investment portfolio was Agency RMBS, and%.of our investment portfolio was securitized desitial mortgage loans. At
December 31, 2012, based on the outstanding pahlsglance of our interest earning assets, app@teiymn74.6% of our investment portfolio
was Non-Agency RMBS, 14.7% of our investment pdidfavas Agency RMBS, and 10.7% of our investmentfptio was securitized
residential mortgage loans. We expect that oventhar term, our investment portfolio will continieebe weighted toward Non-Agency
RMBS, subject to maintaining our REIT qualificatiand our 1940 Act exemption.

We have engaged in transactions with residentiatgage lending operations of leading commerciakband other originators in which we
identified and re-underwrote residential mortgaggnk owned by such entities, and purchased andtsasali such residential mortgage
loans. In the past we have also acquired form&fp-rated Non-Agency RMBS and immediately re-setimed those securities. We sold
the resulting AAA-rated super senior RMBS and regdithe rated or unrated mezzanine RMBS.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest raté aredit environment. We expect to adjust
our strategy to changing market conditions by Bigfour asset allocations across these various elssses as interest rate and credit cycles
change over time. We believe that our strategymhined with FIDAC'’s experience, will enable us yplividends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing market cycles. e®fiect to take a long-term view of assets andliligls, and our reported earnings and
estimates of the fair value of our investment$atdnd of a financial reporting period will notrigcantly impact our objective of providing
attractive risk-adjusted returns to our stockhdadmrer the long-term.

We use leverage to seek to increase our potertialns and to finance the acquisition of our ass@isr income is generated primarily by the
difference, or net spread, between the income we@aour assets and the cost of our borrowings. epect to finance our investments
using a variety of financing sources including, wizailable, repurchase agreements, warehouséiéscidind securitizations. We may
manage our debt and interest rate risk by utilizimgrest rate hedges, such as interest rate swaps, options and futures to reduce the effect
of interest rate fluctuations related to our finagcsources.
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We have elected and believe we are organized areldigerated in a manner that qualifies us to bedas a REIT under the Code. A REIT
generally will not be subject to federal income taxtaxable income that is distributed to stockedd Furthermore, substantially all of our
assets consist of qualified REIT real estate ageéthe type described in Code Section 856(c)(5Ye calculate that at least 75% of our a:
were qualified REIT assets, as defined in the Cmtehe six months ended June 30, 2013 and thegreded December 31, 2012. We also
calculate that our revenues qualified for the 75TRncome test and for the 95% REIT income testli@ six month periods ended June 30,
2013 and 2012. We also met all REIT requiremesgsurding the ownership of our common stock andlisieibution of our REIT taxable
income. Therefore, for the six months ended Jn&B313 and the year ended December 31, 2012, kevd¢hat we qualified as a REIT
under the Code.

We operate our business to be exempt from regmtrander the 1940 Act, and therefore we are reguio invest a substantial majority of
our assets in loans secured by mortgages on rtaa esd real estate-related assets. Subjectitaaiming our REIT qualification and our
1940 Act exemption, we do not have any limitationghe amounts we may invest in any of our targateset classes.

Looking forward, we cannot predict the percentaigeun assets that will be invested in each assessabr whether we will invest in other
classes of investments. We may change our investstategy and policies without a vote of our ktadders.

Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be &fteby various factors, many of which are beyondamntrol. Our results of operations will
primarily depend on, among other things, the I®felur net interest income, the market value ofassgets, and the supply of and demand for
such assets. Economic trends, both macro as svtlose directly affecting the residential housimayket, and the supply and demand of
RMBS may affect our operations and financial resuliVe also evaluate market information regardimgent residential mortgage loan
underwriting criteria and loan defaults to managemrtfolio of assets, leverage, and debt. Ouinierest income, which reflects the
amortization of purchase premiums and accretiatisffounts, varies primarily as a result of charigesterest rates, borrowing costs, credit
impairment losses, and prepayment speeds, whizlmisasurement of how quickly borrowers pay dowruti@aid principal balance on their
mortgage loans. Further description of these fadtoprovided below.
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Prepayment Speec Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constapayiment Rate, or CPR, vary according to intesdss, the type of
investment, conditions in financial markets, angeotfactors, none of which can be predicted with @rtainty. In general, when interest
rates rise, it is relatively less attractive fortogvers to refinance their mortgage loans, and@salt, prepayment speeds tend to

decrease. When interest rates fall, prepaymemtdspend to increase. For mortgage loan and RMB&stments purchased at a premium, as
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of inconeamedecreases as the purchase premium on the horadtizes faster than

expected. Conversely, decreases in prepaymendspegult in increased income and can extend thiechever which we amortize the
purchase premium.

For mortgage loan and RMBS investments purchasadistcount, as prepayment speeds increase, thenamidincome we earn increases
from the acceleration of the accretion of the disdanto interest income. Conversely, decreas@gsépayment speeds result in decreased
income as the accretion of the purchase discotmiriterest income occurs over a longer periodceRty, the correlation between interest
rates and prepayment has not followed normal trémdsertain asset classes. Due to economic higrdsbme borrowers have been unable to
refinance their loans as underwriting standardsrare stringent and credit conditions remain resue.

Rising Interest Rate Environme As indicated above, as interest rates rise, prapat speeds generally decrease. Rising inteatest,r
however, increase our financing costs which mayltés a net negative impact on our net interesbime. In addition, if we acquire Agency
and Non-Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly resgjustable-rate mortgages, or ARMs, and threefigaeyear hybrid ARMs, such
interest rate increases could result in decreasesrinet investment income, as the increase iradjuistable rate assets may increase slower
than our adjustable rate financing. We expectdhbatiixed-rate assets would decline in value iisgg interest rate environment and that our
net interest spreads on fixed rate assets coulthden a rising interest rate environment to thteat such assets are financed with floating
rate debt.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is on acquiringessted Non-Agency RMBS that have been downgradealise of defaults in the
mortgages collateralizing such RMBS. When we aegsiich RMBS we attempt to purchase it at a prcé shat its loss-adjusted return
profile is in line with our targeted yields. Weain the risk of potential credit losses on altleg residential mortgage loans we hold in our
portfolio as well as all of the Non-Agency RMBS. e\iittempt to mitigate credit risk in the assetaala process. Prior to the purchase of
investments, we conduct a credit-risk based arsabfsihe collateral securing our investment thalides examining borrower characteristics,
geographic concentrations, current and projectéidgleencies, current and projected severities,antdal and expected prepayment speeds
among other characteristics to estimate expectm We also acquire assets which we believe ob thigh credit quality.

Size of Investment PortfolioThe size of our investment portfolio, as measimgthe aggregate unpaid principal balance of oomgage
loans and aggregate principal balance of our mgetgelated securities and the other assets weiswatso a key revenue driver. Generally,
as the size of our investment portfolio grows, aheunt of interest income we receive increase® ldiflger investment portfolio, however,
may result in increased expenses if we incur aulthli interest expense to finance the purchasercdssets.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our financial statements in accordaritteagcounting principles generally accepted inlimted States, or GAAP, which
requires the use of estimates and assumptions. déament has discussed and reviewed the developssettion, and disclosure of critical
accounting estimates with the Company’s Audit Cotteai Management believes that the most criticedaating policies and estimates,
since these estimates require significant judgnaeetjnterest income and other-than-temporary impait, or OTTI, on NorAgency RMBS
the determination of the appropriate accounting ehéar Non-Agency RMBS, the impact of default anmdgayment assumptions on RMBS,
and fair value measurements. Financial resultsdcoelmaterially different if other methodologiesrev@sed or if management modified its
assumptions.

For a discussion of the Company’s critical accougpolicies and estimates, see “Critical Accounfiudicies and Estimates” in Part Il, Iltem

7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finah€Ciondition and Results of Operations” includedhi@ Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 2(q) in the Notes to ConsolidatechRal Statements for a discussion of accountindamee recently adopted by the
Company.

Financial Condition
Estimated Economic Book Value

This Management Discussion and Analysis sectiotatas analysis and discussion of financial infoliorathat utilizes or presents ratios
based on GAAP book value. The table and discussetow present our estimated economic book valife.calculate and disclose this non-
GAAP measurement because we believe it represerastamate of the fair value of the assets we omar® able to dispose of, pledge, or
otherwise monetize. The estimated economic boblevshould not be viewed in isolation and is netistitute for book value computed in
accordance with GAAP.

GAAP requires us to consolidate certain securittratand re-securitization transactions where we liletermined that we are the primary
beneficiary. In these transactions, we transfeassits to the trusts, which issued tranches @frsand subordinate notes or certificates. We
sold the senior tranches and therefore have naneong involvement in these trusts other than beirglder of notes or certificates issued by
the trusts, with the same rights as other holdetiseonotes or certificates, except as it relabeS$MC 2012-CIM1, CSMC 2012-CIM2 and
CSMC 2012-CIM3. As it relates solely to CSMC 201AC, CSMC 2012-CIM2 and CSMC 2012-CIM3, we have #iiidity to approve loan
modifications and determine the course of actiobetdaken as it relates to loans in technical defencluding whether or not to proceed with
foreclosure. The notes and certificates we owhwulesie issued by the trusts are largely subordiheterests in those trusts. The trusts have
no recourse to our assets other than pursuanbieazh by us of the transaction documents relatéuettransfer of the assets by us to the
trusts, but are presented as if we own 100% ofrtrss.

For re-securitized RMBS transactions and loan s$izations, we present the pre-securitized assetsterred into the consolidated trusts in
our Consolidated Statements of Financial CondiéisiNon-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated \WESecuritized loans held for
investment. Post securitization RMBS assets s@lgheesented as liabilities in our Consolidatedestants of Financial Condition as
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RM@l Securitized debt, collateralized by loans f@ldnvestment. We have presented
the underlying securities we transferred to thstsrdor the calculation of GAAP book value at featue and recorded the corresponding
liability for the notes or certificates sold torthiparties at amortized cost. Fair value adjustmt#irat are not credit related are recorded in
Other comprehensive income (loss). Credit relatgubirments are deemed other-than-temporary anceoeded in earnings.

Because we are unable to dispose of, monetizeedgplthe RMBS or loans we transferred into thdgruge also present our estimated
economic book value. We believe this measure sepits the estimated value of the securities isbyddese trusts that we own. In contrast
to GAAP book value, our estimated economic booki@alonsiders only the assets we own or are allspose of, pledge, or otherwise
monetize. To determine our estimated economic lvabke, we consider only the fair value of the saie certificates issued by the
securitization and re-securitization trusts thatagially own. Accordingly, our estimated econotmok value does not include assets or
liabilities for which we have no direct ownershgpecifically the notes or certificates of the sé@@ation and re-securitization trusts that were
sold to third parties.

At June 30, 2013 the difference between GAAP baakerand estimated economic book value was detethimbe $529.5 million. At
December 31, 2012 the difference between GAAP adke and estimated economic book value was deterid be $416.1 million. This
difference is primarily driven by the value of tRMBS assets we have retained in thesge@iritization transactions as compared to thea
of consolidated loans and securities net of RMB@ssold and recorded at amortized cost in thiesedctions. In these re-securitization
transactions, we retained the subordinated, tylpicain-rated, first loss notes or certificates issuedhgydecuritization trusts. These secur
are complex, typically locked out as to principgpayment, relatively illiquid, and do not necedgappreciate or depreciate in tandem with
the broader Norgency RMBS market or with the loans on securitiesed by the trusts. The tables below presemadijiesstments to GAA
book value that we believe are necessary to adelguaflect our calculation of estimated econonaolovalue as of June 30, 2013 and
December 31, 2012.
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June 30, 201

(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Estimated
GAAP Book Economic
Value Adjustments  Book Value

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Senior $ 73 % - $ 73

Senior intere-only 264,72: - 264,72:

Subordinatel 470,58t - 470,58t

Subordinated intere-only 14,041 - 14,041

RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 3,219,69. (1,628,93)) 1,590,76.
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 2,074,81 - 2,074,81
Securitized loans held for investment, net of alloee for loan losse 924,56t (834,56) 90,00¢
Other asset 215,14: - 215,14:
Total asset $ 7,183,631 $ (2,463,49) $ 4,720,14
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RN 1,478,14. - 1,478,14.
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 1,128,75. (1,128,75) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifieestmen: 805,22¢ (805,229 -
Other liabilities 143,68: - 143,68:
Total liabilities 3,555,80! (1,933,98) 1,621,82.
Total stockholders' equi 3,627,83. (529,51() 3,098,32.
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 7,183,630 $ (2,463,49) $ 4,720,14
Book Value Per Shal $ 3.5 % (0.52) $ 3.01

December 31, 201

(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Estimated
GAAP Book Economic
Value Adjustments  Book Value

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Senior $ 88 $ - $ 88

Senior intere-only 122,86¢ - 122,86¢

Subordinatet 547,79: - 547,79:

Subordinated intere-only 16,25 - 16,25:

RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 3,274,20 (1,730,42) 1,543,78.
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 1,806,69 - 1,806,69
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aloee for loan losse 1,300,13. (1,191,60) 108,52
Other asset 674,45: - 674,45:
Total asset $ 7,742,48 $ (2,922,02) $ 4,820,46
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RN 1,528,02! - 1,528,02!
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 1,336,26 (1,336,26) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifeestmen: 1,169,71 (1,169,711 -
Other liabilities 166,01« - 166,01«
Total liabilities 4,200,01 (2,505,97) 1,694,03!
Total stockholders' equi 3,542,47! (416,05%) 3,126,42.
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 7,742,48° $ (2,922,02) $ 4,820,46
Book Value Per Shai $ 3.4t % (040 $ 3.0¢F




Our estimate of economic book value has imporiaritdtions. Our estimate of fair value is as gfant in time and subject to significant
judgment, primarily the estimate of the fair vabfedhe securities issued by the trusts which we awnth can freely sell or pledge. Should
sell the assets in our portfolio, we may realizeéanally different proceeds from the sale than \mgehestimated as of the reporting date.

The calculation of estimated economic book valuscdbed above is used by management to underdtarfdit value of the assets we own

and the liabilities for which we are legally obligd, and is presented for informational use ofiliie estimated economic book value should
not be viewed in isolation and is not a substifatdbook value computed in accordance with GAAP.
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Portfolio Review

During the six month period ended June 30, 201&roaggregate basis, we purchased $1.1 billiod,$#29.6 million, and received $902.2
million in principal payments related to our Ageranyd Non-Agency RMBS. Securitized loans decre&s&®24.6 million at June 30, 2013
from $1.3 billion at December 31, 2012, primarilyecto principal repayments of $367.8 million durthg six month period ended June 30,
2013. These principal payments were consistetit management’s expectations.

The following table summarizes certain charactiessaf our portfolio at June 30, 2013 and Decen®ier2012.

December 31
June 30, 201 2012
(dollars in thousands

Interest earning assets at pe-end * $ 6,968,449 $ 7,068,03
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 341212 $ 4,033,99
Leverage at peric-end 0.9:1 1.1:1
Leverage at peric-end (recourse 0.4:1 0.4:1
Portfolio Composition, at principal valt
Nor-Agency RMBS 77.2% 74.6%
Senio 0.C% 0.C%
Senior, interest on 37. ™% 25.2%
Subordinate 6.5% 8.8%
Subordinated, interest ol 1.9% 2.1%
RMBS transferred to consolidated V 31.2% 38.5%
Agency RMB¢S 16.1% 14.7%
Securitized loar 6.7% 10.7%
Fixec«rate percentage of portfol 80.2% 75.4%
Adjustabl-rate percentage of portfol 19.7% 24.€%

* Excludes cash and cash equivale

The following table presents details of each aslset in our portfolio at June 30, 2013 and DecerBhe2012. The principal or notional
value represents the interest income earning balaheach class. The weighted average figureweaighted by each investment’s respective
principal/notional value in the asset class.

June 30, 201
Weightec
Principal Average Weightec  Weightec Principal
or Notiona Yield Average  Average Weighted Weightec Writedown:
Value at  Weightec Weightec at 3 Month 12 Montt Average Average Weighted During
PeriodEnc  Average Average Weightec Period- CPR at CPR at Delinquenc Loss Average Period
(dollars in  Amortizec Fair Average End Period- Period- Pipeline Severity Credit (dollars in
thousands Cost Basi Value Coupon (1) End End 60+ (2) Enhancemel  thousands
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed
Securities
Seniol $ 128 $ 4592 $ 58.7¢ 0.0(% 11.5(% 0.3(% 6.4(% 0.0(% 0.0(% 12.11% $ -
Senior, interes
only $5,156,15 $ 55¢ $ 5.1% 2.0&% 16.51% 17.0%% 16.2(% 21.1&% 49.4% 0.0% $ -
Subordinate: $ 88391¢ $ 421t $ 53.2¢ 3.01% 12.4(% 18.5% 18.6(% 15.8¢% 49.1% 13.6% $ 11,43:
Subordinated,
interest
only $ 255,17t $ 572 $ 5.51 1.9%% 8.2% 18.7% 17.5%% 17.3"%% 45.1% 0.0% $ -
RMBS
transferred to
consolidated
variable interest
entities $4,259,15: $ 54.5¢ $ 77.1¢ 4.7¢% 15.6€% 14.9¢% 14.4¢% 27.25%% 58.1¢% 1.7% $ 55,44:
Agency Mortgage-
BackedSecurities  $2,201,16; $ 107.3( $ 107.4: 4.22% 3.1%% 22.9% 24.31% NA NA 0.0% $ -
Securitized loan $ 916,32( $ 101.9¢ $ 99.0¢ 4.75% 3.5¢% 47.4&% 4.71% 1.08% 4.3€% 12.8¢% $ 677

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weightedefage Yield is calculated using each investmeespective amortized co:
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to daliging widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, I-month loss, etc.

December 31, 201

Principal Weightec
or Average Weightec  Weightec Principal
Notional Yield Average  Average Weighted  Weightec Writedown:
Value at  Weightec Weightec at 3 Month 12 Montt Average Average Weighted During
PeriodEnc  Average Average Weightec Period- CPR at CPR at  Delinquenc Loss Average Period
(dollars in  Amortizec Fair Average End Period- Period- Pipeline Severity Credit (dollars in

thousands Cost Basi Value Coupon (1) End End 60+ (2) Enhancemel  thousands




Non-AgencyMortgage-Backed
Securities

Seniol $ 12¢ $ 57.02 $ 67.0C 0.0(% 11.9% 22.6(% 38.6(% 0.0(% 0.0(% 12.8% $ -
Senior, interest
only $3,012,860 $ 451 $ 4.0¢ 1.7¢% 10.3% 17.3"% 17.4% 20.1% 50.4% 0.0(% $ -
Subordinate $1,057,82. $ 447 $ 51.7¢ 3.1&% 11.0% 17.3¢% 18.7%% 18.7% 51.0% 15.22% $  15,80"
Subordinatec
interest
only $ 256,07 $ 6.3z $ 6.3t 2.25% 8.9(% 20.9% 16.7% 19.9%% 44.82% 0.0(% $ -
RMBS
transferred to
consolidated
variable interest
entities $4,610,100 $ 53.9¢ $ 72.5C 4.88% 15.4%% 14.8%% 14.86% 29.42% 59.02% 22% $  70,95:
AgencyMortgage-
BackedSecurities  $1,756,58 $ 103.0¢ $ 108.2¢ 4.65% 3.5% 28.3% 24.1% NA NA 0.0(% $ -
Securitized loan $1,284,84! $ 102.0¢ $ 102.7¢ 4.68% 3.88% 35.21% 4.45% 0.84% 4.35% 11.18% $ 404

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weighteeefage Yield is calculated using each investmeaspective amortized co:

(2) Calculated based on reported losses to daliging widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, I-month loss, etc.
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Based on the projected cash flows for our Non-AgeRRIBS that are not of high credit quality, a pontiof the original purchase discount is
designated as Accretable Discount, which refldespurchase discount expected to be accretedntgest income, and a portion is
designated as Non-Accretable Difference, whichesgnts the contractual principal on the securiy ifnot expected to be collected. The
amount designated as Non-Accretable Difference besgdjusted over time, based on the actual perfacenaf the security, its underlying
collateral, actual and projected cash flow fromhscallateral, economic conditions and other factrthe performance of a security is more
favorable than previously estimated, a portiorhef amount designated as Non-Accretable Differerag Ime accreted into interest income
over time. Conversely, if the performance of a siégis less favorable than previously estimatée, amounts designated as Non-Accretable
Difference may increase, resulting in an OTTI loss.

The following table presents changes to Accret@lideount and Non-Accretable Difference as it peddb our entire Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio for assets with purchase discounts.

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, December 31 September 3(
June 30, 201 2013 2012 2012 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Accretable Discour

Balance, beginning of

period $ 1,088,15 $ 1,11526/ $ 1,118,47: $ 1,202,95 $ 1,212,27.
Accretion of discoun (40,047 (39,32¢) (40,287 (36,770 (38,197
Purchase - 93t - - -
Sales (46,12 a7 8 (81,690 -
Transfers from credit

reserve 30,74+ 18,41¢ 39,47¢ 44,88¢ 71,98
Transfers to credit reser (5,819 (7,127 (2,417 (10,9079 (43,107

Balance, end of peric $ 1,026,92 $ 1,088,15 $ 1,11526/ $ 1,118,47. $ 1,202,95

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, December 31 September 3(
June 30, 201 2013 2012 2012 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Non- Accretable Discour

Balance, beginning of

period $ 146455 $ 1,540,780 $ 1,65522. $ 1,773,190 $ 1,824,95
Principal Writedown: (68,835 (72,055 (85,55%) (83,949 (88,56¢)
Purchase - 93t - - -
Sales 1) 32 (8) (10,059 -
Net othe-than-temporary

credit impairment losse 6,16: 6,16: 8,18¢ 10,01« 65,68
Transfers from credit

reserve (30,744 (18,419 (39,479 (44,889 (71,987
Transfers to credit reser 5,81% 7,122 2,411 10,907 43,107

Balance, end of peric $ 1,376,95 $ 146455 $ 154078 $ 165522 $ 1,773,19
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Net Income (Loss) Summary
The table below summarizes the net income (losg) GAAP basis for the three and six month perigdted June 30, 2013 and 2012.
Net Income (Loss)
(dollars in thousand:

(unaudited

For the Quarter Ende For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201  June 30,201  June 30, 201  June 30, 201

Net Interest Income:

Interest incom $ 33,62¢ $ 52,03. $ 62,69¢ $ 103,35(
Interest expens (1,629 (2,477 (3,462) (4,799
Interest income, Assets of consolidatec

VIEs 93,93¢ 109,49: 190,66 207,84
Interest expense, Non-recourse liabiliti

of VIEs (24,987) (19,480 (51,979 (53,529
Net interest income (expens 100,95¢ 139,57: 197,92( 252,86¢

Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total other-than-temporary impairment

losses - (12,479 - (44,55))
Portion of loss recognized in other

comprehensive income (los - (53,217 (6,169 (69,500()
Net othe-than-temporary credit

impairment losse - (65,687 (6,169 (114,05)

Other gains (losses)
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest re

swaps 13,17¢ (10,99 18,58( (10,180
Realized gains (losses) on interest rate

swaps (5,39)) (5,199 (10,92 (9,597)
Gains (losses) on interest rate sw 7,781 (16,186 7,65¢ (19,777
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-

only RMBS (12,97¢) (2,537) (13,989 15,41t
Realized gains (losses) on sales of

investments, ne 54,117 - 54,12 16,01(
Total other gains (losse 48,93( (18,719 47,79¢ 11,65:
Net investment income (los 149,88 55,16¢ 239,55. 150,46t
Other expenses:

Management fee 6,49¢ 12,90: 12,947 25,812
Expense recoveries from Manay (3,315 - (5,170 -
Net Management fee 3,18: 12,90:¢ 7,77 25,81:
Provision for loan losse (2,709 (1,059 (1,279 (892)
General and administrative expen 5,197 2,541 10,04« 4,53(
Total other expense 6,671 14,38t 16,54. 29,45(
Income (loss) before income taxe 143,20° 40,78: 223,01( 121,01¢
Income taxe: - - 2 2
Net income (loss $ 143,200 $ 40,78. $ 223,00¢ $ 121,01

Our net income increased by $102.4 million forttivee month period ended June 30, 2013 as compadeohe 30, 2012. Our earnings per
share on both a basic and diluted basis was $@fdhare and $0.04 per share for the quarters ehaed30, 2013 and 2012.

Our net income increased by $102.0 million forshemonth period ended June 30, 2013 as comparéah® 30, 2012. Our earnings per
share on both a basic and diluted basis was $@28hare and $0.12 per share for the six monthsdehagne 30, 2013 and 2012.

Net interest income (expense) declined by $38.6anito $101.0 million in the second quarter of 2Gfom $139.6 million in second quar
2012. This decrease was driven in part by a dedfirgeneral interest income of $18.4 million t@®3million in the second quarter of 2013
from $52.0 million in the same period of 2012. §Hecline was the result of a change in the investmportfolio holdings as we reduced our
holdings in Agency RMBS from the second quarte2@f3 to the current period. In addition, net iatincome on our assets of consolid:
VIEs declined by $21.1 million from $90.0 millionrfthe three month period ended June 30, 20128®3$6illion for the three month period
ended June 30, 2013. This decline was primarit/tdudeclines in our investment assets of our dafzed VIES, due to the repayment of
principal on the portfolio as compared to the pyiear.

Net interest income (expense) declined by $54.89anito $197.9 million for the six month period ewJune 30, 2013 from $252.9 milli



for the same period of 2012. This decrease wasapily driven by a decline in general interest imeoof $40.7 million to $62.7 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2013 from $103.4omilh the same period of 2012. This decline wsresult of a change in the investment
portfolio holdings as we reduced our holdings ireAgy RMBS in 2012 and 2013 as well as paydownsweden our Non-Agency RMBS
held in our consolidated VIEs.

During the three months ended June 30, 2013 net @ipairment losses declined by $65.7 million othe same period of 2012 as we had
no impairment losses for the quarter ended Jun2@IB. During the six months ended June 30, 2@1®i Tl impairment losses declined
$107.9 million over the same period of 2012. Therdase in OTTI is attributable to improving faalwes as well as favorable changes in
cash flows expected to be collected. The favorebage in cash flows is mainly attributable to iayements in expected cash flow of our
Non-Agency RMBS, and increasing prepayment speedshaieisult in an increase in the present value sif aws expected to be collected.

OTTI charges, recognized on our Non-Agency RMB8ece changes in our estimate of the amount anthgrof cash flows expected to be
collected. At June 30, 2013, we had a gross uezhloss of $38.7 million related to Agency RMBSlangross unrealized loss of $2.2
million related to Non-Agency RMBS, excluding sanémd subordinated 10s which are carried at fduweravith changes in fair value
recognized in earnings. Impairments on Agency RNtB&n unrealized loss position at June 30, 2023 ansidered temporary and not cr
related as we expect to recover all contractudiftass and do not anticipate the need to sell tlsesairities prior to their recovery.
Unrealized losses on Non-Agency RMBS subject temtid! impairment for which no OTTI was recordedidg the quarter are also
considered temporary based on an estimate of gteflravs expected to be collected for such RMBSg¢tviconsiders recent bond
performance and expected future performance dfitiderlying collateral. Significant judgment is usedstimating both our cash flows
expected to be collected for its Non-Agency RMBS Hre credit component of OTTI. Refer to “Sigréfit Accounting Policies” in the
accompanying notes to the consolidated financééstents for more information regarding the recigmiof OTTI.
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Net income also increased as we recorded net gaiosir interest rate swaps of $7.8 million for theee months ended June 30, 201
compared to a net loss of $16.2 million recordedtie same period of 2012. For the six months @édd@e 30, 2013, we recognized a net
gain on our interest rate swaps of $7.7 million paned to a net loss of $19.8 million recorded fier same period of 2012. All changes in
value of our interest rate swaps are recordedrmiregs. The net gains on the interest rate swagsé to rising interest rates, primarily in the
second quarter of 2013.

In the second quarter of 2013, we realized gainthersale of investment securities of $54.1 millidkie had no realized gains in the second
quarter of 2012. These gains were primarily geleerrom sales of Non-Agency RMBS securities taetakvantage of market conditions in
our investment portfolio. For the six month pesahded June 30, 2013 and 2012, we recognizededarins of $54.1 million and $16.0
million. We did not sell any securities in an wadized loss position during the first or secondrtgreof 2013 or 2012.

Management fees, net of expenses reimbursed hwaheager, declined by $9.7 million and $18.0 millfonthe quarter and six months ent
June 30, 2013 as compared to the same period & 20g to the reduction of management fees frommamager, FIDAC, as well as the
agreement by our manager to reimburse us for cectats. See further discussion of the changdset&IDAC management agreement in
discussion of related party transactions below.

Results of Operations for the Three and Six Month&nded June 30, 2013 and 2012

Our primary source of income is interest incomaedron our assets. Our economic net interest ir@gunals interest income excluding
interest earned on cash and cash equivalentsliesest expense and realized losses on interesswatps. For the purpose of computing
economic net interest income and ratios relatingptt of funds measures throughout this sectidgarést expense includes net interest
payments on interest rate swaps, which is presexgdtealized gains (losses) on interest rate simapg Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income. Interestraéps are used to hedge the increase in inteagsbp repurchase agreements in a rising
rate environment. Presenting the net contraciuetést payments on interest rate swaps with tieesist paid on interest-bearing liabilities
reflects our total contractual interest paymenite believe this presentation is useful to invesharsause this presentation depicts the
economic value of our investment strategy, by shgveictual interest expense and net interest incaMeere indicated, interest expense,
including interest payments on interest rate swispgferred to as economic interest expense. ®inelicated, net interest income reflecting
interest payments on interest rate swaps, is egldo as economic net interest income.

The following table reconciles the GAAP and non-GAkeasurements reflected in the Management's Bignuand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

Add: Net Less: Ne
Realized Realized Economic
GAAP GAAP Losses on Economic GAAP Net Losses on Net
Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest
Income Expense Rate Swap Expense Income Rate Swap Income (1)
(dollars in thousand:
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2 $ 127,56! $ 26,61, $ 5391 $ 32,00 $ 100,95 $ 5391 $ 95,55!
For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 125,79 $ 28,82¢ $ 553 $ 34,35¢ $ 96,96t $ 553 $ 91,42:
For the Year Ended December 31, 2 $ 589,44( $ 12655 $ 20,22 $ 146,78 $ 462,88. $ 20,220 $ 442,63¢
For the Quarter Ended December 31,2 $ 133,55. $ 3387 % 533: $ 39,207 $  99,67¢ $ 533: $ 94,33«
For the Quarter Ended September 30,2 $ 144,69t $ 3435 $ 529¢ $  39,65¢ $ 110,34 $ 5,29¢ $ 105,03t
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2 $ 161,52 $ 21,95: $ 519 $ 27,147 $ 13957. $ 519¢ $ 134,37t

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale
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Economic Net Interest Income

The table below shows our average earning assktsitierest earned on assets, yield on averageeisit earning assets, average debt bal
economic interest expense, economic average céshd$, economic net interest income, and netéstarate spread for the periods prese

Yield on Economic
Average Average Economic  Economic Net Net
Earning Interest Interest Average Interest Average Interest Interest
Assets Earned ot Earning Debt Expense Cost Income Rate
Held (1) Assets (1 Assets Balance (2) of Funds (1) (2) Spreac
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $5,799,17¢ $ 127,55! 8.8(% $3,516,69° $ 32,00: 3.6/ $ 95,55 5.16%
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $5,866,50. $ 125,78: 8.58% $3,827,63 $ 34,35¢ 3.5¢% $ 91,42 4.9%%
For The Year Ended December 31, 2 $6,862,45. $ 589,42( 8.5¢% $4,466,69 $ 146,78: 3.2% $ 442,63 5.3(%
For The Quarter Ended December 31, 2 $6,141,91. $ 133,54: 8.7(% $3,989,79 $ 39,20° 3.9% $ 94,33¢ 4.71%
For The Quarter Ended September 30, z $6,833,35 $ 144,69: 8.41% $4,441,46. $ 39,65¢ 3.51% $ 105,03t 4.9(%
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $7,475,56°  $ 161,52 8.64% $4,918,92 $ 27,14° 2.21% $ 134,37! 6.44%

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale
(2) Includes effect of realized losses on interatg swaps

Our economic net interest income declined by $&lBon for the three months ended June 30, 2018oaspared to the same period of
2012. Our net interest spread, which equals thlel yin our average assets for this period lessedbromic average cost of funds for the
period, declined by 128 basis points for the quanteled June 30, 2013 from the same period of 2012.

Our economic net interest income declined by $&€ilBon for the six months ended June 30, 2013asmared to the same period of
2012. Our net interest spread for this periodlided by 64 basis points for the six months endete B0, 2013 from the same period of 2(

The decline in economic net interest rate spreaththree and six month periods is primarily tu¢éhe decrease in our average interest
earning assets at a faster rate than the declioerinbligations, primarily due to paydowns on dlan-Agency RMBS held in our
consolidated VIEs year over year. In addition,imairred lower economic interest expense in thersgégjuarter of 2012 as a result of a
revision in our amortization of deferred financicmsts and discounts on our secured debt, whicmwillecur in subsequent periods.

Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

Our average earning assets decreased by $1. hiflidhe quarter ended June 30, 2013 from thetguanded June 30, 2012. Our interest
income declined by $34.0 million for the quarteded June 30, 2013 from quarter ended June 30, 2002 average earning assets decreasel
by $1.4 billion for the six months ended June 3, 2from the six months ended June 30, 2012. Qardst income declined by $57.9

million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 fthmsix month period ended June 30, 2012. THd gie our portfolio increased by 16 a

11 basis points for the three and six months edded 30, 2013 as compared to the same periodsl@f Zlhe average earning assets
decreased year over year as a result of repayrogptscipal on our interest earning assets, pritpgine Non-Agency RMBS held in our
consolidated VIEs. The yield on our assets hagased slightly due in part to improving creditaur Non-Agency RMBS as well as lower
prepayments on our IO portfolio, resulting in higheelds.

Economic Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds
The borrowing rate at which we are able to finamgeassets using repurchase agreements is typeazaliglated to LIBOR and the term of 1
financing. The table below shows our average Helatnce, economic interest expense, average ctistds (inclusive of realized losses on

interest rate swaps), average one-month LIBOR a@eesix-month LIBOR, average one-month LIBOR retatb average six-month LIBOR,
and average cost of funds relative to average ame-six- month LIBOR.
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Average Average

One- Average Cost of
Month Cost Funds
LIBOR of Funds Relative
Relative to Relative to to
Average Average Average Average Average
Average  Economic  Average One- Six- Six- One- Six-
Debt Interest Cost of Month Month Month Month Month
Balance  Expense (I Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2 $3,516,691 $ 32,00: 3.6% 0.2(% 0.42% (0.23%) 3.44% 3.22%
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $3,827,63' $  34,35¢ 3.5% 0.2€% 0.7€% (0.51%) 3.32% 2.82%
For The Year Ended December
2012 $4,466,69' $ 146,78: 3.2¢% 0.24% 0.6% (0.45%) 3.05% 2.6(%
For The Quarter Ended December 3
2012 $3,989,791 $ 39,207 3.92% 0.21% 0.5/% (0.32%) 3.72% 3.3%
For The Quarter Ended September &
2012 $4,441,46. $ 39,65¢ 3.51% 0.24% 0.71% (0.47%) 3.3%% 2.86%
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2 $4,918,92 $ 27,14, 2.21% 0.24% 0.72% (0.4%%) 1.99% 1.47%

(1) Includes effect of realized losses on interate swaps

Our average debt balance decreased by $1.4 bitiothe three months ended June 30, 2013 as cothpatée three months ended June
2012. Our average debt balance decreased by $iioh for the six months ended June 30, 2013 anpared to the six months ended !
30, 2012.The decline in the averaged borrowed fusd$ue primarily to a reduction in repurchase agrents year over year as wel
repayments of our securitized debt collateralizgddans held for investment. This decline reflests rebalancing of the portfolio frc
agency collateralized repurchase agreements toieed debt collateralized by loans held for inwesnt.

Economic interest expense increased by $4.9 mif@nthe three month period ended June 30, 2018oaared to the same perioc
2012. This increase is due to an increase inwenage cost of funds of 143 and 76 basis pointth®three and six month periods ended
30, 2013 as compared to three and six month pegadsd June 30, 2012. The average cost of furmiease is due primarily a one ti
revision to interest expense from the amortizatibdeferred financing costs and discounts on ooursel debt in the second quarter of Z
which will not recur in future periods. This relois reduced our average cost of funds during thersg quarter of 2012.

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets

During the three month period ended June 30, 20&30ld RMBS with a carrying value of $375.3 miflitor realized gains of $54.1

million. We did not sell any securities during theee month period ended June 30, 2012. Duringithenonth period ended June 30, 2013,
we sold RMBS with a carrying value of $374.5 miflitor realized gains of $54.1 million. During thie month period ended June 30, 2012,
we sold RMBS with a carrying value of $63.0 millifor realized gains of $16.0 million. Capital gaifinom sales of securities are realized
when management believes it is appropriate toassdicurity. Management may decide to sell seeariti reduce leverage in the portfolio,
improve liquidity and take advantage of market dtods.

Secured Debt Financing Transactions

We did not resecuritize any RMBS or jumbo prime whole loans ngrihe six month period ended June 30, 2013. Quitie six mont
period ended June 30, 2012, we financed the puecbi$1.2 billion of jumbo prime whole loans by 8gtizing and selling senior bonds
third party investors for net proceeds of $1.1idnll We retained the subordinate tranches of thaergization.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses related to our sé¢ized loans held for investment represents managenestimate of expected future losses on
the securitized loans held. During the three mgettiod ended June 30, 2013, the provision for loases decreased by $1.7 million, net of
principal writedowns on loans of $677 thousande Tdtal loan loss reserve as of June 30, 2013.&8lion. During the six month period
ended June 30, 2012, the provision for loan lodseseased by $2.4 million. The decline in the llwes provision is primarily due to lower
delinquency rates on the mortgage pool generallptipn used to estimate expected losses on thegenertgage loan

portfolio. Management believes that the provig®aufficient to cover expected losses which maynicurred on the loan portfolio.
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Management Fee and General and Administrative Expeses

The table below shows our total management feegandral and administrative, or G&A, expenses aspaved to average total assets and
average equity for the periods presented.

Total Total
Total Management Management Fee
Management Fe  Fee and G&A and G&A
and G&A Expenses/Total Expenses/Averay
Expense: Assets Equity
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2 $ 8,38( 0.4€% 0.92%
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 9,441 0.5(% 1.05%
For The Year Ended December 31, 2 $ 58,79¢ 0.7¢% 1.78%
For The Quarter Ended December 31, 2 $ 12,65¢ 0.6€% 1.45%
For The Quarter Ended September 30, 2 $ 15,79¢ 0.8(% 1.92%
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2 $ 15,44+ 0.7% 1.95%

We paid FIDAC a management fee of $6.5 million &&&.9 million for the three months ended June 8@32and 2012, respectively. We
paid FIDAC a management fee of $12.9 million an8.8fillion for the six months ended June 30, 2048 2012, respectively. The
management fee is based on our stockholdepsity as defined in the investment managementaggat. The decrease in the managemel
is due to the agreement to lower the managemenirfiéleall our SEC filings are current. See furtdéscussion of the management fee and
other agreements with FIDAC in our discussion ¢dtesl party transactions below.

G&A expenses were $5.2 million and $2.5 million foe three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 atasely. G&A expenses were
$10.0 million and $4.5 million for the six monthsded June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Our @&genses increased primarily due to
increased legal and accounting fees as well asased servicing fees associated with the CSMC 2082, CSMC 2012-CIM2 and CSMC
2012-CIMS3 securitizations.

Our Manager has agreed to pay all past and futipenses that we and/or our Audit Committee incu¢tpevaluate our accounting policy
related to the application of GAAP to our Non-Agg®MBS portfolio (the Evaluation); (2) restate dimancial statements for the period
covering 2008 through 2011 as a result of the Etadn (the Restatement Filing); and (3) investigatd evaluate any shareholder derivative
demands arising from the Evaluation and/or the&estent Filing (the Investigation); provided, howewhat our Manager’s obligation to
pay expenses applies only to expenses not paidibinsurers under our insurance policies. Expesbal include, without limitation, fees
and costs incurred with respect to auditors (toetktent such fees and costs exceed our originsfignated audit fees of $542,400), outside
counsel, and consultants engaged by us and/or adit Eommittee for the Evaluation, Restatemenniiland the Investigation. The amount
paid by our Manager related to these expensesiéathree and six months ended June 30, 2013 isn$iBi@n and $5.2 million, respectively,
and is presented in the Consolidated Statemer@pefations and Comprehensive Income as Expenseerie® from Manager.

We reimburse FIDAC for our pro rata portion of regetephone, utilities, office furniture, equipmemachinery and other office, internal and
overhead expenses of FIDAC and its affiliates nesglifor our operations. During the three monthqasr ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, we
reimbursed FIDAC approximately $129 thousand ar#b&housand for such expenses, respectively. Duhia six month periods ended J
30, 2013 and 2012, we reimbursed FIDAC approxige#2R8 thousand and $240 thousand for such experspectively.

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equity

Our net income was $143.2 million and $40.8 millfonthe three months ended June 30, 2013 and 284@2ectively. Our net income was
$223.0 million and $121.0 million for the six moatanded June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. datiemet interest income as a
percentage of average equity decreased by 643 zisis for the three months ended June 30, 20t8mapared to the same period of 2012
and decreased by 490 basis points for the six mmarilod ended June 30, 2013 as compared to the gamoe of 2012. The decline in our
economic net interest income as a percentage odgwequity is due to the lower yield on our averagsets from the increase in securitized
loans held for investment. The return on averap#gtg increased by 10.6 points for the three moetided June 30, 2013 as compared to the
same period of 2012 and increased by 482 basissgointhe six month period ended June 30, 201 awpared to the same period of

2012. The increase in our return on average edgiyimarily due higher income as a result of izl gains on sales of investments and
lower OTTI from the prior period. The table belshows our economic net interest income, realizéusg#osses) on sale of assets and the
credit related OTTI, realized and unrealized gdliosses) on interest rate swaps and |Os, total geanant fee and G&A expenses, and
income tax, each as a percentage of average equoiythe return on average equity for the periodsemted.
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Realized and

Unrealized
Realizec Gains
Gains (Losses) on Total
Economic Ne (Losses) on Interest Rate  Management Fee Income Tax
Interest Sales and Swaps and & G&A Benefit/Averag Return on
Income/Averag OTTI/Average IOs/Average  Expenses/Averay Average
Equity * Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
(Ratios have been annualiz¢
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2! 10.5(% 6.14% 0.02% (0.92%) 0.0(% 15.7%
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( 10.1%% (0.72%) 0.4%% (1.05%) 0.0(% 8.87%
For The Year Ended December 31, 2! 13.4%% (1.44%) (0.2€%) (1.78%) 0.0(% 9.95%
For The Quarter Ended December 31, 2 10.85% (1.05%) 0.68% (1.45%) 0.0(% 9.04%
For The Quarter Ended September 30, 2 12.7%% 7.11% (2.4(%) (1.92%) 0.0(% 15.59%
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2! 16.9% (8.14%) (1.7(%) (1.95%) 0.0(% 5.14%

* Includes the effect of realized losses on interate swap:
Exposure to European Financial Counterparties

A significant portion of our Agency RMBS is finartt®ith repurchase agreements. We secure our bimgswinder these agreements by
pledging our Agency RMBS as collateral to the lendée collateral we pledge exceeds the amourteobbrrowings under each agreement,
typically with the extent of over-collateralizatitveing at least 3% of the amount borrowed. Ifdbenterparty to the repurchase agreement
defaults on its obligations and we are not abletwver our pledged assets, we are at risk ofdasia over-collateralized amount. The
amount of this exposure is the difference betwheratmount loaned to us plus interest due to thateguarty and the fair value of the
collateral pledged by us to the lender includingraed interest receivable on such collateral.

We also use interest rate swaps to manage ouesttete risks. Under these swap agreements,atlg@lAgency RMBS as collateral as part
of a margin arrangement for interest rate swapsattgain an unrealized loss position. If a swapnterparty were to default on its obligation,
we would be exposed to a loss to the extent tleaathount of our Agency RMBS pledged exceeded thealimed loss on the associated
swaps and we were not able to recover the excdisseral.

Over the past several years, several large Eurdjpeaarcial institutions have experienced financiddiculty and have been either rescued by
government assistance or by other large Europeaksha institutions. Some of these financial tosibns or their U.S. subsidiaries have
provided us financing under repurchase agreementg tiave entered into interest rate swaps with sstitutions. We have entered into
repurchase agreements and/or interest rate swépsiwicounterparties as of June 30, 2013 tha¢igiher domiciled in Europe or are a U.S.-
based subsidiary of a Europedomiciled financial institution. The following tEbsummarizes our exposure to such counterpairtidisng 3(
2013:

Exposure as

Repurchase Interest Rate a
Numberof Agreement Swaps Percentage
Country Counterpartie:  Financing at Fair Value Exposure (1  Total Assets
(dollars in thousand:

France 1 163,85. $ - $ 8,721 0.12%
Germany 1 - (10,96°) 1,05¢ 0.01%
Netherland: 1 167,27¢ - 6,85z 0.1(%
Switzerlanc 2 354,55¢ (24,39) 20,45( 0.28%
United Kingdom 1 132,82: - 4,74% 0.07%
Total 6 $ 818,51 $ (35,359 $ 41,82¢ 0.58%

(1) Represents the amount of securities pledgedl&geral to each counterparty less the aggregfate
repurchase agreement financing and unrealizecblossvaps for each counterpai

At June 30, 2013, we did not use credit defaultpsaa@ other forms of credit protection to hedgedkposures summarized in the table ab

If the European credit crisis continues to impaesse major European financial institutions, itésgible that it will also impact the operations
of their U.S. subsidiaries. Our financings andrafiens could be adversely affected by such eveits.monitor our exposure to our
repurchase agreement and swap counterpartiesemular basis, using various methods, includingew\of recent rating agency actions,
financial relief plans, credit spreads or otheralepments and by monitoring the amount of cashsaedrities collateral pledged and the
associated loan amount under repurchase agreearatits the fair value of swaps with our counteiipart We make reverse margin calls on
our counterparties to recover excess collaterpeasitted by the agreements governing our finanaimgngements or interest rate swaps, or
may try to take other actions to reduce the amotiotir exposure to a counterparty when necessary.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requieats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, purchase RMBS, mortg:
loans and other assets for our portfolio, pay diais and other general business needs. Our mlrsgiprces of capital and funds for
additional investments primarily include earningsnf our investments, borrowings under securitizegtiand re-securitizations, repurchase
agreements and other financing facilities, and @eds from equity offerings.

To meet our short term (one year or less) liquidigds, we expect to continue to borrow fundseénftihm of repurchase agreements and,
subject to market conditions, other types of finagc The terms of the repurchase transaction bongs under our master repurchase
agreements generally conform to the terms in thedstrd master repurchase agreement as publishtbe Becurities Industry and Financial
Markets Association, or SIFMA, as to repayment, gimarequirements and the segregation of all saearite have initially sold under the
repurchase transaction. In addition, each lengwcally requires that we include supplemental teand conditions to the standard master
repurchase agreement. Typical supplemental tensh€@nditions include changes to the margin maariea requirements, cross default
provisions, required haircuts (or the percentageithsubtracted from the value of RMBS that cellalizes the financing), purchase price
maintenance requirements, and requirements thdispllites related to the repurchase agreemertideedid or arbitrated in a particular
jurisdiction. These provisions may differ for easftour lenders.

We also expect to meet our short term liquiditydsely relying on the cash flows generated by owestments. These cash flows are
primarily comprised of monthly principal and intet@ayments received on our investments. We nsaysall our investments and utilize
those proceeds to meet our short term liquiditydse® enter into non-recourse financing of our sseough sales of securities to third
parties of loan securitization or RMBS re-secuaitian transactions that we have completed in grésiods.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe osetzswill be sufficient to enable us to
meet anticipated shotérm liquidity requirements. However, a declinghie value of our collateral could cause a tempadiguidity shortfall
due to the timing of margin calls on the financargangements and the actual receipt of the caatecketo principal paydowns. If our cash
resources are at any time insufficient to satisfylmuidity requirements, we may have to sell isiveents, potentially at a loss, or issue debt
or additional equity securities in a common stoffkring.

To meet our longer term liquidity needs (greatantbne year), we expect our principal sources pitaleand funds to continue to be provided
by earnings from our investments, borrowings ursgeuritizations and reecuritizations, repurchase agreements and otiending facilities
as well as proceeds from equity offerings. Assalteof our failure to file our SEC filings by tliéing date required by the SEC (including 1
grace period permitted by Rule 12b-25 under thaiStées Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), we atreligible to file a new Form S-3
registration statement or use our existing ForBr8gistration statements to raise additional gqrapital until filings with the SEC have be
timely made for a full year. Our ineligibility tase Form S-3 during this time period will have gatéese impact on our ability to quickly
access the public capital markets because we vsutdquired to file a long-form registration staégtand wait for the SEC to declare such
registration statement effective.

In addition to the principal sources of capitaldésed above, we may enter into warehouse fadlied use longer dated structured
repurchase agreements. The use of any particulaces of capital and funds will depend on markeiditions, availability of these facilities,
and the investment opportunities available to us.

Current Period

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&ig.2 million and $621.2 million at June 30, 2@t8l December 31, 2012, respectively.
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Our operating activities provided net cash of appnately $136.1 million and $189.4 million for tls&x months ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively. The cash provided by operautiyities decreased for the six months ended 30n2013 when compared to the six
months ended June 30, 2012 due primarily to a deermm economic net interest income earned ondftéopo of $56.3 million.

Our investing activities provided net cash of apprately $222.4 million for the six months ende#h@B80, 2013 and resulted in the net use
of cash of approximately $467.8 million for the swonths ended June 30, 2012. During the six mambed June 30, 2013 we generated
cash primarily from principal payments of $902.2lion related to all our investment assets andssafeRMBS of $429.6 million offset in

part by purchases of $1.1 billion in RMBS secusiti®uring the six months ended June 30, 2012,sed gash to purchase securitized loans
related to the CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-CIMihsactions of $1.2 billion and used cash to pueR#BS securities of $101.8
million. These uses of cash were offset in parpbgcipal payments received of $740.6 million gmdceeds from sales of securities of $79.1
million during the six months ended June 30, 2012.

Our financing activities resulted in the net useasgh of approximately $811.5 million for the simmths ended June 30, 2013 and provided
net cash of approximately $188.4 million for the sionths ended June 30, 2012. During the six nsoatided June 30, 2013, we used ca
repay repurchase agreements, net of new borrowin$49.9 million. Other uses of cash for the sianis ended June 30, 2013 included
repayment of principal of our securitized debt 576.7 million and the payment of the dividends 84.9 million. During the six months
ended June 30, 2012, we received proceeds fromsghance of debt related to the CSMC 2012-CIM1@8MC 2012-CIM2 securitizations
of $1.8 billion. This receipt of cash was offsepiart by our use of cash to repay repurchase agmsmf $310.9 million, net of new
borrowings. In addition we used cash for the repayts of debt on securitized borrowings of $1.lidsiland the payment of dividends of
$225.9 million.

We expect to continue to finance our RMBS portfddiely through repurchase agreements and loaosgh the securitization market. In
addition, we may from time to time sell securitéssa source of cash to fund new purchases.

At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the renminaturities on our RMBS repurchase agreements asfollows.

December 31,

June 30, 201 2012

(dollars in thousand:
Overnight $ 6,655 $ -
1-29 days 771,16: 732,80¢
30 to 59 day: 514,87 325,91!
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day - 211,13
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 185,45: 258,16¢
Total $ 1,478,214 $  1,528,02!

We collateralize the repurchase agreements weouggance our operations with Agency RMBS. Ourmeuparties negotiate a ‘haircut’
when we enter into a financing transaction, whiahias from lender to lender. The size of the haireflects the perceived risk associated
with holding the RMBS by the lender. The haircravpdes lenders with a cushion for daily markeueamovements that reduce the need for
a margin call to be issued or margin to be retuasedormal daily increases or decreases in RMB&ehsaalues occur. At June 30, 2013, the
weighted average haircut on our repurchase agréemeas 4.85%. Despite the haircut, repurchase agets subject us to two types of
margin calls. First, there are monthly margin ctibst are triggered as principal payments and pyeagnts are received by us as these
payments lower the value of the collateral. Assult, we expect to receive margin calls from @purchase counterparties monthly simply
due to the principal paydowns on our Agency RMB&e Tonthly principal payments and pre-paymentsiat&nown in advance and vary
depending on the behavior of the borrowers reltddgtle underlying mortgages. Second, counterpartgdse margin calls or return margin as
a result of normal daily increases or decreasesset fair values. In addition, when financingéssising standard form of SIFMA Master
Repurchase Agreements, the counterparty to theagnet typically nets its exposure to us on all amtding repurchase agreements and
issues margin calls if movement of the fair valoEthe assets in the aggregate exceeds their dllevexposure to us. A decline in asset fair
values could create a margin call, or may creatmagin call depending on the counterparty’s spepiblicy. In addition, counterparties
consider a number of factors, including their aggte exposure to us as a whole and the numberysfrdenaining before the repurchase
transaction closes prior to issuing a margin &dle Note 5 to our Consolidated Financial Statenfents discussion on how we determine
fair values of the RMBS collateralizing our repuaisk agreements.
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The table below presents our average repurchaaadsmband repurchase balance at each period etftefperiods presented. Our balance at
period-end tends to have little fluctuation frone tiverage balances except in periods where wedarstiag the size of our portfolio by using
leverage. Our average repurchase agreement baltdaae 30, 2013 decreased compared to our avespgechase agreement balance for
the quarter ended December 31, 2012 due to negmegrds of our repurchase agreements financed fnersales of Agency RMBS during
2013. The Company continues to deploy capitah¢ostrategic purchases of investments.

Average Repurchase
Repurchase Balance at
Period Balance Period Enc
(dollars in thousand:

Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $ 1,422,48! $ 1,478,14
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 1,460,62' $ 1,420,37!
Year Ended December 31, 20 $ 2,122,42. % 1,528,02!
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 1,567,60! $ 1,528,02!
Quarter Ended September 30, 2( $ 1,954,95 $ 1,658,90!
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $ 241282 $ 2,362,08!

We are not required to maintain any specific debequity ratio. We believe the appropriate leverfogehe particular assets we are financing
depends on the credit quality and risk of thosetassAt June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 tairdebt was approximately $3.4 billion
and $4.0 billion, which represented a debt-to-gquitio of approximately 0.9:1 and 1.1:1, respeadiiv We include repurchase agreements
and securitized debt in the numerator of our degeuity ratio and stockholders’ equity as the deimator.

We do not manage our portfolio to have a pre-deg@ghamount of borrowings at quarter-end or ygat- Our borrowings at period end a
snhapshot of borrowing as of a date, and this nursheuld be expected to differ from average borrgwiaver the period. Our borrowings
will change as we implement our portfolio and nisnagement strategies to address changing mam@itions by increasing or decreasing
leverage. Our borrowings may change during penaasn we raise capital, and in certain instanceswag purchase additional assets and
increase borrowings prior to an expected capiiakraSince our average borrowings and period enetings can be expected to differ, we
believe our average borrowings during a period jolesa more accurate representation of our expasuhe risks associated with leverage.

Stockholders’ Equity

On January 28, 2011, we entered into an equityiloigton agreement with FIDAC and UBS Securitiedd,lor UBS. Through this
agreement, we may sell through UBS, as our salestagp to 125,000,000 shares of our common stookdinary brokers’ transactions at
market prices or other transactions as agreed keatwe and UBS. We did not sell any shares of oomaon stock under the equity
distribution agreement during the three and six tmg@eriods ended June 30, 2013 or 2012.

On September 24, 2009, we implemented a Divideridv@stment and Share Purchase Plan, or DRSPPDRB®P provided holders of
record of our common stock an opportunity to autiicadly reinvest all or a portion of their cashtdisutions received on common stock in
additional shares of our common stock as well asdke optional cash payments to purchase shams @bmmon stock. The DRSPP was
administered by the Administrator, Computershatee DRSPP was suspended when we were no longentoneur filings beginning in tt
second quarter of 2012. During the quarter endattM31, 2012 we raised $117 thousand by issuir@8%hares through the DRSPP.

As a result of our failure to file our SEC filingy the filing date required by the SEC (includihg grace period permitted by Rule 12b-25
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ae®ndve will not be able to issue shares of ourroom stock under the equity distribution
agreement or DRSPP until filings with the SEC hlgen timely made for a full year.

During the three month period ended June 30, 2 8etlared dividends to common shareholders tgt&@2.4 million, or $0.09 per

share. During the three month period ended Junp2@®, we declared dividends to common shareheldéaling $92.4 million, or $0.09 per
share.
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During the six month period ended June 30, 2018 eatared dividends to common shareholders tot&lir8.9 million, or $0.18 per
share. During the six month period ended Jun@@02, we declared dividends to common sharehotdéabng $205.4 million, or $0.20 per
share.

The Board of Directors declared and paid a reguarterly dividend of $0.09 per share for the tleindl fourth quarters of 2013. The Board
of Directors has determined that there will beguter quarterly dividend of $0.09 per share foreafthe first two quarters of 2014. The
Board of Directors will review this program aftéetconclusion of the second quarter of 2014. Ther®of Directors also declared and pa
special dividend of $0.20 per share payable onalgrd, 2014 to shareholders of record on Janus2@B4.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarabngf June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2012.
Related Party Transactions Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managengee¢ment with FIDAC, pursuant to which FIDAC isidatl to receive a management
fee and, in certain circumstances, a terminatierafed reimbursement of certain expenses as dedéntike management agreement. The
management fee and expenses do not have fixeded@drdnable payments and the termination fee iomnger applicable.

The Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managengee¢ment with FIDAC, which provided for an initierm through December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestitto certain termination rights. The Compensatmmmittee of the Board of Directors
renewed the management agreement through Decerhp20B3. In 2011 and 2010, we paid to our Managgraaterly management fee eq
to 1.50% per annum of our gross Stockholders’ Bais defined in the management agreement). Effedtovember 28, 2012, the
management fee was reduced to 0.75% per annunosg Gtockholders’ Equity, which reduction will raman effect until we are current on
all of our filings required under applicable setias laws.

We are obligated to reimburse our Manager forattincurred under the management agreementditica] the management agreement
permits our Manager to require us to pay for its qata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, offifurniture, equipment, machinery and other
office, internal and overhead expenses that ourdganincurred in connection with our operationseSeéhexpenses are allocated between our
Manager and us based on the ratio of the propodfignoss assets compared to the gross assets ethbpg@ur Manager as calculated at each
guarter end. Together we will modify this allocatimethodology, subject to the approval of our badrdirectors if the allocation becomes
inequitable (i.e., if we become very highly levesdgompared to our Manager’s other funds and a¢spun

March 2013 Amendment to Management Agreel

On March 8, 2013 we amended the management agréeinethe amendment, we memorialized the redudtidhe management fee.
Additionally, our Manager agreed to pay all past &nture expenses that we and/or our Audit Commiitteur to: (1) evaluate our accounting
policy related to the application of GAAP to ouriNAgency RMBS portfolio (the Evaluation); (2) regt@ur financial statements for the
period covering 2008 through 2011 as a result ®Bhaluation (the Restatement Filing); and (3) stigate and evaluate any shareholder
derivative demands arising from the Evaluation antlie Restatement Filing (the Investigation); ided, however, that our Manager’s
obligation to pay expenses applies only to expensépaid by our insurers under our insurance fEdicExpenses shall include, without
limitation, fees and costs incurred with respeauditors, outside counsel, and consultants engaged and/or our Audit Committee for the
Evaluation, Restatement Filing and the Investigatio

The amendment also provides that the independeettdis or the holders of a majority of the outdtag shares of common stock (other than
those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elextérminate the management agreement upon 30 déige it any time in their sole discreti
without the payment of a termination fee. Addititywave may terminate the management agreementtafieimmediately if (i) our Manager
engages in any act of fraud, misappropriation otl&) or embezzlement against the us, (ii) theam isvent of any gross negligence on the

of our Manager in the performance of its dutiesarrtie management agreement, (iii) there is a carmnement of any proceeding relating to
our Managers$ bankruptcy or insolvency, (iv) there is a dissoluof our Manager, or (v) our Manager is conuvict# (including a plea of no
contendere) a felony.
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Fees Paid Under the Management Agreer

For the three months ended June 30, 2013 and B0t RJanager earned management fees of $6.5 mdlieh$12.9 million, respectively and
received expense reimbursement of $129 thousan@X2iithousand, respectively. For the six montiteed June 30, 2013 and 2012, our
Manager earned management fees of $12.9 milliorf@bdB million, respectively and received expersmbursement of $228 thousand and
$240 thousand, respectively. From our inceptisaugh 2009, our Manager waived its right to requis€o pay our pro rata portion of rent,
telephone, utilities, office furniture, equipmemtachinery and other office, internal and overhegqukases of our Manager and its affiliates
required for our operations.

Our Manager uses the proceeds from its managemei foart to pay compensation to its officers amgloyees who, notwithstanding that
certain of them also are our officers, receive ashccompensation directly from us.

Clearing Fees

On March 1, 2011, we entered into an administratem@ices agreement with RCap Securities, IndR@ap. We use RCap, a SEC registered
broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Apnt clear trades for us and RCap is paid custgrfees in return for such services.
RCap may also provide brokerage services to us fiomto time. During the three month periods ehdiene 30, 2013 and 2012, fees pai
RCap were $35 thousand and $29 thousand, resggctiaring the six month periods ended June 30328nd 2012, fees paid to RCap w
$69 thousand and $73 thousand, respectively.

Restricted Stock Grants

We granted 1,301,000 shares of restricted stoekrployees of our Manager and its affiliates and tremsiof our board of directors on
January 2, 2008. During the three month perioctdridine 30, 2013 and 2012, 27,000 and 31,600 shfarestricted stock vested,
respectively. Of those vested shares 2,000 andR&@s were forfeited, respectively. During tixensonth period ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, 54,000 and 63,200 shares of restricted stested, respectively. Of those vested shares 400@00 shares were forfeited,
respectively. At June 30, 2013 and 2012 there wppgoximately 527,000 and 695,000 unvested sludnestricted stock issued to
employees of FIDAC, respectively. For the threeathe ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, compensatiemsx@ssociated with the
amortization of the fair value of the restrictedcit was approximately $94 thousand and $88 thoysasgectively. For the six months
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, compensation expesseiated with the amortization of the fair vadfighe restricted stock was
approximately $172 thousand and $169 thousandectsply.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following tables summarize our contractual gdgiions at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2018.e3tmated principal repayment

schedule of the securitized debt is based on eggeaetsh flows of the residential mortgage loarRMBS, as adjusted for expected principal
writedowns on the underlying collateral of the debt
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June 30, 201

Greater Tha
Within One Oneto Thre Threeto Fiv.  or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:

Repurchase agreements for RM $ 1,478,14. $ - $ D - $ 1,478,14

Securitized dek 511,81« 640,81 327,25t 380,78t 1,860,66'

Interest expense on RMBS repurchase

agreements (1 2,381 - - - 2,381

Interest expense on securitized debt 68,66: 91,13: 62,32: 183,39( 405,50!

Total $ 2,060,990 $ 731,940 $ 389,57 $ 564,17t $ 3,746,69

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effeaifalune

30, 2013

December 31, 201

Greater Tha
Within One Oneto Thre Threeto Fivn or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousands

Repurchase agreements for RM $ 1,528,02! $ - $ - % - $ 1,528,02
Securitized dek 658,42: 793,15( 430,99: 555,71 2,438,28:
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase

agreements (1 3,481 5 - - 3,48¢
Interest expense on securitized debt 88,17: 113,93: 72,90 201,72: 476,73:
Total $ 2,278,100 $ 907,08t $ 503,89' $§ 757,43t $ 4,446,52

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effsaifeDecember 31, 201
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any relationships with unconsolidiatatities or financial partnerships, such as iestibften referred to as structured finance
or special purpose entities, which would have esablished for the purpose of facilitating offdrade sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furtlveg,have not guaranteed any obligations of uncoeteld entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any secitities.
Capital Requirements
At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we hadaterial commitments for capital expenditures.
Dividends
To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetadsur stockholders of at least 90% of our REITata® income (subject to certain
adjustments). We intend to pay regular quarterdeinds to our stockholders that constitute abbf REIT taxable income. Before we pay
any dividend, we must first meet any operating imr@goents and scheduled debt service on our fingrfeicilities and other debt payable.
Inflation
A significant portion of our assets and liabilitix® interest rate sensitive in nature. As a resu#irest rates and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chamg@nterest rates do not necessarily correlati inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. Our consolidated financial statements apagved in accordance with GAAP and our distributioill be determined by our board of
directors consistent with our obligation to distrié to our stockholders at least 90% of our REKBlde income on an annual basis in order to
maintain our REIT qualification; in each case, adativities and financial condition are measuredwéference to historical cost and/or fair
market value without considering inflation.
Other Matters
We at all times intend to conduct our businessssacd to become regulated as an investment comyoahgr the 1940 Act. If we were to
become regulated as an investment company, ottyabiluse leverage would be substantially reduced.
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Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Adinds an investment company as any issuer thatgaged or proposes to engage in the
business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holdimgrading in securities and owns or proposestuie investment securities having a vi
exceeding 40% of the value of the issadotal assets (exclusive of U.S. Government sikesiind cash items) on an unconsolidated bas
“40% test”). Excluded from the term “investmentséiies,” among other things, are securities issmedhajorityowned subsidiaries that re
on the exemption from registration provided by #e&c8(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act.

Certain of our subsidiaries, including Chimera Addelding LLC and certain subsidiaries that we rfayn in the future, rely on the

exemption from registration provided by Section)@&XC) of the Investment Company Act. Section EXC), as interpreted by the staff of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (or the SEEGYires us to invest at least 55% of our assétaortgages and other liens on and
interest in real estate” (or Qualifying Real Estassets) and at least 80% of our assets in Quatdjfiieal Estate Assets plus real estate relatec
assets. The assets that we acquire, thereforbirated by the provisions of and the rules and ftatjons promulgated under the Investment
Company Act.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept eetdbes] “Companies Engaged in the Business of Aoty Mortgages and Mortgage-
Related Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778yddthe concept release, the SEC is reviewingpréére issues related to the Section 3
(c)(5)(C) exemption. We are monitoring developmeatated to this matter.

Based on our calculations, as of June 30, 20128amd, we were in compliance with the exemption fragistration provided by Section 3(c)
(5)(C) and 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company.Act

As a result of the Dod&rank Wall Street Reform and Consumer ProtectionoA010, the U.S. Commaodity Futures Trading Cosasiain, o
CFTC, gained jurisdiction over the regulation dkirest rate swaps. The CFTC has asserted thatahées the operators of mortgage real
estate investment trusts that use swaps as pmtiobusiness model to fall within the statutogfidition of Commodity Pool Operator, or
CPO, and, absent relief from the Division or therassion, to register as CPOs. On December 7,,24512 result of numerous requests for
no-action relief from the CPO registration requiegfor operators of mortgage real estate invedstitnests, the Division of Swap Dealer and
Intermediary Oversight of the CFTC issued no-actiief entitled “No-Action Relief from the CommadgiPool Operator Registration
Requirement for Commodity Pool Operators of CerRooled Investment Vehicles Organized as Mortgaggd Rstate Investment Trusts”
that permits a CPO to receive relief by filing ainl to perfect the use of the relief. A claim sutbed by a CPO will be effective upon filing,
so long as the claim is materially complete. Toeditions that must be met to claim the reliefthis the mortgage real estate investment
trust must:

e Limit the initial margin and premiums required tstablish its commodity interest positions to no enthran five percent of the f
market value of the mortgage real estate investtnes’s total asset:

e Limit the net income derived annually from its cowolity interest positions that are not qualifyinglgig transactions to less tt
five percent of the mortgage real estate investriras’s gross income

e Ensure that interests in the mortgage real estagsiment trust are not marketed to the publicras a commodity pool or otherwi
as or in a vehicle for trading in the commodityufiels, commodity options, or swaps markets;

e Either:
0 identify itself as ¢ mortgage REI” in Item G of its last U.S. income tax return onmdt12(-REIT; or

o ifit has not yet filed its first U.S. income tagturn on Form 112RREIT, disclose to its shareholders that it intetadiglentify
itself as ¢*mortgage REI” in its first U.S. income tax return on Form 1-REIT.

While we disagree that the CFTEosition that mortgage real estate investmestdithat use swaps as part of their business nfaltielithin
the statutory definition of a CPO, we have subrditeclaim for the relief set forth in the no-acti@tief entitled “No-Action Relief from the
Commodity Pool Operator Registration RequirementCfommodity Pool Operators of Certain Pooled Invesit Vehicles Organized as
Mortgage Real Estate Investment Trusts” and belexeneet the criteria for such relief set forthréie.
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Iltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures abut Market Risk

The primary components of our market risk are eeldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, rmarket value risk and real estate risk.
While we do not seek to avoid risk completely, vedidve the risk can be quantified from historicgberience and we seek to actively mar
that risk, to earn sufficient compensation to fystking those risks and to maintain capital lsvansistent with the risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments in Non-Agency RMBS and residentiableHoans and face more credit risk
on assets we own which are rated below “AAA”. Ttredit risk related to these investments pertainke ability and willingness of the
borrowers to pay, which is assessed before creditanted or renewed and periodically revieweduphout the loan or security term. We
believe that residual loan credit quality, and tthesquality of our assets, is primarily determitgcdhe borrowers’ credit profiles and loan
characteristics. We use a comprehensive credigweprocess. Our analysis of loans includes borrgsfiles, as well as valuation and
appraisal data. We use compensating factors sulidués assets, low loan to value ratios and regiamemployment statistics in evaluating
loans. Our resources include a proprietary podfolanagement system, as well as third party soétsgstems. We may utilize a third party
due diligence firm to perform an independent undging review to ensure compliance with existingdglines. In addition to statistical
sampling techniques, we create adverse credit alugition samples, which we individually review. Wgect loans that fail to conform to our
standards and do not meet our underwriting crit@ieace we own a loan, our surveillance processided ongoing analysis through our
proprietary data and servicer files. Additionatlye NonAgency RMBS and other ABS which we acquire for partfolio are reviewed by t
to ensure that they satisfy our risk based crit@iar review of Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS irdss utilizing a proprietary portfolio
management system. Our review of Non-Agency RMB&ather ABS is based on quantitative and qualiéagimalysis of the risk-adjusted
returns on Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS. This gsialincludes an evaluation of the collateral cbignastics supporting the RMBS such
as borrower payment history, credit profiles, gaphiic concentrations, credit enhancement, seasoaingother pertinent factors.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many dast including governmental, monetary and tax pedicdomestic and international economic
and political considerations and other factors Inelyour control. We are subject to interest ratie insconnection with our investments and
related debt obligations, which are generally repase agreements, warehouse facilities and seeigin/re-securitization vehicles. Our
repurchase agreements and warehouse facilitiedmay limited duration that are periodically refiregd at current market rates. We inter
mitigate this risk through utilization of derivagivcontracts, primarily interest rate swap agreesyantaptions, futures and mortgage options.

I nterest Rate Effects on Net | nterest Income

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofedihces between the income from our investmerdanborrowing costs. Most of our
warehouse facilities and repurchase agreementsderéimancing based on a floating rate of intecedtulated on a fixed spread over LIBOR.
The fixed spread varies depending on the type détying asset which collateralizes the financiagcordingly, the portion of our portfolio
which consists of floating interest rate assetsldlmatch-funded utilizing our expected sourceshafrt-term financing, while our fixed
interest rate assets will not be mafahded. During periods of rising interest rates, blorrowing costs associated with our investmentd tc
increase while the income earned on our fixed @#erate investments may remain substantially urgdgd This will result in a narrowing of
the net interest spread between the related amseétsorrowings and may even result in losses. Egrtturing this portion of the interest rate
and credit cycles, defaults could increase andtressaredit losses to us, which could adversefeetfour liquidity and operating results. Such
delinquencies or defaults could also have an adwfect on the spread between interest-earnirggsaasd interest-bearing liabilities.
Hedging techniques are partly based on assumels levprepayments of our fixed-rate and hybrid atjblerate mortgage loans and RME

If prepayments are slower or faster than assurhedifée of the mortgage loans and RMBS will be lengr shorter, which would reduce the
effectiveness of any hedging strategies we mayandemay cause losses on such transactions.
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I nterest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate risk is thea@ftdhanges in interest rates will have on thevalue of the assets we acquire. We face the
risk that the fair value of our assets will increas decrease at different rates than that ofiabilities, including our hedging instruments. !
primarily assess our interest rate risk by estingathe duration of our assets and the duratioruofiabilities. Duration essentially measures
the market price volatility of financial instrumerds interest rates change. We generally calcdlatgion using various financial models and
empirical data. Different models and methodologis produce different duration numbers for the saeaarities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signiflgamhen interest rates change beyond 100
basis points from current levels. Therefore, thiatiity in the fair value of our assets could iease significantly when interest rates change
beyond 100 basis points. In addition, other factonsact the fair value of our interest raensitive investments and hedging instruments,
as the shape of the yield curve, market expecttarto future interest rate changes and otherahaokditions. Accordingly, in the event of
changes in actual interest rates, the change ifathealue of our assets would likely differ fraimat shown below and such difference might
be material and adverse to our stockholders.

I nterest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thdedging mortgages are typically
subject to periodic and lifetime interest rate capd floors, which limit the amount by which thewety’s interest yield may change during
any given period. However, our borrowing costs parg to our financing agreements will not be suttiesimilar restrictions. Therefore, in a
period of increasing interest rates, interest catds on our borrowings could increase withouttition by caps, while the interest-rate yields
on our adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBS aveiiiectively be limited. This problem will be mafied to the extent we acquire
adjustable-rate RMBS that are not based on mortgapéch are fully indexed. In addition, the mortgagr the underlying mortgages in an
RMBS may be subject to periodic payment caps #silt in some portion of the interest being defitared added to the principal
outstanding. This could result in our receipt alsleash income on our adjustable-rate mortgage®8/&S than we need in order to pay the
interest cost on our related borrowings. Thesefaatould lower our net interest income or causetdoss during periods of rising interest
rates, which would harm our financial conditionsledlows and results of operations.

I nterest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitioh®MBS with borrowings that, after the effect ofdgéng, have interest rates based on
indices and re-pricing terms similar to, but of gahat shorter maturities than, the interest radeeas and re-pricing terms of the mortgages
and RMBS. In most cases the interest rate indiodsre-pricing terms of our mortgage assets andumaling sources will not be identical,
thereby creating an interest rate mismatch betwaseats and liabilities. Our cost of funds woulelkrise or fall more quickly than would ¢
earnings rate on assets. During periods of charigiegest rates, such interest rate mismatcheslemdatively impact our financial conditic
cash flows and results of operations. To mitigaterest rate mismatches, we may utilize the hedgfirmgegies discussed above. Our analysis
of risks is based on FIDAC's experience, estimategjels and assumptions. These analyses rely orlswatiich utilize estimates of fair
value and interest rate sensitivity. Actual ecormoainditions or implementation of investment dexisi by our management may produce
results that differ significantly from the estimai@nd assumptions used in our models and the pedjeesults shown in this Form 10-Q.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolicn@luding interest rate swaps) may be adverselytfteduring any period as a result of
changing interest rates. The following table gifi@stthe potential changes in net interest incame portfolio value for our Agency RMBS
portfolio should interest rates go up or down 2%,d&nd 75 basis points, assuming parallel movenierke yield curves. All changes in
income and value are measured as percentage cHamgethe projected net interest income and padfealue at the base interest rate
scenario. The base interest rate scenario assoteesst rates at June 30, 2013 and various estfmagarding prepayment and all activities
are made at each level of rate change. Actualtsesould differ significantly from these estimates
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June 30, 201

Projected Percenta
Change in Portfolio

Value,
with Effect of
Projected Interest
Percentage Rate Swaps and
Change in Net Other
Change in Interest Interest Hedging
Rate Income (1) Transactions (2
-75 Basis Point (11.58%) 1.15%
-50 Basis Point (9.16%) 0.86%
-25 Basis Point (5.35%) 0.50%
Base Interest Ra - -
+25 Basis Point 4.73% (0.61%)
+50 Basis Point 8.60% (1.30%)
+75 Basis Point 11.49% (2.09%)

(1) Change in annual economic net interest incdnwdudes
interest expense on interest rate sw

(2) Projected Percentage Change in Portfolio Vaumsed ol
instantaneous moves in interest ra

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesesitments, premiums and discounts on such investmgihbe amortized or accreted into
interest income. In general, an increase in prejeaymates will accelerate the amortization of passhpremiums, thereby reducing the
interest income earned on the investments. Conlyediscounts on such investments are acceleratdcecreted into interest income
increasing interest income.

Extension Risk

Our Manager computes the projected weighted-avdifegef our investments based on assumptions déggithe rate at which the borrowers
will prepay the underlying mortgages. In generdlew fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-rate mortgagmé or RMBS are acquired via
borrowings, we may, but are not required to, eimter an interest rate swap agreement or other hgdgstrument that effectively fixes our
borrowing costs for a period close to the anti@dadverage life of the fixed-rate portion of thiated assets. This strategy is designed to
protect us from rising interest rates as the boimgwosts are effectively fixed for the duratiortloé fixed-rate portion of the related assets.
However, if prepayment rates decrease in a rigitegyést rate environment, the life of the fixecerportion of the related assets could extend
beyond the term of the swap agreement or otherihgdigstrument. This could have a negative impacbor results from operations, as
borrowing costs would no longer be fixed after ¢inel of the hedging instrument while the income eduwn the fixed and hybrid adjustable-
rate assets would remain fixed. In extreme sitnatiove may be forced to sell assets to maintaigquate liquidity, which could cause us to
incur losses.

Basis Risk

We seek to limit our interest rate risk by hedgirogtions of our portfolio through interest rate pswand other types of hedging instruments.
Interest rate swaps are generally tied to undeglfireasury benchmark interest rates. Basis rigitaglto the risk of the spread between our
RMBS and underlying hedges widening. Such a widgniay cause a decline in the fair value of our RMIBS is greater than the increas:
fair value of our hedges resulting in a net decimbook value. The widening of mortgage-backedigges yields and Treasury benchmark
interest rates may result from a variety of facgush as anticipated or actual monetary policyoastor other market factors.

Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind lsses excluded from earnings and reported
in other comprehensive income if no OTTI has bemognized in earnings. The estimated fair valulb@$e securities fluctuates primarily

due to changes in interest rates, prepayment spexdket liquidity, credit quality, and other facdo Generally, in a rising interest rate
environment, the estimated fair value of these sesiwould be expected to decrease; conversely,decreasing interest rate environment,
the estimated fair value of these securities wbel@éxpected to increase. As market volatility @éases or liquidity decreases, the fair valu

our investments may be adversely impacted.
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Real Estate Market Risk

We own assets secured by real property and mayreaproperty directly in the future. Residenfiadperty values are subject to volatility
and may be affected adversely by a number of fachocluding, but not limited to, national, regibaad local economic conditions (which
may be adversely affected by industry slowdownsathdr factors); local real estate conditions (salan oversupply of housing); change
continued weakness in specific industry segmemtsstcuction quality, age and design; demograpldtofa; and retroactive changes to
building or similar codes. In addition, decreaseprioperty values reduce the value of the collhtard the potential proceeds available to a
borrower to repay our loans, which could also caisst incur losses.

Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REtatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential mortgage
loans, RMBS, and other assets and related debtstghe effects of major interest rate changesg@érerally seek to manage risk by:

e monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the rasgé¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

e attempting to structure our financing agreememtsave a range of different maturities, terms, dizetions and interest rate adjustment
periods;

e using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, @ami caps, floors and forward sales to adjustriterest rate sensitivity of our investments
and our borrowings

e using securitization financing to lower averagst®f funds relative to short-term financing vééscfurther allowing us to receive the
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pedbtime in contrast to short term financing and unidy dates of the investments not
included in the securitization; al

e actively managing, on an aggregate basis, tleeast rate indices, interest rate adjustment pgriaad gross reset margins of our
investments and the interest rate indices and @ periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets and liabilitiescancerned with the timing and magnitude of thprieing of assets and liabilities. We
attempt to control risks associated with interagt movements. Methods for evaluating interestriskeinclude an analysis of our interest |
sensitivity “gap”, which is the difference betwdaterest-earning assets and interest-bearing li@silmaturing or re-pricing within a given
time period. A gap is considered positive whenatmount of interest-rate sensitive assets exceedsiount of interest-rate sensitive
liabilities. A gap is considered negative whenadhmount of interest-rate sensitive liabilities exdemterest-rate sensitive assets. During a
period of rising interest rates, a negative gapld/tend to adversely affect net interest incomeijenvd positive gap would tend to result in an
increase in net interest income. During a periothlhihg interest rates, a negative gap would tencesult in an increase in net interest
income, while a positive gap would tend to affeet imterest income adversely. Because differerasyqf assets and liabilities with the same
or similar maturities may react differently to claas in overall market rates or conditions, chamgésterest rates may affect net interest
income positively or negatively even if an instibmt were perfectly matched in each maturity catggor

The following table sets forth the estimated m&yuoi re-pricing of our interest-earning assets imerest-bearing liabilities at June 30,
2013. The amounts of assets and liabilities shaitimin a particular period were determined in adesrce with the contractual terms of the
assets and liabilities, except adjustable-ratedpand securities are included in the period inclvitheir interest rates are first scheduled to
adjust and not in the period in which they mature mcludes the effect of the interest rate swaps.interest rate sensitivity of our assets
liabilities in the table could vary substantiallgded on actual prepayments.
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June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands)

Within 3 1Yearto3 Greater than 3

Months 3-12 Months Years Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 2,463,01. $ 1,778,19. $ 921,77 $ 8,509,027 $ 13,672,01
Cash equivalent 168,15. - - - 168,15.
Total rate sensitive asse¢ 2,631,16! 1,778,19. 921,77 8,509,02' 13,840,16
Rate sensitive liabilitie 80,25: 581,02} 38,26 1,397,941 2,097,48.
Interest rate sensitivity g¢ $ 2,550,991 % 1,197,16! $ 883,51: % 7,111,08 $ 11,742,68
Cumulative rate sensitivity g¢ $ 2,550,911 % 3,748,08. $ 4,631,59' $ 11,742,68
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity ge
as a
percentage of total rate sensitive as 18% 27% 33% 85%

Our analysis of risks is based on our manager'sm@apce, estimates, models and assumptions. Thedesas rely on models which utilize
estimates of fair value and interest rate sengjtivictual economic conditions or implementatiorirofestment decisions by our manager t
produce results that differ significantly from tbstimates and assumptions used in our models angtdfected results shown in the above
tables and in this Form 10-Q. These analyses iroo¢atain forward-looking statements and are suthifethe safe harbor statement set forth
under the heading, “Special Note Regarding Forwamking Statements.”

ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

Changes in Internal Controls

In our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year eh@=cember 31, 2012, we disclosed that managenaentlentified material weaknesses
in our internal controls over financial reportings of December 31, 2012, we determined that aources and level of technical accounting
expertise within the accounting function were ifisignt to properly evaluate and account for thenptexity of our investments in Non-
Agency RMBS securities, 10 strips, impairment ofwgitized loans held for investment, effective et calculations and related disclosures
in accordance with generally accepted accountiimgijmles. We did not design and maintain adegpeteedures or effective review and
approval controls, including the review of jourealtries and reconciliations, over routine proces§®e did not design and maintain adequate
review and approval controls over significant esti@s and their related disclosure process to pt@vetetect a material misstatement and we
identified an overreliance on spreadsheets congisti manual inputs and complex calculations use@c¢ord transactions and estimates
supporting the financial statement amounts andatiaces.

Management is committed to the ongoing remediagitorts to address the material weaknesses asaweliher identified areas of risk. These
remediation efforts, summarized below, which ateegiimplemented or in process, are intended th bddress the identified material
weaknesses and to enhance our overall financidataamvironment.

After the issuance of the interim financial statamsdor the third quarter of 2011, our managemesgttmore frequently with the Audit
Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors. Fuglit Committee, assisted by independent legal sebiand outside accounting experts
engaged by its counsel, has initiated an intemadstigation into the facts and circumstances feath the restatement of the Company’s
financial statements and will make recommendatfonsppropriate remedial measures based on iténfigsd This investigation is ongoing ¢
the Audit Committee has not presented a final renendation to the Board of Directors.

The Company engaged a leading accounting firm v@ésadnanagement with respect to accounting stasdasgarch support and engaged a
leading professional services organization spetigliin accounting and reporting matters to aid agement with key facets of the material
weaknesses in our internal controls over finan@porting. During 2012 and 2013, we added resoturcascounting policy, middle office a
financial reporting roles, including technical acoting subject matter resources and a new Chiefrigiial Officer. We believe the additional
resources have remediated the material weaknesshasin the 2011 Form 10-K regarding our resosianed level of technical accounting
expertise within the accounting function to propavaluate and account for the complexity of thenBany’s investments in Non-Agency
RMBS securities, 10 strips, impairment of secueitizoans held for investment, and related disclsur accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.
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Additionally, we have added resources and updateckegses to remediate the aforementioned mategimess regarding the direct
independent review and validation of inputs usesigmificant estimates such as the determinatighefair value, impairment, or interest
income related to our investments in RMBS and stized loans held for investment, including thenfalization of a middle office function.
We engaged two independent pricing services tcatedtvalidate the models we use to value our gdatféhe new resources and processes
were implemented in 2013.

Further, expanding the accounting policy, middigcefand financial reporting group has increasedapportunity to further segregate duties,
add additional review steps, improve the techricahpetency of the accounting function and improweamntrol environment. We believe
these resources will provide improved documentadiah evidence of review of the schedules suppottisgamounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Based upon the substantial work described abovéhenprocedures performed through the filing o$ thorm 10-Q, we have concluded that
the consolidated financial statements for the pisrovered by and included in this Form 10-Q aepared in accordance with GAAP and
fairly present in all material respects, our finahposition, results of operation and cash floasdach of the periods presented herein.

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i0&r determined that the aforementioned materia@kmesses in our internal controls over
financial reporting were not fully remediated ahdttour disclosure controls and procedures wereffettive as of June 30, 2013.

Other than the changes discussed above, therebeameno changes in our “internal control over fgiahreporting” (as defined in Rule 13a-
15 (f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934amended) that occurred during the period covieyetiis quarterly report that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, our internal control over financigporting.

PART II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

After the issuance of the interim financial statatseor the third quarter of 2011, the Audit Comest of our Board of Directors initiated an
internal investigation, with the assistance of mgxounsel and financial advisors engaged by d@eitsbunsel, regarding the facts and
circumstances relating to our accounting for Nore#gy RMBS and the restatement of our financiakstaints. This investigation is
ongoing.

Our Board of Directors has received three derieatigemand letters alleging, among other things,ttreadirectors and our officers, as well as
our Manager, FIDAC, breached their fiduciary dutiesis by failing to institute adequate internahirols and failing to ensure that we made
accurate financial disclosures. These lettersastjamong other things, that the Board of Dirextake action to investigate and remedy the
alleged breaches of fiduciary duty. At the conidnof its investigation, the Audit Committee willake final recommendations to the Board
of Directors about an appropriate response todtiers. The Audit Committee currently expectsdndaude its investigation at the same time
as the Company files its Annual Report on Form 1fdikihe year ended December 31, 2013. These ted potential actions that may be
filed against us, whether with or without merit,yndivert the attention of management from our besen harm our reputation and otherwise
may have a material adverse effect on our busifiessicial condition, results of operations andhctisws.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Under “Part | — Item 1A — Risk Factors” of our Forl0-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, wibsétrisk factors related to (i)
risks associated with the restatement of our fingrstatements and related matters, (i) risks ass@d with adverse developments in the
mortgage finance and credit markets, (iii) risks@sated with our management and relationship with Manager, (iv) risks related to our
business, (V) risks related to our investment3,régulatory and legal risks, (vii) risks relateal 6ur common stock, and (viii) tax risks. You
should carefully consider the risk factors settidrt our Form 10-K for the year ended December28l,2. As of the date hereof, there have
been no material changes to the risk factors s#h o our Form 10-K for the year ended December Z112.
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ltem 6. Exhibits
Exhibits:
The exhibits required by this item are set forthtlom Exhibit Index attached hereto

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description

Number

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chinievestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1tie Company’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irmrated herein by
reference)

3.2 Articles of Amendment of Chimera InvestmentiZmation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’'s@d®rt on Form 8-K filed on
May 28, 2009 and incorporated herein by refere

3.3 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentiwation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’spRe on Form 8-K filed on
November 5, 2010 and incorporated herein by retare

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investi@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the ComyarRegistration Statement on
Amendment No. 2 to Form-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on November 5, 2007 and incorporéeetin by reference

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimakestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpany’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irmrated herein by
reference)

31.1  Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Enxtge Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Financial Gfér of the Registrant, pursuant to Section 30h@fSarban«-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1  Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Enxtee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2  Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Financ@ificer of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.SSéction 1350 as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 101.INSInstance Document **

XBRL

Exhibit 101.SCtTaxonomy Extension Schema Document **

XBRL

Exhibit Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document **

101.CAL XBRL

Exhibit 101.DEFAdditional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&iment Created**
XBRL

Exhibit Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document **

101.LAB XBRL

Exhibit 101.PRETaxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document *

XBRL

** Submitted electronically herewith. tAthed as Exhibit 101 to this report are the follmrdocuments formatted in XBRL (Extensi
Business Reporting Language): (i) ConsolidatedeBtants of Financial Condition as of June 30, 2Q@r#a(idited) and December 31, 2012
(derived from the audited consolidated financiatesnents); (i) Consolidated Statements of Openatamd Comprehensive Income for the
guarters and six months ended June 30, 2013 art] dljlConsolidated Statement of Stockholdersuig(Deficit) for the six months ended
June 30, 2013 and 2012; (iv) Consolidated Statesn#nCash Flows for the six months ended June @03 2nd 2012; and (v) Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussdréport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: _/s/ Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambias:
(Chief Executive Officer and Preside
and duly authorized officer of the registra

Date: March 20, 201

By: _/s/Rob Colligan
Rob Colligan

(Chief Financial Officel
and principal financial officer of the registra
Date: March 20, 201
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Matthew Lambiase, certify the
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@ynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant@éments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining discie controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and praesdur caused such disclosure controls and proesdortbe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

b. Designed such internal control over finanogglorting, or caused such internal control ouaatficial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atlte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and presemtisils report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioxterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internalrotsbver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that ilmes management or other employees who have disamtirole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 20, 201

/s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambias:

Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipakEutive Officer)




1.

2.

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Rob Colligan, certify that:
| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic
Based on my knowledge, this report does not co@aynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant&éments, and other financial information includtethis report, fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
report;

. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have

a. Designed such disclosure controls and praesdur caused such disclosure controls and proesdortbe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

b. Designed such internal control over finanogglorting, or caused such internal control ouaatficial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and presemtisils report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in tlggsteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioxterhal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internalrotsbver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that itvas management or other employees who have disamtirole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 20, 201

/s/_Rob Colligan
Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial OffiQe



Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended June

30, 2013 to be filed with Securities and Exchangen@®ission on or about the date hereof (the “RepdrtMatthew Lambiase, President, ¢
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify rpuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A@062, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coMeyethe Repor!

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeok 1934.

/s/ Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambias:

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
March 20, 201«




Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended June
30, 2013 to be filed with Securities and Exchangen@ission on or about the date hereof (the “RepdrtRob Colligan, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Sewt8®6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S€xtion 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coMeyethe Repor!

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/s/ Rob Colligar

Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Office
March 21, 201«



